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Sensor-rich solutions delivering deep insights

Sensata is a leading industrial technology company that develops sensors and
sensorbased, mission-critical solutions to create valuable business insights for
customers and end users.

We provide a wide range of customized, sensorrich solutions that address complex
engineering requirements to help customers solve difficult challenges.
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COMMITTED TO ESG

Sensata is committed to sustainable environmental,
soclal and governance practices

Sensata seeks to be a partner, employer, and neighbor of choice. It is Sensata's vision that our products
will enhance the safety, efficiency and comfort for millions of people every day. Sensata focuses
on the following areas to enhance Corporate Responsibility and Sustainability in its operations:

ENVIRONMENTAL o
Energy & Emissions

SOCIAL Responsible Sourcing & Labor Practices
GOVERNANCE Diversity, Equity & Inclusion
..0'0. &£ Our collective success depends on the diversity of
o Sensata @ our team, including gender, race, age, education,
% .. place of birth, and other social identities. Creating
( TY 1

an environment where ideas are shared freely is
key to ensuring our employees reach their true
potential and grants us the ability to innovate. ¥'¥

— Jeff Cote, Chief Executive Officer & President

Diversity, Equity & Inclusion

A SENSE OF BELONGING



INVESTED IN ELECTRIFICATION

Expanding electrification capabilities and opportunities

Sensata aims to be a leading provider of mission-critical
sensor-rich hardware and software solutions to help
customers transition to an Electrified future.
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ACOQUISITION: LITHIUM BALANCE

Lithium Balance further expands Sensata’s portfolio to offer
more comprehensive battery management solutions to a
variety of heavy vehicle OEMs and integrated energy storage
solutions to commercial and industrial customers.
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INVESTED IN SMART & CONNECTED

Becoming a data insight provider for broader fleet ecosystem

Sensata is engaging with the broader fleet ecosystem
to deliver an enhanced value proposition across
the transportation and logistics value chain.

TELEMATICS

Sensing portfolio collects Vehicle area network enables

high-value data (e.g. cargo ")) truck-to-trailer link and 3rd

capacity, tire pressure party system integration

monitoring system) (e.g. automatic tire inflation

system)
S
S —4

Fleet managers receive the Cloud platform remotely Telematics devices collect
right actionable data in the manages devices while vehicle data and transmit/
right place (e.g. web portal, ((" processing and distributing ((" receive to/from the cloud
email notifications, etc.) data via APIs to 3rd party and/or in-cab displays

solution providers

ACQUISITION: XIRGO

Xirgo brings complementary capabilities and talent, and accelerates
Sensata’s strategy to expand beyond OEMs and address the broader
fleet ecosystem, including telematics service providers, fleet
management solution providers, and fleet operators themselves.
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| etter to our Shareholders

SENSATA CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
JEFFREY J. COTE

Sensata and the entire world experienced

an enormous global health and economic
crisis caused by the COVID-19 virus in 2020.
From the first shutdowns in China, and then
across every geographic region, Sensata’s
immediate priority became ensuring the
safety of our employees while addressing the
urgent needs of our partners and customers.
While the resulting volatility in the first half of
the year greatly affected our customers and
markets, and thus our financial results, we
took necessary actions quickly, to remain agile
and to preserve our financial foundation. As a
result, we were well-positioned as end markets
began to recover in the third quarter, a trend
that accelerated at the end of the year.

Sensata’s dedicated employees and the
resilience of our business model enabled
us to emerge from this worldwide crisis
stronger than ever, producing record free
cash flow in the fourth quarter. We are deeply
grateful toTeam Sensata, who overcame
myriad difficulties the pandemic posed, as
well as our customers, who demonstrated
their trust and confidence in us, and
indeed, their increased reliance on our
mission-critical products and solutions.

2020 FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the full year 2020, Sensata reported
revenue of $3.05 billion, an organic revenue
decline of 11.9% from 2019, reflecting steep
end market declines. Despite those underlying
trends, Sensata successfully generated 600
basis points of outgrowth compared to our end
markets. In automotive and heavy vehicle &
off-road, we outgrew end markets by 690 basis
points and 880 basis points, respectively—
higher than our long-term targets of 400-600
basis points in automotive and 600-800 basis



points in HVOR. I'm pleased with 2020’s
outgrowth, which speaks to the strength of our
resilient business model and the differentiated
nature of our products. We also credit our
significant new business wins in 2020, totaling
more than $465 million, well above our five-
year average, including higher Electrification
and Smart & Connected wins, setting us up for
sustained outgrowth in 2021 and beyond.

Through the depth of the pandemic, we
effectively managed our operations and
reduced our cost structure through a
restructuring program to lower semi-variable
operating costs by 10% that we anticipate will
produce savings of $60-$65 million annually
in 2021.The impact of the pandemic and
economic crisis diminished our earnings per
share and our adjusted operating income
margins in 2020, but we were encouraged
by the improvement we delivered in the
fourth quarter, with year-over-year growth

in revenues and adjusted operating income.
For the full year, we sustained investments
in opportunities that will position Sensata
for future growth, and our free cash flow
generation remained strong at $453 million,
representing an unusually high conversion
rate of 130% of adjusted net income; as

a result, at year'’s end, our net leverage

ratio was 3.2x, comfortably within our
target range. Lastly, we took advantage of
historically low interest rates to strengthen
our balance sheet, issuing new debt and
repaying higher-interest-bearing debt early.

During the first quarter of 2020, we
repurchased approximately $35 million of
Sensata stock before we paused further action
due to the pandemic. Since then, our capital
deployment has been focused on M&A and
investing in our business, with a focus on our
Megatrend areas of Electrification and Smart
& Connected and we expect it to remain so in
order to deliver significant accretive growth for
the Company.

££& Sensata’s dedicated employees
and the resilience of our
business model enabled us to
emerge from this worldwide
crisis stronger than ever. ¥ 9

NON-GAAP REVENUE
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EXPANDING MEGATREND INITIATIVES:
ELECTRIFICATION

Sensata aims to be a leading provider of
mission-critical sensor-rich hardware and
software solutions to help customers transition
to an Electrified future, and we made great
strides in implementing our strategy in this
critical area in 2020. We are actively investing in
Electrification initiatives holistically across our
portfolio, from electric vehicles to e-mobility
applications for heavy vehicles, charging
infrastructure and industrial grid management,
all of which present sizable new opportunities
in the billions of dollars in the next 5-10 years.
New business wins in Electrification in 2020
reached $180 million, positioning us well to
expand our footprint in this high-growth area.

Our Electrification initiative has been driven
by both internal research and development
and acquisitions. The acquisition of GIGAVAC
in 2018 added a leading portfolio of high
voltage protection on EVs and charging
infrastructure. Our strategy includes expanding
energy management expertise and capabilities
through joint ventures and acquisitions. More
recently, the acquisition of Lithium Balance
propels Sensata into Battery Management
Solutions and energy storage offerings.

Within our automotive business, we are
engaged with nearly all of the world’s

leading OEMs that are launching battery EVs.
Importantly, Sensata contributes 20% higher
content to EVs than a comparable internal
combustion engine vehicle, and in 2020, when
EVs represented about 3% of total global auto
production, EV revenues comprised about 5%
of our total automotive revenues. Sensata com-
ponents in EVs are not entirely new: at least
50% carry over from non-EVs, including tire
pressure, brake pressure for electronic stability
control, and cabin comfort pressure sensors.
We see continued growth for our differentiated
solutions in this rapid-growth arena that also
provides important benefits of cleaner air.

EXPANDING MEGATREND INITIATIVES:

SMART & CONNECTED

In late 2020 we reached commercial
deployment, a key proof point, in our Smart

& Connected initiative, with the initial rollout
of our first fleet customer on a new SaaS
business model. This represents the first
implementation of a full-stack solution for
fleets, addressing safety and efficiency,
including a vehicle area network, cloud-

based data insight delivery solutions, a web
portal with data insights, mobile apps, and
integrations with third-party telematics service
providers. The fleet retrofit portion addresses a
further $6 billion market opportunity by 2030.
In addition, through the OEM channel, we have
won $100 million in new business with truck
and trailer OEMs, which represents a $1 billion
market opportunity.

Now, with the acquisition of Xirgo Technologies
in early 2021, we are strengthening our
position as a data insight provider across
transportation and logistics end markets and
significantly accelerating our growth in Smart
& Connected and loT areas, bringing our total
addressable market opportunity to $15 billion
by 2030. Xirgo, a leading telematics and data
insight provider, expands our offering into
light-duty vehicles, cargo, and containers.
We've partnered with this high-growth,
high-margin business previously, and respect
its complementary capabilities, including



££& We are pleased to drive forward into the year with increasing

revenues, expanding margins, and strong free cash flow generation,

supported by an expanding solution set, market recovery, significant

secular growth, and opportunities for meaningful M&A. %

high-value sensing applications and sources
of data insights and its customer base of
leading channel partners. We believe Xirgo
will advance Sensata meaningfully beyond
our vehicle OEM customers to a broader
fleet ecosystem.

We are enthusiastic about our progress— and
the opportunities going forward—for Smart
& Connected and Electrification, and believe
these important initiatives will further
differentiate Sensata.

2021 OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, we anticipate that the
accelerated end-market recovery in the

fourth quarter will continue in 2021, when

all our end markets are forecast to grow
year-over-year. We expect strong revenue
growth, with differentiated margins, despite
the semiconductor chip shortage weighing on
many industries in the first half of the year.
Sensata’s robust global supply chain and early
actions to ensure supply position us well to
achieve our targeted 10-15% organic revenue
growth and 38-55% improvement in adjusted
earnings per share, compared to 2020. These
estimates do not include any contribution from
Xirgo, which is expected to add approximately
$100 million in annualized revenue and be
accretive to adjusted net income in 2021. We
are pleased to drive forward into the year with
increasing revenues, expanding margins, and

strong free cash flow generation, supported
by an expanding solution set, market recovery,
significant secular growth, and opportunities
for meaningful M&A.

SENSATA FOUNDATION

The SensataTechnologies Foundation
contributes to the communities where Sensata
operates, focused on fostering passion for
STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering, and
Mathematics) subjects in local schools.

Throughout Sensata’s long history of
supporting our communities, we have

assisted outreach programs that nurture and
aid education, economic development, civic
involvement, and diversity. In 2020, despite
the pandemic, employee volunteers dedicated
time in their communities to service projects at
24 organizations and met emergency requests
for face masks, face shields, and other PPE to
support COVID responses at local hospitals
and medical facilities. The Sensata Foundation
committed more than $500,000 in financial
grants to 32 deserving organizations for 2021.
As informed by our Black Employee Network
resource group, the Sensata Foundation also
supported the Equal Justice Initiative in 2020.
Through all our corporate responsibility efforts,
an important aspect of our industry leadership,
we are making positive and enduring changes
in our communities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
(ESG)

Sensata has long focused its product
development on applications that foster a
greener and cleaner world. These efforts have
recently expanded with increased investments
in our Smart & Connected and Electrification
initiatives. Furthermore, we believe an
inclusive culture is vital to Sensata’s ability to
innovate and collaborate. This past summer we
joined the Tech Compact for Social Justice—a
commitment to make the tech industry more
welcoming and inclusive for black, Latinx,

and Indigenous people. We've added valuable
and diverse voices and skillsets through the
natural evolution of our Board of Directors to
build our company for long-term success.

In the past year, Sensata has received
improved ratings from both MSCI and
Sustainalytics, two major independent ESG
ranking firms, placing the company in the “low
risk” category. Mitigating ESG risk is becoming
important to more institutional investors and
Sensata shareholders worldwide, adding a
powerful rationale for these activities.

" MSCI ESG Ratings for Sensata Technologies Holding PLC (ST), Aug. 25, 2020
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Separately, we are working with third-party
advisors on a materiality assessment and

the results will be incorporated into our first
Sustainability Report that we intend to publish
later in 2021.

In closing, | thank our valued customers, my
Sensata colleagues, our shareholders, our
Board members, and business partners for
their support during 2020. While this year’s
events shook our world during my first full year
as Sensata’s CEQ, I'm extremely proud that

our organization and people rose to meet and
overcome the challenges in front of them.

| look forward to reporting on our progress in
the coming year.

L

Jeffrey J. Cote
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER & PRESIDENT

2 SUSTAINALYTICS ESG Risk Rating Report for Sensata Technologies Holding PLC (ST), Aug. 3, 2020
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Cautionary Statements Concerning Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K (this "Report"), including any documents incorporated by reference herein, includes
"forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-
looking statements relate to analyses and other information that are based on forecasts of future results and estimates of
amounts not yet determinable. These forward-looking statements also relate to our future prospects, developments, and business
strategies. These forward-looking statements may be identified by terminology such as "may," "will," "could," "should,"
"expect," "anticipate," "believe," "estimate," "predict," "project," "forecast," "continue," "intend," "plan," and similar terms or
phrases, or the negative of such terminology, including references to assumptions. However, these terms are not the exclusive

means of identifying such statements.

Forward-looking statements contained herein, or in other statements made by us, are made based on management’s
expectations and beliefs concerning future events impacting us. These statements are subject to uncertainties and other
important factors relating to our operations and business environment, all of which are difficult to predict, and many of which
are beyond our control, that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those matters expressed or implied by
forward-looking statements. Although we believe that our plans, intentions, and expectations reflected in, or suggested by, such
forward-looking statements are reasonable, we can give no assurances that any of the events anticipated by these forward-
looking statements will occur or, if any of them do, what impact they will have on our results of operations and financial
condition.

We believe that the following important factors, among others (including those described in Item 1A, "Risk Factors,"
included elsewhere in this Report), could affect our future performance and the liquidity and value of our securities and cause
our actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by forward-looking statements made by us or on our
behalf:

e Future risks and existing uncertainties associated with the coronavirus ("COVID-19") pandemic, which continues to
have a significant adverse impact on our business and operations including: (i) full or partial shutdowns of our
facilities as mandated by government decrees, (ii) limited ability to adjust certain costs due to government actions,
(ii1) significant travel restrictions and “work-from-home” orders limiting the availability of our workforce, (iv)
supplier constraints and supply-chain interruptions, (v) logistics challenges and limitations, (vi) reduced demand
from certain customers, (vi) uncertainties associated with a protracted economic slowdown that could negatively
affect the financial condition of our customers and suppliers, and (vii) uncertainties and volatility in the global
capital markets;

e instability and changes in the global markets, including regulatory, political, economic, governmental, and military
matters, such as the recent exit of the United Kingdom (the "U.K.") from the European Union (the "EU");

» adverse conditions or competition in the industries upon which we are dependent, including the automotive industry;
» losses and costs as a result of intellectual property, product liability, warranty, and recall claims;
*  market acceptance of new product introductions and product innovations;

» inability to realize all of the revenue or achieve anticipated gross margins from products subject to existing purchase
orders for which we are currently engaged in development;

*  supplier interruption or non-performance, limiting our access to manufactured components or raw materials;
+  risks related to the acquisition or disposition of businesses, or the restructuring of our business;

»  labor disruptions or increased labor costs;

«  competitive pressure from customers that could require us to reduce prices or result in reduced demand;

»  security breaches, cyber theft of our intellectual property, and other disruptions to our information technology
infrastructure, or improper disclosure of confidential, personal, or proprietary data;

*  our ability to attract and retain key senior management and qualified technical, sales, and other personnel;
»  foreign currency risks, changes in socioeconomic conditions, or changes to monetary and fiscal policies;

» our level of indebtedness, or our inability to meet debt service obligations or comply with the covenants contained in
the credit agreement and senior notes indentures;

»  changes to current policies, such as trade tariffs, by various governments worldwide;

»  risks related to the potential for goodwill impairment;



» the impact of challenges by taxing authorities of our historical and future tax positions or our allocation of taxable
income among our subsidiaries, unfavorable developments in taxation sentiments in countries where we do business,
and challenges to the sovereign taxation regimes of EU member states by the European Commission and the
Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development;

»  changes to, or inability to comply with, various regulations, including tax laws, import/export regulations, anti-
bribery laws, environmental, health, and safety laws, and other governmental regulations; and

e risks related to our domicile in the U.K.

In addition, the extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will continue to impact our business and financial results going
forward will be dependent on future developments, such as the length and severity of the crisis, the potential resurgence of the
crisis, future government actions in response to the crisis and the overall impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the global
economy and capital markets, among many other factors, all of which remain highly uncertain and unpredictable.

All forward-looking statements attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf speak only as of the date of this Report
and are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained in this Report. We undertake no obligation to
update or revise forward-looking statements that may be made to reflect events or circumstances that arise after the date made
or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. We urge readers to review carefully the risk factors described in this Report
and in the other documents that we file with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. You can read these
documents at www.sec.gov or on our website at www.sensata.com.

PART I
ITEM1. BUSINESS
The Company

The reporting company is Sensata Technologies Holding plc, a public limited company incorporated under the laws of
England and Wales, and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the "Company," "Sensata," "we," "our," and
Vlus.H

We are a global industrial technology company that develops, manufactures, and sells sensors, electrical protection
products, and other products that are used in mission-critical systems and applications that create valuable business insights for
our customers and end users. For more than 100 years, we have been providing a wide range of customized, sensor-rich
solutions that address increasingly complex engineering and operating performance requirements to help our customers solve
their most difficult challenges in the automotive, heavy vehicle and off-road ("HVOR"), industrial, and aerospace industries.
We operate in, and report financial information for, two reportable segments: Performance Sensing and Sensing Solutions.

Original equipment manufacturers ("OEMSs") are producing products that are safer, cleaner, more efficient, more
electrified, and increasingly more connected. Our sensors are used by our customers to translate a physical parameter, such as
pressure, temperature, position, or location of an object, into electronic signals that our customers’ products and solutions can
act upon. Our electrical protection product portfolio is comprised of various sensors, controllers, receivers, and software, and
includes high-voltage contactors and other products embedded within systems to maximize their efficiency and protect them
from excessive heat or current.

We have long-standing relationships with a geographically diverse base of leading OEMs and other multinational
companies. In geographic and product markets where we lack established relationships with customers, we rely on third-party
distributors to sell our products. We have had relationships with our top ten customers for an average of 31 years. Our largest
customer accounted for approximately 7% of our net revenue for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Business Strategy

Our business strategy involves leveraging certain new and emerging technology trends, which complement our existing
product offerings, to deliver products used in mission-critical systems and applications that create valuable business insights for
our customers and end users. Each of these trends, which we refer to as “megatrends,” is expected to significantly transform the
industries in which we operate. Refer to Megatrends section for additional detailed information on the new and emerging
technologies that we consider key to our strategies.

These megatrends are also creating greater secular demand for our products, resulting in growth that exceeds end-market
production growth in many of the markets we serve, a defining characteristic of our company. We refer to this as “market



outgrowth,” which describes the impact of an increasing quantity and value of our products used in customer systems and
applications, and is only loosely correlated to normal unit demand fluctuations in the markets we serve.

Our customers are facing ever increasing mandates, due to regulation and consumer demand, to make their products
cleaner, more efficient, and safer, while providing more comfort-related features. Our sensors are being used in mission-critical
systems and applications that are addressing these demands, including those that help: industrial customers to make more
efficient pumps and boilers; automotive customers to meet the standards of emissions and pollution control legislation; and fleet
managers to proactively monitor the health of their vehicles, conduct proactive maintenance, optimize fleet operations, and
enhance driver safety. We consider these capabilities to be core to our historical success, and will continue to be significant
drivers of outgrowth in the future.

We believe the medium- to long-term outlook for internal combustion engine powertrain products will evolve with the
advent of more environmentally friendly vehicles that rely more heavily on Electrification (as defined in the Megatrends section
below) and other adjacent technologies. Accordingly, we are focusing on expanding our market share on electrified platforms,
including both sensor and electrical protection products. Many of the components and subsystems that we have historically
developed and produced will play a significant role in this expansion, but we will also seek strategic partnerships and
acquisitions to accelerate the growth and transformation of our product portfolio. By entering into such relationships, we obtain
access to new technologies and solutions, which we can leverage with our existing expertise to optimize and expand our
product portfolio. Beyond Electrification, we also recognize the potential market impact of autonomous vehicles and advanced
driver-assistance systems ("ADAS"), and are developing sensors to facilitate development of this market by manufacturers of
vehicles (light passenger, heavy on and off-road) and material handling equipment.

In addition, in our HVOR business, we are working on integrating our current products with software and services, as
well as data collection, analysis, and insight capabilities, that will provide a large opportunity across the market segment. We
also believe that adoption of driver assistance technologies, like radar, is a growth area — whether mandated by government
legislation (such as the pedestrian safety requirements in the European Union ("EU")) or adopted by OEMs ahead of
regulations.

We are also seeking to expand our business and accelerate market share in other areas that we believe will experience
high growth in the future, such as deployment of Internet of Things (“IoT”) solutions for buildings, factories and warehouses.
This is driven by the need for smarter and more connected sensors that collect, analyze, and provide insights into how a
particular industrial environment is operating and ultimately make that environment more productive and efficient. We also
believe that the industrial markets will see higher adoption of autonomous technologies to enhance productivity resulting in
higher demand for our radar solutions.

Megatrends

New and emerging technology trends that are expected to significantly impact our customers and our business strategy
include Electrification, Smart & Connected, and Industrial ToT.

Electrification

Our objective with the Electrification initiative is to become a leading and foundational player in solutions that will
support a future that is more environmentally-sustainable and efficient, including (1) clean energy transportation systems and
components in electrified vehicles, charging stations, and chargers and (2) mission-critical high voltage components and
subsystems with high value solutions in advanced smart grid technologies. Electrification provides a significant opportunity for
us to expand the use of our sensors and electrical protection products within the automotive, industrial, and HVOR industries.
For example, in the automotive industry, as customers seek to extend the range of batteries and improve the efficiency of
electric vehicles, they are incorporating electrical subsystems, which require additional sensors to monitor, control, and
optimize what is happening within the vehicle. Further, higher voltage battery systems are also driving increased needs for
electrical protection. Sensors are also used in thermal management applications to help maintain batteries at optimal
temperatures as well as electric motors and heat pumps. We are expanding our capabilities in Electrification, including through
third party collaboration, and expect continued material expansion of this initiative within our automotive, HVOR, and
industrial businesses.

Smart & Connected

Our objective with the Smart & Connected initiative is to become the leader in delivering diagnostic insight and
prognostics to fleet operators and owners. Smart & Connected provides a large market opportunity across heavy, medium, and
light vehicles. Leveraging certain of the sensor products and embedded and wireless systems expertise in our existing tire



pressure monitoring portfolio, we are developing smart, connected, modular, and full-stack solutions that collect data from
wireless sensors or related vehicle system information through a connected vehicle-area network and deliver actionable insight
to drivers, maintenance workers and back-office personnel through mobile applications, web portals and via cloud Application
Programming Interfaces ("APIs") for integration in other enterprise systems. These solutions allow fleet managers to
proactively monitor the health of their vehicles, conduct proactive maintenance, optimize fleet operations and enhance driver
safety. We are leveraging our leadership position in tire pressure monitoring systems and know-how of vehicles and use cases
within fleet operations to deliver scalable platforms to a variety of players within the connected ecosystem, including Tier 1
suppliers, OEMs, telematics services providers and fleets directly.

Industrial IoT

Our objective in the Industrial IoT/Digitization of Factories & Warehouses initiative is to become a leader in factory
smart sensing and edge intelligence with solutions in machine health and materials tracking. The digitization of factories and
warehouses represent fast-growing opportunities that we believe will drive new business wins and market outgrowth for our
industrial business. Bringing our products to enhance material handling and electrification charging infrastructure represent fast
growing opportunities that we believe will drive industrial business content and market outgrowth.

Performance Sensing

The Performance Sensing reportable segment has historically also been an operating segment. As discussed further in
Note 20, “Segment Reporting,” of our audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes thereto (our
"Financial Statements") included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K (this "Report"), in the fourth quarter of 2020,
we determined, based on various factors, that the Performance Sensing operating segment should be divided into two operating
segments, Automotive and HVOR. The Automotive and HVOR operating segments meet the criteria for aggregation into the
Performance Sensing reportable segment, and no change was made to the overall components of, or the business conducted by,
the Performance Sensing reportable segment. Accordingly, no prior period information has been recast.

Performance Sensing, which accounted for approximately 73% of our net revenue in fiscal year 2020, primarily serves
the automotive and HVOR industries through development and manufacture of sensors, high-voltage contactors, and other
solutions used in mission-critical systems and applications such as those in subsystems of automobiles, on-road trucks, and off-
road equipment (e.g., tire pressure monitoring, thermal management, electrical protection, regenerative braking, powertrain
(engine/transmission), and exhaust management). Our products are used in subsystems that, among other things, improve
operating performance and efficiency, as well as contribute to environmentally sustainable and safe solutions as the world
continues to pivot in those directions.

Customers

Our customers include leading global automotive, on-road truck, construction, and agriculture OEMs, the companies that
supply parts directly to these OEMs, which are known as Tier 1 suppliers, and various aftermarket distributors. We believe
large OEMs and other multinational companies are increasingly demanding a global presence to supply sensors and electrical
protection products for their key platforms worldwide. As our customers develop common global electrified platforms to drive
scale and efficiency across their global markets, we are well positioned to serve them with our global manufacturing and
technical centers. We provide our customers with the worldwide technical and manufacturing presence to enable their success
around the globe.

Markets

The global sensor market is characterized by a broad range of products and applications across a diverse set of market
segments. According to an October 2020 report prepared by Strategy Analytics, Inc., the global automotive sensor market was
$20.3 billion in 2020, compared to $23.7 billion in 2019 as a result of the global economic impacts caused by the coronavirus
("COVID-19") pandemic.

As the markets we serve continue to drive improved safety, efficiency, and performance we are well positioned to grow
in this expanding market opportunity. Our automotive solutions are present in a wide variety of automotive systems and
subsystems playing a critical role in ensuring the functionality and safety of the vehicle’s operation. Within the combustion and
electrified propulsion architecture we provide various sensor solutions (i.e. electric motor position, gasoline direct injection, oil
pressure monitoring, fuel delivery, and various others) that enable superior functionality, efficiency, and optimized performance
to reduce environmental impact. Further protecting the environment are our exhaust after-treatment devices used in closed-loop
feedback control to reduce emissions of traditional and hybrid powertrains. Our chassis (i.e. tire pressure monitoring systems),
thermal management, electrical protection (i.e. high voltage contactors), and safety (i.e. braking and electronic stability control)



sensor/product solutions all play critical roles in enabling the safety, improved performance, and increased efficiency and range
of electrified vehicles and combustion powertrains.

Applications we serve require close engineering collaboration between us and the OEM or their Tier 1 suppliers.
Solutions are designed to meet application-specific requirements with customer specific fit, form, and function. As a result,
OEMs and Tier 1 suppliers make significant investments in selecting, integrating, and testing sensors as part of their product
development. Once our solutions are designed into an application, we are well positioned as the incumbent supplier for the
application due to the high degree of sensor customization and application/vehicle platform certification. This results in high
switching costs for automotive and HVOR manufacturers once a sensor is designed into a particular system or platform. We
believe this is one of the reasons that sensors are rarely changed during a platform life-cycle, which in the case of the
automotive industry typically lasts five to seven years. OEMs and Tier 1 suppliers look to partner with suppliers that have a
proven track record of quality, on-time delivery, and performance, as well as the engineering and manufacturing scale/resources
to meet their needs over the multi-year lifecycle of these highly engineered vehicles and systems. As electrified and
autonomous automobile platforms continue to evolve and grow, we expect OEM and Tier 1 suppliers to require sensing
partners that can continue to meet their increasing needs for mission-critical sensors and solutions enabling their global vehicle
strategies. We continue to drive investments in new technologies, competencies, and solutions that will enable our customers'
success as they pivot toward an electrified world. The automotive industry provides one of the largest markets for sensors,
giving participants with a presence in this market significant scale advantages over those participating only in smaller, more
niche industrial and medical markets.

Market Trends

Net revenue growth from the automotive and HVOR sensor markets served by Performance Sensing has historically been
driven, we believe, by three principal trends, including (1) growth in the number of vehicles produced globally, (2) expansion in
the number and type of sensors per vehicle, and (3) efforts toward commercializing higher value sensors. In addition, we
believe that the automotive and HVOR sensor markets are and will continue to be substantially impacted in the near term by
current megatrends, primarily Electrification, as well as other trends such as connectivity and ADAS.

Light vehicle production: Global production of light vehicles had consistently demonstrated steady annual growth for
most of the decade prior to 2019, when it started to plateau. This was demonstrated at the time by the fourth quarter 2019 LMC
Automotive "Global Car & Truck Forecast," which showed that the global production of light vehicles in fiscal year 2019
decreased from the prior year by 5.0%. In fiscal year 2020, production was significantly lower according to the fourth quarter
2020 LMC Automotive "Global Car & Truck Forecast," which showed that the global production of light vehicles in fiscal year
2020 further decreased from the prior year by 16.2% to approximately 74.9 million units. We expect global production of light
vehicles to see a strong rebound in fiscal year 2021, although not yet back to the level of 2019 production. This increasing trend
in light vehicle production is expected to continue beyond 2021 due to population growth and increased usage of cars in
emerging markets. Current estimates anticipate global production of light vehicles to approach 100 million units by fiscal year
2028.

On Road Truck Production: Global production of heavy-duty trucks has also demonstrated consistent growth prior to
2019. In fiscal year 2020, global production was approximately 5% lower than fiscal year 2019 according to industry data. We
expect production of trucks to improve in North America and Europe in fiscal year 2021. This increasing trend in truck
production is expected to continue beyond 2021 due to increased freight loads globally.

Number of sensors per vehicle: We believe that the numbers of sensors used per vehicle will continue to be driven by
increasing requirements in vehicle emissions, efficiency, safety, and comfort-related control systems that depend on sensors for
proper functioning, such as electronic stability control, tire pressure monitoring, advanced driver assistance, and advanced
combustion and exhaust after-treatment applications. For example, government regulation of emissions, including fuel economy
standards such as the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration's Corporate Average Fuel Economy requirements in the
United States (the "U.S.") and emissions requirements such as "Euro 6d" in Europe, "China National 6" in China, and "Bharat
Stage VI" in India require advanced sensors to achieve these performance metrics. Sensors are a key enabler for a vehicle’s
systems and sub-systems to meet the ever-increasing requirements in a vehicle’s operation.

Increasing safety requirements and needs for electrification are also key trends driving increased sensor content in
vehicles. These trends are driving advanced braking systems as they transition from traditional hydraulic brakes towards
electromechanical braking and regenerative braking systems, thus driving additional content in pressure and force sensing.
Furthermore, electrified vehicles are driving more sophisticated thermal management systems to control heating and cooling
systems throughout the vehicle, and additional content in battery management systems to optimize drive range and safety in
electrical protection as battery voltages increase.



Higher value sensors: We believe that our revenue growth has been augmented by a continuing shift away from legacy
sensors to more solid-state sensors and related solutions that include controllers, receivers, and software, and will continue to
grow as our sensors get "smarter” with more embedded algorithms. As we strive to increase the value we bring to the market
and our customers, we are continuously looking to drive increased data-based insights that are derived from our foundational
sensing solutions. Our ability to provide our customer with insights into the systems/sub-systems we serve increases the value
of our offering and enables improved performance, safety, efficiency, and environmental impacts. Our focus on delivering
enhanced value through our solutions to the market positions us to drive profitable revenue growth as the market demands
continue to evolve.

New Technology: Automobiles and heavy vehicles continue to evolve with new alternative technologies being developed
to make these vehicles more efficient, reliable, financially viable, and safe. We believe that this trend has the potential to drive
growth in our business for the foreseeable future, particularly in the areas of Electrification, Smart & Connected, ADAS, and
autonomy. Moreover, we believe our broad customer base, global diversification, and evolving portfolio provide the foundation
that will allow us to grow with these megatrends across a diverse set of markets.

For example, we expect this growth to include content growth in both hybrid and electric vehicles. Hybrid vehicles
require systems and sensors to drive high efficiency across the powertrain, managing better diagnostics, more efficient
combustion, and reduced emissions. Also, sensor content on vehicle climate control and thermal management systems, where
our market share is high, is increasing. This is driven by the need for high efficiency control of thermal management in battery
electric vehicle heating and cooling systems as vehicle manufacturers look to drive increased vehicle range where the thermal
loads on the vehicle become critical to manage. As long-range plug-in hybrid and full battery electric vehicles gain market
share, multiple instances of efficient thermal management across the battery, electronics, and cabin systems are required to
protect and manage the vehicle, which drives additional core Sensata sensor and electrical protection content available in the
market today.

Safety and efficiency systems are also evolving on hybrid and electric vehicles. New and emerging energy recuperation
technologies, such as regenerative motors, require additional sensing content to manage and efficiently switch between
traditional braking systems and regenerative braking. Additionally, semi-automated vehicles containing advanced driver
assistance systems benefit from more efficient and faster electromechanical braking systems, driving additional sensor content
to control these brakes. Each of these systems enable more efficient use of energy, enabling greater electric vehicle range.

New content in high voltage electrical protection from our fiscal year 2018 acquisition of GIGAVAC, LLC
("GIGAVAC") addresses many of the needs in evolving electric vehicle powertrain systems with higher voltage systems that
must be properly controlled and protected as vehicle voltages and electrical currents increase. This protection safeguards the
expensive electronics used to power the vehicle and allowing for an increase in power levels to improve charging times.

Emerging Markets: We have a long-standing position in emerging markets, including a presence in China for more than
20 years. With our presence in China, we believe that our automotive and HVOR businesses are well positioned to grow. With
sustained vehicle modernization and tightening regulations in China, we expect our content per vehicle in China will continue
to increase, moving towards the levels we see in developed markets. In addition to China, we are well positioned to grow in the
next wave of emerging markets, such as India, where we will be able to serve the market needs with our vast global sensing
solution portfolio and technical/manufacturing capabilities.

Product Categories

The following table presents the key products, solutions, applications, systems, and end markets related to the product
categories in Performance Sensing:

Key Products/Solutions Key Applications/Systems Key End Markets
Product category: Sensors
Pressure sensors Thermal management and air conditioning systems Automotive
Speed and position sensors Powertrain HVOR
High temperature sensors Exhaust after-treatment

Suspension

Braking

Tire pressure monitoring
Operator controls
Radar solutions

Product category: Electrical protection

High-voltage contactors Electrical protection Automotive
Battery management system Electrical powertrain HVOR
Battery management



The table below sets forth the amount of net revenue generated by our sensor product category in Performance Sensing,
reconciled to total segment net revenue, for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018:

For the year ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2020 2019 2018

Net revenue:
Sensors $ 2,171,364 $§ 2,489,644 § 2,532,631
Electrical protection 35,366 41273 7,423
Other " 17,080 15,099 87,597
Performance Sensing net revenue $ 2223810 $ 2,546,016 $ 2,627,651

M Beginning in the year ended December 31, 2020, we adjusted our product categories to better reflect how we view our

products. The product category we previously referred to as "controls" was renamed to "electrical protection," and our
GIGAVAC products, which were previously grouped in "other," have been recast into "electrical protection." The
amount of Performance Sensing revenue recast from "other" to "electrical protection" in the years ended December 31,
2019 and 2018 was $41.3 million and $7.4 million, respectively. The "sensors" product category was unchanged.

Competitors

Within each of the principal product categories in Performance Sensing, we compete with a variety of independent
suppliers. We believe that the key competitive factors in the markets served by this segment are product performance in
mission-critical operating environments, quality, service, reliability, manufacturing footprint, and commercial competitiveness.
We believe that our ability to design and produce customized solutions globally, breadth and scale of product offerings,
technical expertise and development capability, product service and responsiveness, and a commercially competitive offering,
make us well positioned to succeed in these markets. We are experts in the applications we serve, enabling us to provide
industry leading solutions to our customers. We take great pride in our ability to be a strategic partner for our customers as we
head toward an electrified future where clean energy, safety, and efficiency are of the utmost importance.

Sensing Solutions

Sensing Solutions, which accounted for approximately 27% of our net revenue in fiscal year 2020, primarily serves the
industrial and aerospace industries through development and manufacture of a broad portfolio of application-specific sensor and
electrical protection products used in a diverse range of industrial markets, including the appliance, heating, ventilation and air
conditioning ("HVAC"), semiconductor, material handling, factory automation, and water management markets, as well as the
aerospace market.

Some of the products the segment sells include pressure and position sensors, motor and compressor protectors, high-
voltage contactors, solid state relays, bimetal electromechanical controls, thermal and magnetic-hydraulic circuit breakers,
power inverters, charge controllers, and IoT solutions. Our products perform many functions including prevention of damage
from excess heat or electrical current, optimization of system performance, low-power circuit control, and power conversion
from direct current ("DC") power to alternating current ("AC") power. We believe that we are a leading supplier of electrical
protection products in the majority of the key applications and systems in which we compete.

Customers

Our customers include a wide range of industrial and commercial manufacturers and suppliers across multiple end
markets, primarily OEMs in the climate control, appliance, semiconductor, medical, energy and infrastructure, data/telecom,
material handling, factory automation, and aerospace industries, as well as Tier 1 aerospace and motor and compressor
suppliers.

Markets

Demand for our sensor products is driven by many of the same factors as in the automotive and HVOR sensor markets:
regulation of emissions, greater energy efficiency, and safety, as well as consumer demand for new features. Gross Domestic
Product ("GDP") growth is a broad indicator for demand for our consolidated industrial markets over the long term. We use
Purchasing Managers' Index ("PMI") to gauge short-term trends in the markets we serve.

We continue to focus our efforts on expanding our presence in all global geographies, both emerging and developed and
serving our global customers in a highly efficient and cost-effective manner. Our customers include established multinationals



as well as local producers in emerging markets such as China, India, Eastern Europe, and Turkey. China continues to remain a
priority for us because of its export focus and the increasing domestic consumption of products that use our devices.

Product Categories

The following table presents the significant product categories offered by Sensing Solutions and the corresponding key
products, solutions, applications, systems, and end markets:

Key Products/Solutions

Key Applications/Systems

Key End Markets

Product category: Electrical protection devices

Bimetal electromechanical controls
Motor protectors
Motor starters
Thermostats
Switches
Circuit breakers
Thermal circuit breakers
Magnetic-hydraulic circuit breakers
High-voltage contactors
Battery management system

Product category: Sensors

Linear and rotary position sensors
Linear variable differential transformers
Pressure sensors

Aircraft controls

HVAC/Refrigeration

Industrial equipment
Small/large appliances

Lighting

DC motors

Commercial and military aircraft
Marine/industrial

Data and telecom equipment
Medical equipment

Recreational vehicles

HVAC/Refrigeration

Air compressors

Hydraulic machinery

Motion control systems

Pumps and storage tanks
Commercial and military aircraft
10T solutions

Aerospace and defense
Industrial
HVAC/Refrigeration
Automotive

Marine

Medical

Energy/solar

Aerospace and defense
Industrial automation
HVAC/Refrigeration
Motors

Marine

Energy

The table below sets forth the amount of net revenue generated by our sensors and electrical protection product categories
in Sensing Solutions, reconciled to total segment net revenue, for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018:

(In thousands)
Net revenue:

Electrical protection )
Sensors
Other V@

Sensing Solutions net revenue

1

For the year ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018

468,635 $ 532,358 $ 514,749
209,244 223,282 222,649
143,889 148,975 156,578

821,768 § 904,615 $ 893,976

Beginning in the year ended December 31, 2020, we adjusted our product categories to better reflect how we view our

products. The product category we previously referred to as "controls" was renamed to "electrical protection,”" and our
GIGAVAC products, which were previously grouped in "other," have been recast into "electrical protection." The
amount of Sensing Solutions revenue recast from "other" to "electrical protection” in the years ended December 31, 2019
and 2018 was $50.6 million and $6.0 million, respectively. The "sensors" product category was unchanged.

(2)

Competitors

Primarily includes thermal management solutions, DC to AC power converters, and brushless DC motors.

Within each of the principal product categories in Sensing Solutions, we compete with divisions of large multinational
industrial corporations and companies with smaller market share that compete primarily in specific markets, applications,
systems, or products. We believe that the key competitive factors in these markets are product performance, quality, and

reliability.

Technology and Intellectual Property

We develop products that address increasingly complex engineering and operating performance requirements to help our
customers solve their most difficult challenges in the automotive, HVOR, industrial, and aerospace industries. We believe that
continued focused investment in research and development ("R&D") is critical to our future growth and maintaining our
leadership positions in the markets we serve. Our R&D efforts are directly related to timely development of new and enhanced
products that are central to our business strategy. We continuously develop our technologies to meet an evolving set of
customer requirements and new product introductions. We conduct such activities in areas that we believe will increase our
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long-term revenue growth. Our development expense is typically associated with engineering core technology platforms to
specific applications and engineering major upgrades that improve the functionality or reduce the cost of existing products. As
discussed in the Megatrends section above, one of the areas we are focusing on is Smart & Connected. This initiative will be
based on many of our current products and technology (associated with embedded and wireless systems), but will involve more
complex software, systems, and solutions. In addition, we continually consider new technologies where we may have expertise
for potential investment or acquisition.

An increasing portion of our R&D activities are being directed towards technologies and megatrends that we believe have
the potential for significant future growth, but relate to products that are not currently within our core business or include new
features and capabilities for existing products. Expenses related to these activities are less likely to result in increased near-term
revenue than our more mainstream development activities.

We benefit from many development opportunities at an early stage for several reasons: (1) we are the incumbent in many
systems for our key customers; (2) we have strong design and service capability; and (3) our global engineering teams are
located in close proximity to key customers in regional business centers. We work closely with our customers to deliver
solutions that meet their needs. As a result of the long development lead times and embedded nature of our products, we
collaborate closely with our customers throughout the design and development phase of their products. Systems development
by our customers typically requires significant multi-year investment for certification and qualification, which are often
government or customer mandated. We believe the capital commitment and time required for this process significantly
increases the switching costs once a customer has designed and installed a particular sensor into a system.

We rely primarily on patents, trade secrets, manufacturing know-how, confidentiality procedures, and licensing
arrangements to maintain and protect our intellectual property rights. While we consider our patents to be valuable assets, we do
not believe that our overall competitive position is dependent on patent protection or that our overall business is dependent
upon any single patent or group of related patents. Many of our patents protect specific functionality in our products, and others
consist of processes or techniques that result in reduced manufacturing costs.

The following table presents information on our patents and patent applications as of December 31, 2020:

U.S. Non-U.S.
Patents 313 483

Pending patent applications, filed within the last five years 120 283

Our patents have expiration dates ranging from 2020 to 2042. We also own a portfolio of trademarks and license various
patents and trademarks. "Sensata" and our logo are trademarks.

We use licensing arrangements with respect to certain technology provided in our sensor and electrical protection
products. In 2006, we entered into a perpetual, royalty-free cross-license agreement with our former owner, Texas Instruments
Incorporated, which permits each party to use specified technology owned by the other party in its business. No license may be
terminated under the agreement, even in the event of a material breach.

Raw Materials

We use a broad range of manufactured components, subassemblies, and raw materials in the manufacture of our products
in both our Performance Sensing and Sensing Solutions segments, including those containing certain commodities, resins, and
rare earth metals, which may experience significant volatility in their price and availability due to, among other things, new
laws or regulations, including the impact of tariffs, trade barriers, and disputes, and global economic or political events
including government actions, labor strikes, suppliers' allocations to other purchasers, interruptions in production by suppliers,
changes in foreign currency exchange rates, and prevailing price levels. It is generally difficult to pass increased prices for
manufactured components and raw materials through to our customers in the form of price increases. Therefore, a significant
increase in the price or a decrease in the availability of these items could materially increase our operating costs and materially
and adversely affect our business and results of operations.

The automotive industry supply chain is currently facing a global shortage of semiconductors, the technology used to
make microchips, resulting in paused production on certain vehicles and increased costs to procure microchips. As discussed in
Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," included elsewhere in this
Report (the "MD&A"), we believe this shortage will have an adverse impact on our operating costs in fiscal year 2021. If the
impacts of this shortage are more severe than we expect, it could result in further deterioration of our results, potentially for a
longer period than currently anticipated.
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Seasonality

Because of the diverse global nature of the markets in which we operate, our net revenue is only moderately impacted by
seasonality. However, Sensing Solutions experiences some seasonality, specifically in its air conditioning and refrigeration
products, which tend to peak in the first two quarters of the year as inventory is built up for spring and summer sales. In
addition, Performance Sensing net revenue tends to be weaker in the third quarter of the year as automotive OEMs retool
production lines for the coming model year.

Human Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2020, we had approximately 19,200 employees, of whom approximately 8% were located in the U.S.
As of December 31, 2020, less than 100 of our employees were covered by collective bargaining agreements. In addition, in
various countries, local law requires our participation in works councils. As of December 31, 2020, approximately 56% of our
employees were female. We also engage contract workers in multiple locations, primarily to cost-effectively manage variations
in manufacturing volume, but also to perform engineering and other general services. As of December 31, 2020, we had
approximately 2,600 contract workers on a worldwide basis. We believe that our relations with our employees are good.

Our employees, whom we refer to as Team Sensata, are responsible for upholding our purpose — to help our customers
and partners safely deliver a cleaner, more efficient, electrified, and connected world — and embody our values in all aspects of
daily work. Our corporate values are the essence of our identity, provide a level-set foundation, and are a key way we are able
to improve our culture. Our values are passion, excellence, integrity, flexibility and "OneSensata."

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion

We believe in treating all people with respect and dignity. We strive to create and foster a supportive and understanding
environment in which all individuals realize their maximum potential within the Company, regardless of their differences. Each
employee has the personal responsibility to maintain a respectful and inclusive workplace.

We believe that each person brings unique and valuable skills and perspectives due to their varying backgrounds and
experiences. An inclusive culture is fundamental to innovation and problem-solving. It is the policy and practice of Sensata to
hire and employ individuals without regard to age, color, disability, ethnicity, family or marital status, gender identity or
expression, language, national origin, political affiliation, race, religion, sexual orientation, socio-economic status, and veteran
status or other characteristics that make our employees unique. This policy applies to all terms and conditions of employment
including recruitment and selection; compensation and benefits; professional development and training; promotions; transfers;
social and recreational programs; reductions in force; terminations, and the ongoing development of a work environment built
on the premise of gender and diversity, equity, and inclusion.

Our employee resource groups (“ERGs”) are company-sponsored groups of employees that support the inclusion,
diversity and equity goals and objectives that are determined by the Company. Sensata ERGs exist to benefit and advance their
group members by working strategically, both internally and externally. They also help contribute to Sensata's market success.
As of December 31, 2020, we had 11 ERGs globally focused on the following areas — women’s empowerment and career
growth; cultural awareness; Black and Hispanic Heritage; and emerging professionals.

Learning and Development

We believe that we will continue to be successful in executing on our business strategy by providing a broad range of
learning and development programs and opportunities. In 2017, we launched our online global learning management system,
Sensata Learning, that enables employees to access instructor-led classroom, virtual classes, or self-paced lessons. As of
December 31, 2020, we delivered 63,000 hours of training spanning various required learning, professional development and
many courses specifically on diversity, inclusion, and ethics. We have a robust talent and succession planning process and have
established specialized programs to support the development of our talent pipeline for critical roles in management,
engineering, and operations. On an annual basis, we conduct a leadership review process with our chief executive officer, our
chief human resources officer and our business and functional leaders.

Social and Human Rights Matters

We have policies related to our position on various social and human rights matters, including child labor, forced labor,
human trafficking, health and safety, non-discrimination, and environmental matters. Each of these policies can be found on our
website at www.sensata.com. Sensata’s human rights expectations apply to all of our personnel, business partners and other
parties directly linked to our operations, products or services; as such, Sensata is committed to respecting the United Nations
Guiding Principles for Business and Human Rights (2011) and its principles within our operations and supply chains.
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Sensata is committed to responsible corporate practices in the area of human rights and working conditions and aligns
with practices recommended by industry standards such as the Global Automotive Sustainability Practical Guidance and the
RBA Code of Conduct, which incorporates the International Bill of Human Rights, namely the Universal Convention of Human
Rights (1948), the International Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights and the International Covenant on Civil and
Political Rights and its two Optional Protocols (1966).

Sensata also adheres to the principles set forth in the fundamental International Labor Organization ("ILO") Conventions,
namely the Forced Labor Convention (1930), the Minimum Age Convention (1973), the Worst Forms of Child Labor
Convention (1999) and ILO Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work (1998). The working conditions of our
employees are, at minimum, in compliance with internationally recognized labor standards and the laws of the countries we
operate in. When national law directly conflicts with international human rights standards or does not fully comply with them,
Sensata will seek ways to respect internationally recognized human rights.

Employee Engagement

Our long-term success is dependent on hiring, retaining, training, rewarding, and engaging employees for the long-term.
We strive to retain and engage employees by providing competitive pay and benefits packages and a challenging and rewarding
work experience. We want our employees to feel connected to the business and company strategy, our purpose and what we are
doing to add value to them, our customers, and our investors. Our ability to create an environment where ideas are shared freely
is fundamental to ensuring our employees reach their true potential, which grants us the ability to innovate. Each person brings
unique value no matter their gender, race, age, education or place of birth. We believe an inclusive culture is vital.

Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics governing the conduct of our personnel, including our principal
executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer, and controller, and persons performing similar
functions. In addition, we have adopted a Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Employees. Copies of the current Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics and Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Employees are available on the investor relations page of
our website at www.sensata.com under Corporate Governance. We have annual required training on Sensata Learning, our
online global learning management system.

We believe our management team has the experience necessary to effectively execute our strategy and advance our
product and technology leadership. Our chief executive officer and business leaders average approximately 25 years of industry
experience. They are supported by an experienced and talented management team who is dedicated to maintaining and
expanding our position as a global leader in the industry. For discussion of the risks relating to the attraction and retention of
management and executive management employees, see Item 1A, "Risk Factors," included elsewhere in this Report.

Environmental and Governmental Regulations

Our operations and facilities are subject to numerous environmental, health, and safety laws and regulations, both
domestic and foreign, including those governing air emissions, chemical usage, water discharges, the management and disposal
of hazardous substances and wastes, and the cleanup of contaminated sites. We are, however, not aware of any threatened or
pending material environmental investigations, lawsuits, or claims involving us or our operations.

Many of our products are governed by material content restrictions and reporting requirements, examples of which
include: EU regulations, such as Registration, Evaluation, Authorization, and Restriction of Chemicals ("REACH"), Restriction
of Hazardous Substances ("RoHS"), and End of Life Vehicle ("ELV"); U.S. regulations, such as the conflict minerals
requirements of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act; and similar regulations in other countries.
Further, numerous customers, across all end markets, are requiring us to provide declarations of compliance or, in some cases,
extra material content documentation as a requirement of doing business with them.
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We are subject to compliance with laws and regulations controlling the import and export of goods and services. Certain
of our products are subject to International Traffic in Arms Regulation ("ITAR"). The export of many such ITAR-controlled
products requires an individual validated license from the U.S. State Department’s Directorate of Defense Trade Controls. The
State Department makes licensing decisions based on type of product, destination of end use, end user, national security, and
foreign policy. We have a trade compliance team and other systems in place to apply for licenses and otherwise comply with
import and export regulations. Any failure to maintain compliance with domestic and foreign trade regulations could limit our
ability to import or export raw material and finished goods across various jurisdictions. These laws and regulations are subject
to change, and any such change may require us to change technology or incur expenditures to comply with such laws and
regulations.

Compliance with environmental and governmental regulations and meeting customer requirements has increased our cost
of doing business in a variety of ways and may continue to do so in the future. We do not currently expect any material capital
expenditures during fiscal year 2021 for environmental control facilities. We also do not believe that existing or pending
legislation, regulation, or international treaties or accords, whether related to environmental or other government regulations,
are reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect in the foreseeable future on our business or the markets we serve, nor on
our results of operations, capital expenditures, earnings, competitive position, or financial standing.

Available Information

We make available free of charge on our Internet website (www.sensata.com) our Annual Reports on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to
Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such
material with, or furnish it to, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). Our website and the information
contained or incorporated therein are not intended to be incorporated into this Report.

The SEC maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy, and information statements, and other information
regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC at www.sec.gov. The contents on, or accessible through, this website or
our website are not incorporated into this filing. Further, our references to the URLs for the SEC's website and our website are
intended to be inactive textual references only.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following are important factors that could cause actual results or events to differ materially from those contained in
any forward-looking statements made by us or on our behalf. Investors should carefully consider these risks and all other
information in this Report before investing in our securities. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones
we face. Our business is also subject to general risks that affect many other companies. Additional risks and uncertainties not
presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also impair our business, operations, liquidity, and financial
condition. Many of the risks listed below are, and will be, exacerbated by the COVID-19 pandemic and any worsening of the
economic environment.

If actions taken by management to limit, monitor or control enterprise risk exposures are not successful, our business and
consolidated financial statements could be materially adversely affected. In such case, the trading price of our common stock
and debt securities could decline and investors may lose all or part of their investment.

Business and Operational Risks

We are subject to various risks related to public health crises, including the COVID-19 pandemic, which have had, and
may in the future have, material and adverse impacts on our business, financial condition, liquidity and results of
operations.

Any outbreaks of contagious diseases and other adverse public health developments in countries where we operate could
have a material and adverse impact on our business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations. For example, the
COVID-19 pandemic has caused widespread disruptions to our business in fiscal year 2020. During the first quarter of 2020,
these disruptions were primarily limited to our manufacturing operations in China, portions of which were closed during the
end of January and first half of February due to government mandates. As the virus spread to the rest of the world beginning in
March, all of our other operations outside of China also were impacted. These impacts have continued to varying degrees
throughout fiscal year 2020, as regions have had varying levels of success mitigating the impacts of the virus, resulting in
varying degrees of reopening. As of December 31, 2020, we were still experiencing disruptions, which include, depending on
the specific location, partial shutdowns of our facilities as mandated by government decree, government actions limiting our
ability to adjust certain costs, significant travel restrictions, “work-from-home” orders, limited availability of our workforce,
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supplier constraints, supply-chain interruptions, logistics challenges and limitations, and reduced demand from certain
customers.

In addition, in these challenging and dynamic circumstances, we are working to protect our employees, maintain business
continuity and sustain our operations, including ensuring the safety and protection of our people who work in our plants and
distribution centers across the world, many of whom support the manufacturing and delivery of products deemed part of the
critical infrastructure or essential businesses by the applicable local or country governments. The extent to which the
COVID-19 pandemic will continue to impact our business and financial results going forward will be dependent on future
developments such as the length and severity of the crisis, the potential resurgence of the crisis, future government actions in
response to the crisis and the overall impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the global economy and capital markets, among
many other factors, all of which remain highly uncertain and unpredictable.

In addition, the COVID-19 pandemic increases the likelihood and potential severity of other risks discussed elsewhere in
this Item 1A, "Risk Factors." These include, but are not limited to, the following:

» A protracted economic downturn could negatively affect the financial condition of the industries and customers we serve,
which may result in an increase in bankruptcies or insolvencies, a delay in payments, and decreased sales.

A scarcity of resources or other hardships caused by the COVID-19 pandemic may result in increased nationalism,
protectionism and political tensions which may cause governments and/or other entities to take actions that may have a
significant negative impact on the ability of us, our suppliers, and our customers to conduct business.

e The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic may cause us to further restructure our business or divest some of our businesses
or product lines in the future, which may have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition,
and cash flows.

e To mitigate the spread of COVID-19, we have transitioned a significant subset of our employee population to a remote
work environment, which may exacerbate various cybersecurity risks to our business, including an increased demand for
information technology ("IT") resources, an increased risk of phishing and other cybersecurity attacks, and an increased
risk of unauthorized dissemination of sensitive personal information or proprietary or confidential information.

e The COVID-19 pandemic has disrupted the supply chain, and we may experience increased difficulties in obtaining a
consistent supply of materials at stable pricing levels.

e If the financial performance of our businesses were to decline significantly as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, we
could incur a material non-cash charge to our income statement for the impairment of goodwill and other intangible
assets.

 The continued global spread of COVID-19 has led to disruption and volatility in the global capital markets, which may
increase the cost of, and adversely impact access to, capital.

e Ifthe financial performance of our businesses were to decline significantly for an extended period of time as a result of
the COVID-19 pandemic, we may face challenges to comply with the covenants contained in our credit arrangements.
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Our business is subject to numerous global risks, including regulatory, political, economic, governmental, and military
concerns and instability.

Our business, including our employees, customers, and suppliers, are located throughout the world. We employ
approximately 92% of our workforce outside of the U.S. Our customers are located throughout the world, and we have many
manufacturing, administrative, and sales facilities outside of the U.S. Our subsidiaries located outside of the U.S. generated
approximately 64% of our net revenue in fiscal year 2020, with approximately 21% in China, and we expect sales from non-
U.S. markets to continue to represent a significant portion of our total net revenue. International sales and operations are subject
to changes in local government regulations and policies, including those related to tariffs and trade barriers, investments,
taxation, exchange controls, and repatriation of earnings.

As a result, we are exposed to numerous global, regional, and local risks that could decrease revenue and/or increase
expenses, and therefore decrease our profitability. Such risks may result from instability in economic or political conditions,
inflation, recession, and/or actual or anticipated military or political conflicts, and include, without limitation: trade regulations,
including customs, import, and export matters, tariffs, trade barriers, and disputes; local employment costs, regulations, and
conditions; difficulties with, and costs for, protecting our intellectual property; challenges in collecting accounts receivable; tax
laws and regulatory changes, including examinations by taxing authorities, variations in tax laws from country to country,
changes to the terms of income tax treaties, and difficulties in the tax-efficient repatriation of earnings generated or held in a
number of jurisdictions; natural disasters; instability in economic or political conditions, inflation, recession, actual or
anticipated military or political conflicts, and potential impact due to the upcoming withdrawal of the United Kingdom (the
"U.K.") from the EU ("Brexit"); and the impact of each of the foregoing on our business operations, manufacturing, and supply
chain.

In addition, other risks are inherent in our non-U.S. operations, including the potential for changes in socio-economic
conditions and/or monetary and fiscal policies, intellectual property protection difficulties and disputes, the settlement of legal
disputes through certain foreign legal systems, the collection of receivables, exposure to possible expropriation or other
government actions, unsettled political conditions, and possible terrorist attacks. These and other factors may have a material
adverse effect on our non-U.S. operations and, therefore, on our business and results of operations.

Brexit was completed on January 31, 2020. On December 24, 2020, the EU and the U.K. reached an agreement on their
future trading relationship, the Trade and Cooperation Agreement. We are incorporated in the U.K., and we have significant
operations and a substantial workforce therein and therefore enjoy certain benefits based on the U.K.’s membership in the EU.
The terms of the Trade and Cooperation Agreement, particularly those around financial laws and regulations, tax and free trade
agreements, immigration laws, and employment laws, may impact our business and operations. Additionally, there is a risk that
other countries may decide to leave the EU. Despite the progress made on reaching the Trade and Cooperation Agreement,
there is still uncertainty surrounding Brexit, not only related to the potential affects of our business in the U.K. and the EU, but
also on global economic conditions and the stability of global financial markets, which in turn could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

We have sizable operations in China, including two principal manufacturing sites. Economic and political conditions in
China have been and may continue to be volatile and uncertain, especially as the U.S. and China continue to discuss and have
differences in trade policies. As discussed in the MD&A, increased tariff costs have increased our cost of revenue as a
percentage of net revenue in fiscal year 2020. In addition, the legal and regulatory system in China is still developing and is
subject to change. Our operations and transactions with customers in China could continue to be adversely affected by
increased tariffs and could be otherwise adversely affected by other changes to market conditions, changes to the regulatory
environment, or interpretation of Chinese law.

Adverse conditions in the industries upon which we are dependent, including the automotive industry, have had, and
may in the future have, adverse effects on our business.

We are dependent on market dynamics to sell our products, and our operating results could be adversely affected by
cyclical and reduced demand in these markets. Periodic downturns in our customers’ industries could significantly reduce
demand for certain of our products, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition,
and cash flows.

Much of our business depends on, and is directly affected by, the global automobile industry. Sales in our automotive end
markets accounted for approximately 58% of our total net revenue in fiscal year 2020. As discussed in the MD&A, demand in
the automotive end market we serve has declined from the prior year. Continued declines in demand such as discussed above,
and other adverse developments like those we have seen in past years in the automotive industry, including but not limited to
customer bankruptcies and increased demands on us for lower prices, could have adverse effects on our results of operations
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and could impact our liquidity and our ability to meet restrictive debt covenants. In addition, these same conditions could
adversely impact certain of our vendors’ financial solvency, resulting in potential liabilities or additional costs to us to ensure
uninterrupted supply to our customers.

We may incur material losses and costs as a result of product liability, warranty, and recall claims that may be brought
against us.

We have been, and will continue to be, exposed to product liability and warranty claims in the event that our products
actually or allegedly fail to perform as expected, or the use of our products results, or is alleged to result, in death, bodily injury,
and/or property damage. Accordingly, we could experience material warranty or product liability losses in the future and incur
significant costs to defend these claims. In addition, if any of our products are, or are alleged to be, defective, we may be
required to participate in a recall of the underlying end product, particularly if the defect or the alleged defect relates to product
safety. Depending on the terms under which we supply products, an OEM may hold us responsible for some or all of the repair
or replacement costs of these products under warranty when the product supplied did not perform as represented. In addition, a
product recall could generate substantial negative publicity about our business and interfere with our manufacturing plans and
product delivery obligations as we seek to repair affected products. Our costs associated with product liability, warranty, and
recall claims could be material.

We are dependent on market acceptance of our new product introductions and product innovations for future revenue
and we may not realize all of the revenue or achieve anticipated gross margins from products subject to existing awards
or for which we are currently engaged in development.

Substantially all markets in which we operate are impacted by technological change or change in consumer tastes and
preferences, which are rapid in certain markets. Our operating results depend substantially upon our ability to continually
design, develop, introduce, and sell new and innovative products; to modify existing products; and to customize products to
meet customer requirements driven by such change. There are numerous risks inherent in these processes, including the risk
that we will be unable to anticipate the direction of technological change; that we will be unable to develop and market
profitable new products and applications before our competitors or in time to satisfy customer demands; the possibility that
investment of significant time and resources will not be successful; the possibility that the marketplace does not accept our
products or services; that we are unable to retain customers that adopt our new products or services; and the risk of additional
liabilities associated with these efforts.

Our ability to generate revenue from products pending customer awards is subject to a number of important risks and
uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control, including the number of products our customers will actually produce, as
well as the timing of such production. Many of our customer agreements provide for the supply of a certain share of the
customer’s requirements for a particular application or platform, rather than for a specific quantity of products. In some cases,
we have no remedy if a customer chooses to purchase less than we expect. In cases where customers do make minimum volume
commitments to us, our remedy for their failure to meet those minimum volumes may be limited to increased pricing on those
products that the customer does purchase from us or renegotiating other contract terms. There is no assurance that such price
increases or new terms will offset a shortfall in expected revenue. In addition, some of our customers may have the right to
discontinue a program or replace us with another supplier under certain circumstances. As a result, products for which we are
currently incurring development expenses may not be manufactured by our customers at all, or may be manufactured in smaller
amounts than currently anticipated. Therefore, our anticipated future revenue from products relating to existing customer
awards or product development relationships may not result in firm orders from customers for the originally contracted amount.
We also incur capital expenditures and other costs and price our products based on estimated production volumes. If actual
production volumes were significantly lower than estimated, our anticipated revenue and gross margin from those new products
would be adversely affected. We cannot predict the ultimate demand for our customers’ products, nor can we predict the extent
to which we would be able to pass through unanticipated per-unit cost increases to our customers.

Increasing costs for, or limitations on the supply of or access to, manufactured components and raw materials may
adversely affect our business and results of operations.

We use a broad range of manufactured components, subassemblies, and raw materials in the manufacture of our products
in both our Performance Sensing and Sensing Solutions segments, including those containing certain commodities, resins, and
rare earth metals, which may experience significant volatility in their price and availability due to, among other things, new
laws or regulations, including the impact of tariffs, trade barriers, and disputes, and global economic or political events
including government actions, labor strikes, suppliers' allocations to other purchasers, interruptions in production by suppliers,
changes in foreign currency exchange rates, and prevailing price levels. It is generally difficult to pass increased prices for
manufactured components and raw materials through to our customers in the form of price increases. Therefore, a significant
increase in the price or a decrease in the availability of these items could materially increase our operating costs and materially
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and adversely affect our business and results of operations. We have entered into hedge arrangements for certain metals used in
our products in an attempt to minimize commodity pricing volatility and may continue to do so from time to time in the future.
Such hedges might not be economically successful. In addition, these hedges do not qualify as accounting hedges in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, the change in fair value of these hedges is recognized in
earnings immediately, which could cause volatility in our results of operations from quarter to quarter.

The automotive industry supply chain is currently facing a global shortage of semiconductors, the technology used to
make microchips, resulting in paused production on certain vehicles and increased costs to procure microchips. As discussed in
the MD&A, we believe this shortage will have an adverse impact on our operating costs in fiscal year 2021. If the impacts of
this shortage are more severe than we expect, it could result in further deterioration of our results, potentially for a longer period
than currently anticipated.

In connection with the implementation of our corporate strategies, we face risks associated with the acquisition of
businesses, the integration of acquired businesses, and the growth and development of these businesses.

In pursuing our corporate strategy, we often acquire other businesses. The success of this strategy is dependent upon our
ability to identify appropriate acquisition targets, negotiate transactions on favorable terms, complete transactions, and
successfully integrate them into our existing businesses. There can be no assurance that we will realize the anticipated synergies
or cost savings related to acquisitions, including, but not limited to, revenue growth and operational efficiencies, or that they
will be achieved in our estimated timeframe. We may not be able to successfully integrate and streamline overlapping functions
from future acquisitions, and integration may be more costly to accomplish than we expect. In addition, we could encounter
difficulties in managing our combined company due to its increased size and scope.

Subject to the terms of our indebtedness, we may finance future acquisitions with cash from operations, additional
indebtedness, and/or by issuing additional equity securities. In addition, we could face financial risks associated with incurring
additional indebtedness such as reducing our liquidity, limiting our access to financing markets, and increasing the amount of
service on our debt. The availability of debt to finance future acquisitions may be restricted, and our ability to make future
acquisitions may be limited. Refer to separate risk factor for additional information on risks related to our level of indebtedness.

In addition, many of the businesses that we acquire and develop will likely have significantly smaller scales of operations
prior to the implementation of our growth strategy. If we are not able to manage the growing complexity of these businesses,
including improving, refining, or revising our systems and operational practices, and enlarging the scale and scope of the
businesses, our business may be adversely affected. Other risks include developing knowledge of and experience in the new
business, integrating the acquired business into our systems and culture, recruiting professionals, and developing and
capitalizing on new relationships with experienced market participants. External factors, such as compliance with new or
revised regulations, competitive alternatives, and shifting market preferences may also impact the successful implementation of
a new line of business. Failure to manage these risks in the acquisition or development of new businesses could materially and
adversely affect our business, results of operations, and financial condition.

Restructuring our business or divesting some of our businesses or product lines in the future may have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

In pursuing our corporate strategy, we continue to evaluate the strategic fit of specific businesses and products and
occasionally dispose of or exit businesses and products. The success of this strategy is dependent upon our ability to identify
appropriate disposition targets, negotiate transactions on favorable terms, and complete transactions. Any divestitures may
result in significant write-offs, including those related to goodwill and other intangible assets, which could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. Divestitures could involve additional risks, including
difficulties in the separation of operations, services, products, and personnel; the diversion of management's attention from
other business concerns; the disruption of our business; and the potential loss of key employees. There can be no assurance that
we will be successful in addressing these or any other significant risks encountered.

We also may seek to restructure our business in the future by relocating operations, disposing of certain assets, or
consolidating operations. There can be no assurance that any restructuring of our business will not adversely affect our financial
condition, leverage, or results of operations. In addition, any significant restructuring of our business will require significant
managerial attention, which may be diverted from our other operations.

Labor disruptions or increased labor costs have had, and may in the future have, adverse impacts on our business.

A material labor disruption or work stoppage at one or more of our manufacturing or business facilities could have a
material adverse effect on our business. In addition, work stoppages occur relatively frequently in the industries in which many
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of our customers operate, such as the automotive industry. If one or more of our larger customers were to experience a material
work stoppage for any reason, that customer may halt or limit the purchase of our products. This could cause us to reduce
production levels or shut down production facilities relating to those products, which could have a material adverse effect on
our business, results of operations, and/or financial condition.

We operate in markets that are highly competitive and competitive pressures could require us to lower our prices or
result in reduced demand for our products.

We operate in markets that are highly competitive, and we compete on the basis of product performance in mission-
critical operating environments, quality, service, reliability, manufacturing footprint, and commercial competitiveness across
the industries and end markets we serve. A significant element of our competitive strategy is to design and manufacture high-
quality products that meet the needs of our customers at a commercially competitive price, particularly in markets where low-
cost, country-based suppliers, primarily in China with respect to the Sensing Solutions segment, have entered the markets or
increased their per-unit sales in these markets by delivering products at low cost to local OEMs. In addition, certain of our
competitors in the automotive sensor market are influenced or controlled by major OEMs or suppliers, thereby limiting our
access to these customers. Many of our customers also rely on us as their sole source of supply for many of the products that we
have historically sold to them. These customers may choose to develop relationships with additional suppliers or elect to
produce some or all of these products internally, primarily to reduce risk of delivery interruptions or as a means of extracting
more value from us. Certain of our customers currently have, or may develop in the future, the capability to internally produce
the products that we sell to them and may compete with us with respect to those and other products and with respect to other
customers.

Many of our customers, including automotive manufacturers and other industrial and commercial OEMs, demand annual
price reductions. If we are not able to offset continued price reductions through improved operating efficiencies and reduced
expenditures, these price reductions may have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and cash flows. In addition,
our customers occasionally require engineering, design, or production changes. In some circumstances, we may be unable to
cover the costs of these changes with price increases. Further, as our customers grow larger, they may increasingly require us to
provide them with our products on an exclusive basis, which could limit sales, cause an increase in the number of products we
must carry and, consequently, increase our inventory levels and working capital requirements. Certain of our customers,
particularly in the automotive industry, are increasingly requiring their suppliers to agree to their standard purchasing terms
without deviation as a condition to engage in future business transactions, many of which are increasing warranty requirements.
As a result, we may find it difficult to enter into agreements with such customers on terms that are commercially reasonable to
us.

Security breaches and other disruptions to our IT infrastructure could interfere with our operations, compromise
confidential information, and expose us to liability, which could materially adversely impact our business and
reputation.

In the ordinary course of business, we rely on IT networks and systems, some of which are managed by third parties, to
process, transmit, and store electronic information, and to manage or support a variety of business processes and activities.

We are at risk of attack by a growing list of adversaries through increasingly sophisticated methods. Because the
techniques used to obtain unauthorized access or sabotage systems change frequently, we may be unable to anticipate these
techniques or implement adequate preventative measures. In addition, we may not be able to detect breaches in our IT systems
or assess the severity or impact of a breach in a timely manner. We regularly experience attacks to our systems and networks
and have from time to time experienced cybersecurity breaches, such as computer viruses and malware, unauthorized parties
gaining access to our IT systems, and similar incidents, which to date have not had a material impact on our business. If we are
unable to efficiently and effectively maintain and upgrade our system safeguards, we may incur unexpected costs and certain of
our systems may become more vulnerable to unauthorized access. While we select our third party vendors carefully, problems
with the IT systems of our vendors, including breakdowns or other disruptions in communication services provided by a
vendor, failure of a vendor to handle current or higher volumes, cyber-attacks, and security breaches at a vendor could
adversely affect our ability to deliver products and services to our customers and otherwise conduct our business. Additionally,
we are an acquisitive organization and the process of integrating the information systems of the businesses we acquire is
complex and exposes us to additional risk as we might not adequately identify weaknesses in the targets’ information systems,
which could expose us to unexpected liabilities or make our own systems more vulnerable to attack.

Despite our cybersecurity measures (including employee and third-party training, monitoring of networks and systems,
maintenance of backup and protective systems, and maintenance of cybersecurity insurance), our IT networks and infrastructure
may still be vulnerable to damage, disruptions, or shutdowns due to attacks by hackers, breaches, employee error or
malfeasance, power outages, computer viruses, malware, and ransomware, telecommunication or utility failures, systems
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failures, natural disasters, or other catastrophic events. We also face the challenge of supporting our older systems and
implementing necessary upgrades.

Moreover, as we continue to develop products containing complex IT systems designed to support today’s increasingly
connected vehicles, these systems also could be susceptible to similar interruptions, including the possibility of unauthorized
access. Further, as we transition to offering more cloud-based solutions that are dependent on the Internet or other networks to
operate with increased users, we may become a greater target for cyber threats, such as malware, denial of service, external
adversaries or insider threats.

These types of incidents affecting us or our third-party vendors could result in intellectual property or other confidential
information being lost or stolen, including client, employee, or company data. Any such events could result in legal claims or
proceedings, liability or penalties under privacy laws, disruption in operations, and damage to our reputation, which could
materially adversely affect our business. Further, to the extent that any disruption or security breach results in a loss of, or
damage to, our data, or an inappropriate disclosure of confidential information, it could cause significant damage to our
reputation, affect our relationships with our customers, lead to claims against us, and ultimately harm our business, financial
condition, and/or results of operations.

Improper disclosure of confidential, personal, or proprietary data could result in regulatory scrutiny, legal liability, or
harm to our reputation. Changes to data protection laws, new customer requirements and changes to international data
transfer rules could impose new burdens. New developments in smart vehicles changes our risk profile as Sensata
creates new classes of personal data with its products and insights.

One of our significant responsibilities is to maintain the security and privacy of our employees’ and customers’
confidential and proprietary information. We maintain policies, procedures, and technological safeguards designed to protect
the security and privacy of this information and regularly review compliance changes in the states where Sensata operates.
Nevertheless, we cannot eliminate the risk of human error, employee or vendor malfeasance, or cyber-attacks that could result
in improper access to or disclosure or transfer of confidential, personal, or proprietary information by Sensata or our supply
chain. Such access transfers could harm our reputation and subject us to liability under our contracts and the laws and
regulations that protect personal data, resulting in increased costs, loss of revenue, and loss of customers. The release of
confidential information could also lead to litigation or other proceedings against us by affected individuals, business partners,
or by regulators, and the outcome of such proceedings, which could include penalties or fines, could have a significant negative
impact on our business.

In many jurisdictions we are subject to laws and regulations relating to the use of this information. These are becoming
increasingly complex and can conflict across the jurisdictions in which we operate. Our failure to adhere to processes in
response to changing regulatory requirements could result in legal liability, significant regulator penalties and fines or impair
our reputation in the marketplace.

The technological capabilities we are developing in our Smart & Connected initiative bring new risks to our company.
Laws and regulations for smart vehicles are expected to continue to evolve in numerous jurisdictions globally, which could
affect our product portfolio and operations. Further, managing and securing personal data that our products, as well as our
partners’ products, gather is a new and evolving risk for us. We must also prepare and adjust for rapid design philosophies
associated with building these new solutions.

Our future success depends in part on our ability to attract and retain key senior management and qualified technical,
sales, and other personnel

Our future success depends in part on our continued ability to retain key executives and our ability to attract and retain
qualified technical, sales, and other personnel. Significant competition exists for such personnel and we cannot assure the
retention of our key executives, technical and sales personnel or our ability to attract, integrate and retain other such personnel
that may be required in the future. We cannot assure that employees will not leave and subsequently compete against us. If we
are unable to attract and retain key personnel, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely
affected.

Financial Risks

We are exposed to fluctuations in currency exchange rates that could negatively impact our financial results and cash
flows.

A portion of our net revenue, expenses, receivables, and payables are denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar
(the "USD"). We, therefore, face exposure to adverse movements in exchange rates of currencies other than the USD, which
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may change over time and could affect our financial results and cash flows. For financial reporting purposes, we, and each of
our subsidiaries, operate under a USD functional currency because of the significant influence of the USD on our operations. In
certain instances, we enter into transactions that are denominated in a currency other than the USD. At the date that such
transaction is recognized, each asset, liability, revenue, expense, gain, or loss arising from the transaction is measured and
recorded in USD using the exchange rate in effect at that date. At each balance sheet date, recognized monetary balances
denominated in a currency other than the USD are adjusted to USD using the exchange rate at the balance sheet date, with gains
or losses recognized in other, net in the consolidated statements of operations. During times of a weakening USD, our revenue
recognized in currencies other than the USD may increase because the non-U.S. currency will translate into more USD.
Conversely, during times of a strengthening USD, our revenue recognized in currencies other than the USD may decrease
because the local currency will translate into fewer USD.

Our level of indebtedness could adversely affect our financial condition and our ability to operate our business,
including our ability to service our debt and/or comply with the related covenants.

The credit agreement governing our secured credit facility (as amended, the "Credit Agreement") provides for senior
secured credit facilities (the "Senior Secured Credit Facilities") consisting of a term loan facility (the "Term Loan"), a $420.0
million revolving credit facility (the "Revolving Credit Facility"), and incremental availability (the "Accordion") under which
additional secured credit facilities could be issued under certain circumstances. As of December 31, 2020, we had $4,036.6
million of gross outstanding indebtedness, including various tranches of senior notes (the “Senior Notes™). Refer to Note 14,
"Debt," of our Financial Statements for additional information related to our outstanding indebtedness.

Our substantial indebtedness could have important consequences. For example, it could make it more difficult for us to
satisfy our debt obligations; restrict us from making strategic acquisitions; limit our ability to repurchase shares; limit our
flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and future business opportunities, thereby placing us at a
competitive disadvantage if our competitors are not as highly-leveraged; increase our vulnerability to general adverse economic
and market conditions; or require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flows from operations to payments on our
indebtedness if we do not maintain specified financial ratios or are not able to refinance our indebtedness as it comes due,
thereby reducing the availability of our cash flows for other purposes.

In addition, the Accordion permits us to incur additional secured credit facilities in certain circumstances in the future,
subject to certain limitations as defined in the indentures under which the Senior Notes were issued. This could allow us to issue
additional secured debt or increase the capacity of the Revolving Credit Facility. If we increase our indebtedness by borrowing
under the Revolving Credit Facility or incur other new indebtedness under the Accordion, the risks described above would
increase.

We cannot guarantee that we will be able to obtain enough capital to service our debt and fund our planned capital
expenditures and business plan. If we complete additional acquisitions, our debt service requirements could also increase. If we
cannot service our indebtedness, we may have to take actions such as selling assets, seeking additional equity investments, or
reducing or delaying capital expenditures, strategic acquisitions, investments, and alliances, any of which could have a material
adverse effect on our operations. Additionally, we may not be able to effect such actions, if necessary, on commercially
reasonable terms, or at all.

If we experience an event of default under any of our debt instruments that is not cured or waived, the holders of the
defaulted debt could cause all amounts outstanding with respect to the debt to become due and payable immediately, which, in
turn, would result in cross-defaults under our other debt instruments. Our assets and cash flows may not be sufficient to fully
repay borrowings if accelerated upon an event of default.

If, when required, we are unable to repay, refinance, or restructure our indebtedness under, or amend the covenants
contained in, the Credit Agreement, or if a default otherwise occurs, the lenders under the Senior Secured Credit Facilities
could: elect to terminate their commitments thereunder; cease making further loans; declare all borrowings outstanding,
together with accrued interest and other fees, to be immediately due and payable; institute foreclosure proceedings against those
assets that secure the borrowings under the Senior Secured Credit Facilities; and prevent us from making payments on the
Senior Notes. Any such actions could force us into bankruptcy or liquidation, and we might not be able to repay our obligations
in such an event.

Changes in government trade policies, including the imposition of tariffs, may have a material impact on our results of
operations.

We evaluate all trade policies that impact us, and adjust our operational strategies to mitigate the impact of these policies.
However, trade policies, including quotas, duties, tariffs, taxes or other similar restrictions upon the import or export of our
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products, are subject to change, and we cannot ensure that any mitigation strategies employed will remain available in the future
or that we will be able to offset tariff-related costs or maintain competitive pricing of our products. The adoption and expansion

of trade restrictions, the occurrence of a trade war, or other governmental action related to tariffs or trade agreements or policies
has the potential to adversely impact demand for our products, our costs, our customers, our suppliers, and the global economy,

which in turn could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results and financial condition.

Existing free trade laws and regulations, such as the United States-Mexico-Canada Agreement, provide certain beneficial
duties and tariffs for qualifying imports and exports, subject to compliance with the applicable classification and other
requirements. Changes in laws or policies governing the terms of foreign trade, and in particular increased trade restrictions,
tariffs or taxes on imports from countries where we manufacture products, such as China and Mexico, could have a material
adverse effect on our business and financial results. As discussed in the MD&A, increased tariff costs have increased our cost
of revenue as a percentage of net revenue in fiscal year 2020. In addition, most of our facilities in Mexico operate under the
Mexican Maquiladora program. This program provides for reduced tariffs and eased import regulations; we could be adversely
affected by changes in such program, or by our failure to comply with its requirements.

Further tariffs may be imposed on other imports of our products or our business may be further impacted by retaliatory
trade measures taken by China or other countries in response to existing or future U.S. tariffs. We may raise our prices on
products subject to such tariffs to share the cost with our customers, which could harm our operating performance or cause our
customers to seek alternative suppliers. In addition, we may seek to shift some of our China manufacturing to other countries,
which could result in additional costs and disruption to our operations. We also sell our products globally and, therefore, our
export sales could be impacted by the tariffs. Any material reduction in sales may have a material adverse effect on our results
of operations.

We have recorded a significant amount of goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets, and we may be required to
recognize goodwill or intangible asset impairments, which would reduce our earnings.

We have recorded a significant amount of goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets. Goodwill and other intangible
assets, net totaled approximately $3.8 billion as of December 31, 2020, or 48% of our total assets. Goodwill, which represents
the future economic benefits arising from other assets acquired in a business combination that are not individually identified
and separately recognized, was approximately $3.1 billion as of December 31, 2020, or 40% of our total assets. Goodwill and
other identifiable intangible assets were recognized at fair value as of the corresponding acquisition date. Impairment of
goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets may result from, among other things, deterioration in our performance, adverse
market conditions, adverse changes in laws or regulations, significant unexpected or planned changes in the use of assets, and a
variety of other factors. We consider a combination of quantitative and qualitative factors to determine whether a reporting unit
is at risk of failing Step 1 of the goodwill impairment test, including: the timing of our most recent quantitative impairment tests
and the relative amount by which a reporting unit’s fair value exceeded its then carrying value, the inputs and assumptions
underlying our valuation models and the sensitivity of our fair value measurements to those inputs and assumptions, the impact
that adverse economic or market conditions may have on the degree of uncertainty inherent in our long-term operating
forecasts, and changes in the carrying value of a reporting unit’s net assets from the time of our most recent goodwill
impairment test.

The amount of any quantified impairment must be expensed immediately as a charge that is included in operating
income, which may impact our ability to raise capital. Should certain assumptions used in the development of the fair value of
our reporting units change, we may be required to recognize goodwill or other intangible asset impairments. Refer to Note 11,
"Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, Net," of our Financial Statements for additional information related to our goodwill and
other identifiable intangible assets. Refer to Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates, included in the MD&A for additional
information related to the assumptions used in the development of the fair value of our reporting units.

Our global effective tax rate is subject to a variety of different factors that could create volatility in that tax rate, expose
us to greater than anticipated tax liabilities, or cause us to adjust previously recognized tax assets and liabilities.

We are subject to income taxes in the U.K., China, Mexico, the U.S., and many other jurisdictions. As a result, our global
effective tax rate from period to period can be affected by many factors, including changes in tax legislation, changes in tax
rates and tax laws, our jurisdictional mix of earnings, the use of global funding structures, the tax characteristics of our income,
the effects on our revenues and costs of complying with transfer pricing requirements under differing laws of various countries,
consequences of acquisitions and dispositions of businesses and business segments, the generation of sufficient future taxable
income to realize our deferred tax assets, and the taxation of subsidiary income in the jurisdiction of its parent company
regardless of whether or not distributed. Significant judgment is required in determining our worldwide provision for (or benefit
from) income taxes, and our determination of the amount of our tax liability is always subject to review by applicable tax
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authorities. Refer to Note 7, "Income Taxes," of our Financial Statements for additional information related to our accounting
for income taxes.

We cannot provide any assurances as to what our tax rate will be in any period because of, among other things,
uncertainty regarding the nature and extent of our business activities in any particular jurisdiction in the future and the tax laws
of such jurisdictions, as well as changes in U.S. and other tax laws, treaties, and regulations, in particular related to proposed
tax laws by the U.S. government as a result of seating of a new administration, which could increase our tax liabilities. Our
actual global tax rate may vary from our expectation and that variance may be material. We continuously monitor all global
regulatory developments and consider alternatives to limit their detrimental impacts. However, not all unfavorable
developments can be moderated and we may consequently experience adverse effects on our effective tax rate and cash flows.
Therefore, we cannot provide any assurances as to what our tax rate will be in any future period.

For example, the European Commission (“EC”) has been conducting investigations of state aid and have focused on
whether EU sovereign country laws or rulings provide favorable treatment to taxpayers conflicting with its interpretation of EU
law. EC findings may have retroactive effect and can cause increases in tax liabilities where we considered ourselves in full
compliance with local legislation. Furthermore, the Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development (“OECD”),
representing a number of jurisdictions where we conduct business, is recommending changes to long-accepted tax principles
applied by most multinational corporations. As currently drafted, OECD guidelines would precipitate incremental future tax
liabilities to Sensata. However, the OECD guidelines’ timing and impact to us remains unclear. We continue to monitor
developments and shall react accordingly.

We could be subject to future audits conducted by these foreign and domestic tax authorities, and the resolution of such
audits could impact our tax rate in future periods, as would any reclassification or other changes (such as those in applicable
accounting rules) that increases the amounts we have provided for income taxes in our consolidated financial statements. There
can be no assurance that we would be successful in attempting to mitigate the adverse impacts resulting from any changes in
law, audits and other matters. Our inability to mitigate the negative consequences of any changes in the law, audits and other
matters could cause our global tax rate to increase, our use of cash to increase and our financial condition and results of
operations to suffer.

We are a holding company and, therefore, may not be able to receive dividends or other payments in needed amounts
from our subsidiaries.

We are organized as a holding company, a legal entity separate and distinct from our operating entities. As a holding
company without significant operations of its own, our principal assets are the shares of capital stock of our subsidiaries. We
rely on dividends, interest, and other payments from these subsidiaries to meet our obligations for paying principal and interest
on outstanding debt, repurchasing ordinary shares, and corporate expenses. Certain of our subsidiaries are subject to regulatory
requirements of the jurisdictions in which they operate or other restrictions that may limit the amounts that subsidiaries can pay
in dividends or other payments to us. No assurance can be given that there will not be further changes in law, regulatory
actions, or other circumstances that could restrict the ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends or otherwise make payments to
us. Furthermore, no assurance can be given that our subsidiaries may be able to make timely payments to us in order for us to
meet our obligations.

Legal and Regulatory Risks

We could be adversely affected by violations of the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (the "FCPA"), the U.K.'s
Bribery Act, and similar worldwide anti-bribery laws.

The U.S. FCPA, the U.K.'s Bribery Act, and similar worldwide anti-bribery laws generally prohibit companies and their
intermediaries from making improper payments to government officials for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business. Our
policies mandate compliance with these anti-bribery laws. We operate in many parts of the world that have experienced
governmental corruption to some degree, and in certain circumstances, strict compliance with anti-bribery laws may conflict
with local customs and practices. Despite our training and compliance program, we cannot provide assurance that our internal
control policies and procedures will protect us from reckless or criminal acts committed by our employees or agents. Violations
of these laws, or allegations of such violations, could disrupt our business and result in a material adverse effect on our results
of operations, financial condition, and/or cash flows.
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Export of our products is subject to various export control regulations and may require a license from the U.S.
Department of State, the U.S. Department of Commerce, or the U.S. Department of the Treasury. Any failure to comply
with such regulations could result in governmental enforcement actions, fines, penalties, or other remedies, which could
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, and financial condition.

Certain of our products require us to comply with the U.S. Export Administration Regulations, ITAR, and the sanctions,
regulations, and embargoes administered by the Office of Foreign Assets Control ("OFAC"). Our products that have military
applications are on the munitions list of ITAR and require an individual validated license in order to be exported to certain
jurisdictions. These restrictions also apply to technical data for design, development, production, use, repair, and maintenance
of such ITAR-controlled products. The export of ITAR-controlled products or technical data requires an individual validated
license from the U.S. State Department’s Directorate of Defense Trade Controls.

We also export products that are subject to other export regulations. Any changes in these export regulations may further
restrict the export of our products, and we may cease to be able to procure export licenses for our products under existing
regulations. This area remains fluid in terms of regulatory developments. Should we need an export license under existing
regulations, the length of time required by the licensing process can vary, potentially delaying the shipment of products and the
recognition of the corresponding revenue. We have no control over the time it takes to process an export license. Any restriction
on the export of a significant product line or a significant amount of our products could cause a significant reduction in revenue.

We have discovered in the past, and may discover in the future, deficiencies in our OFAC and ITAR compliance
programs. Although we continue to enhance these compliance programs, we cannot assure you that any such enhancements will
ensure that we are in compliance with applicable laws and regulations at all times, or that applicable authorities will not raise
compliance concerns or perform audits to confirm our compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Any failure by us to
comply with applicable laws and regulations could result in governmental enforcement actions, fines or penalties, criminal and/
or civil proceedings, or other remedies, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations,
and/or financial condition.

Changes in existing environmental or safety laws, regulations, and programs could reduce demand for our products,
which could cause our revenue to decline.

A significant amount of our business is generated either directly or indirectly as a result of existing laws, regulations, and
programs related to environmental protection, fuel economy, energy efficiency, and safety regulation. Accordingly, a relaxation
or repeal of these laws and regulations, or changes in governmental policies regarding the funding, implementation, or
enforcement of these programs, could result in a decline in demand for environmental and/or safety products, which may have a
material adverse effect on our revenue.

Our operations expose us to the risk of material environmental liabilities, litigation, government enforcement actions,
and reputational risk.

We are subject to numerous federal, state, and local environmental protection and health and safety laws and regulations
in the various countries where we operate and where our products are sold. These laws and regulations govern, among other
things, the generation, storage, use, and transportation of hazardous materials; emissions or discharges of substances into the
environment; investigation and remediation of hazardous substances or materials at various sites; greenhouse gas emissions;
product hazardous material content; and the health and safety of our employees.

We may not have been, or we may not always be, in compliance with all environmental and health and safety laws and
regulations. If we violate these laws, we could be fined, criminally charged, or otherwise sanctioned by regulators. In addition,
environmental and health and safety laws are becoming more stringent, resulting in increased costs and compliance burdens.

Certain environmental laws assess liability on current or previous owners or operators of real property for the costs of
investigation, removal, and remediation of hazardous substances or materials at their properties or properties at which they have
disposed of hazardous substances. Liability for investigation, removal, and remediation costs under certain federal and state
laws is retroactive, strict, and joint and several. In addition to cleanup actions brought by governmental authorities, private
parties could bring personal injury or other claims due to the presence of, or exposure to, hazardous substances.

We cannot provide assurance that our costs of complying with current or future environmental protection and health and
safety laws, or our liabilities arising from past or future releases of, or exposures to, hazardous substances will not exceed our
estimates or adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows, or that we will not be subject to
additional environmental claims for personal injury, property damage, and/or cleanup in the future based on our past, present, or
future business activities.
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In addition, our products are subject to various requirements related to chemical usage, hazardous material content, and
recycling. The EU, China, and other jurisdictions in which our products are sold have enacted or are proposing to enact laws
addressing environmental and other impacts from product disposal, use of hazardous materials in products, use of chemicals in
manufacturing, recycling of products at the end of their useful life, and other related matters. These laws include but are not
limited to the EU RoHS, ELV, and Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment Directives; the EU REACH regulation; and the
China law on Management Methods for Controlling Pollution by Electronic Information Products. These laws prohibit the use
of certain substances in the manufacture of our products and directly and indirectly impose a variety of requirements for
modification of manufacturing processes, registration, chemical testing, labeling, and other matters. These laws continue to
proliferate and expand in these and other jurisdictions to address other materials and aspects of our product manufacturing and
sale. These laws could make the manufacture or sale of our products more expensive or impossible, could limit our ability to
sell our products in certain jurisdictions, and could result in liability for product recalls, penalties, or other claims.

Our ability to compete effectively depends, in part, on our ability to maintain the proprietary nature of our products
and technology.

The electronics industry is characterized by litigation regarding patent and other intellectual property rights. Within this
industry, companies have become more aggressive in asserting and defending patent claims against competitors. There can be
no assurance that we will not be subject to future litigation alleging infringement or invalidity of certain of our intellectual
property rights, or that we will not have to pursue litigation to protect our property rights. Depending on the importance of the
technology, product, patent, trademark, or trade secret in question, an unfavorable outcome regarding one of these matters may
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition, and/or cash flows.

We may be subject to claims that our products or processes infringe on the intellectual property rights of others, which
may cause us to pay unexpected litigation costs or damages, modify our products or processes, or prevent us from
selling our products.

Third parties may claim that our processes and products infringe their intellectual property rights. Whether or not these
claims have merit, we may be subject to costly and time consuming legal proceedings, and this could divert management’s
attention from operating our business. If these claims are successfully asserted against us, we could be required to pay
substantial damages, make future royalty payments, and/or could be prevented from selling some or all of our products. We also
may be obligated to indemnify our business partners or customers in any such litigation. Furthermore, we may need to obtain
licenses from these third parties or substantially re-engineer or rename our products in order to avoid infringement. In addition,
we might not be able to obtain the necessary licenses on acceptable terms, or at all, or be able to re-engineer or rename our
products successfully. If we are prevented from selling some or all of our products, our sales could be materially adversely
affected.

We are a defendant to a variety of litigation in the course of our business that could cause a material adverse effect on
our results of operations, financial condition, and/or cash flows.

In the normal course of business, we are, from time to time, a defendant in litigation, including litigation alleging the
infringement of intellectual property rights, anti-competitive behavior, product liability, breach of contract, and employment-
related claims. In certain circumstances, patent infringement and antitrust laws permit successful plaintiffs to recover treble
damages. The defense of these lawsuits may divert our management's attention, and we may incur significant expenses in
defending these lawsuits. In addition, we may be required to pay damage awards or settlements, or become subject to
injunctions or other equitable remedies, that could cause a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial
condition, and/or cash flows.

U.K. Domicile Risks

As a public limited company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales, we may have less flexibility with
respect to certain aspects of capital management.

English law imposes additional restrictions on certain corporate actions. For example, English law provides that a board of
directors may only allot, or issue, securities with the prior authorization of shareholders, such authorization being up to the
aggregate nominal amount of shares and for a maximum period of five years, each as specified in the articles of association or
relevant shareholder resolution. English law also generally provides shareholders with preemptive rights when new shares are
issued for cash; however, it is possible for the articles of association, or shareholders at a general meeting, to exclude
preemptive rights. Such an exclusion of preemptive rights may be for a maximum period of up to five years as specified in the
articles of association or relevant shareholder resolution. We currently only have authorization to issue shares under our equity
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plan excluding preemptive rights until our next annual general meeting. This authorization and exclusion needs to be renewed
by our shareholders periodically and we intend to renew the authorization and exclusion at each annual general meeting.

English law also requires us to have available "distributable reserves" to make share repurchases or pay dividends to
shareholders. Distributable reserves may be created through the earnings of the U.K. parent company or other actions. While we
intend to maintain a sufficient level of distributable reserves, there is no assurance that we will continue to generate sufficient
earnings in order to maintain the necessary level of distributable reserves to make share repurchases or pay dividends.

English law also generally prohibits a company from repurchasing its own shares by way of "off-market purchases"
without the prior approval of our shareholders. Such approval lasts for a maximum period of up to five years. Our shares are
traded on the New York Stock Exchange, which is not a recognized investment exchange in the U.K. Consequently, any
repurchase of our shares is currently considered an "off-market purchase." Our current authorization expires on May 28, 2025,
and we intend to renew this authorization periodically.

As a public limited company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales, the enforcement of civil liabilities
against us may be more difficult.

Because we are a public limited company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales, investors could experience
more difficulty enforcing judgments obtained against us in U.S. courts than would have been the case for a U.S. company. In
addition, it may be more difficult (or impossible) to bring some types of claims against us in courts in England than it would be
to bring similar claims against a U.S. company in a U.S. court.

As a public limited company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales, it may not be possible to effect service
of process upon us within the U.S. to enforce judgments of U.S. courts against us based on the civil liability provisions of
the U.S. federal securities laws.

There is doubt as to the enforceability in England and Wales, in original actions or in actions for enforcement of
judgments of U.S. courts, of civil liabilities solely based on the U.S. federal securities laws. The English courts will, however,
treat any amount payable by us under U.S. judgment as a debt and new proceedings can be commenced in the English courts to
enforce this debt against us. The following criteria must be satisfied for the English court to enforce the debt created by the U.S.
judgment: (1) the U.S. court having had jurisdiction over the original proceedings according to English conflicts of laws
principles and rules of English private international law at the time when proceedings were initiated; (2) the U.S. proceedings
not having been brought in breach of a jurisdiction or arbitration clause except with the agreement of the defendant or the
defendant’s subsequent submission to the jurisdiction of the court; (3) the U.S. judgment being final and conclusive on the
merits in the sense of being final and unalterable in the court which pronounced it and being for a definite sum of money; (4)
the recognition or enforcement, as the case may be, of the U.S. judgment not contravening English public policy in a
sufficiently significant way or contravening the Human Rights Act 1998 (or any subordinate legislation made thereunder, to the
extent applicable); (5) the U.S. judgment not being for a sum payable in respect of taxes, or other charges of a like nature, or in
respect of a penalty or fine, or otherwise based on a U.S. law that an English court considers to be a penal or revenue law; (6)
the U.S. judgment not having been arrived at by doubling, trebling or otherwise multiplying a sum assessed as compensation for
the loss or damages sustained, and not otherwise being a judgment contrary to section 5 of the Protection of Trading Interests
Act 1980 or is a judgment based on measures designated by the Secretary of State under Section 1 of that Act; (7) the U.S.
judgment not having been obtained by fraud or in breach of English principles of natural justice; (8) the U.S. judgment not
being a judgment on a matter previously determined by an English court, or another court whose judgment is entitled to
recognition (or enforcement as the case may be) in England, in proceedings involving the same parties that conflicts with an
earlier judgment of such court; (9) the party seeking enforcement (being a party who is not ordinarily resident in some part of
the U.K. or resident in an EU Member State) providing security for costs, if ordered to do so by the English courts; and (10) the
English enforcement proceedings being commenced within the relevant limitation period.

If an English court gives judgment for the sum payable under a U.S. judgment, the English judgment will be enforceable
by methods generally available for this purpose. These methods generally permit the English court discretion to prescribe the
manner of enforcement. In addition, in any enforcement proceedings, the judgment debtor may raise any counterclaim that
could have been brought if the action had been originally brought in England unless the subject of the counterclaim was in issue
and denied in the U.S. proceedings.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of December 31, 2020, we occupied principal manufacturing facilities and business centers in the following locations:

Reportable Segment

Approximate Square Footage (in thousands)

Performance Sensing

Country Location Sensing Solutions Owned Leased
Bulgaria Botevgrad X 169 —
Bulgaria Plovdiv X 125 —
Bulgaria Sofia X — 121
China Baoying X X 296 385
China Changzhou X X 335 256
Malaysia Subang Jaya X 138 —
Mexico Aguascalientes X X 489 —
Mexico Tijuana X X — 235
Netherlands Hengelo X X — 94
United Kingdom Antrim X — 137
United Kingdom Swindon @ X — 34
United States Attleboro, MA @ X X — 443
United States Carpinteria, CA X X — 50
United States Thousand Oaks, CA X X — 115

1,552 1,870

)" The owned portion of the properties in this location serves the Sensing Solutions segment only.

@ QOur U.K. headquarters is located in this facility.
@ Our U.S. headquarters is located in this facility.

These facilities are primarily devoted to research, development, engineering, manufacturing, and assembly. In addition to
these principal facilities, we occupy other manufacturing, engineering, warchousing, administrative, and sales facilities
worldwide, which are primarily leased.

We consider our manufacturing facilities sufficient to meet our current operational requirements. An increase in demand
for our products may require us to expand our production capacity, which could require us to identify and acquire or lease
additional manufacturing facilities. We believe that suitable additional or substitute facilities will be available as required;
however, if we are unable to acquire, integrate, and move into production the facilities, equipment, and personnel necessary to
meet such an increase in demand, our customer relationships, results of operations, and/or financial condition may suffer
materially. Leases covering our currently occupied principal leased facilities expire at varying dates within the next 16 years.
We do not anticipate difficulty in retaining occupancy through lease renewals, month-to-month occupancy, or by replacing the
leased facilities with equivalent facilities.

A significant portion of our owned properties and equipment is subject to a lien under the Senior Secured Credit
Facilities. Refer to Note 14, "Debt," of our Financial Statements for additional information related to the Senior Secured Credit
Facilities.

ITEM3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are regularly involved in a number of claims and litigation matters that arise in the ordinary course of business.
Although it is not feasible to predict the outcome of these matters, based upon our experience and current information known to
us, we do not expect the outcome of these matters, either individually or in the aggregate, to have a material adverse effect on
our results of operations, financial condition, or cash flows.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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PART II

ITEMS. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS, AND

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Market Information
Our ordinary shares trade on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "ST."

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the total shareholder return of our ordinary shares since December 31, 2015 to the total

shareholder return since that date of the Standard & Poor’s ("S&P") 500 Stock Index and the S&P 500 Industrial Index. The
graph assumes that the value of the investment in our ordinary shares and each index was $100.00 on December 31, 2015.
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—@— Secnsata S&P 500 —f— S&P 500 Industrial
Total Shareholder Return of $100.00 Investment from December 31, 2015
As of December 31,
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Sensata $ 100.00 $ 84.56 $ 11096 $ 9735 $ 116.96 $ 114.50
S&P 500 $ 100.00 $ 111.96 $ 136.40 $ 13042 $ 171.49 $ 203.04
S&P 500 Industrial $ 100.00 $ 116.08 $ 137.60 $ 116.96 $ 14834 § 161.70

The information in the graph and table above is not "soliciting material," is not deemed "filed" with the United States (the

"U.S.") Securities and Exchange Commission, and is not to be incorporated by reference in any of our filings under the

Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, whether made before or after the date
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K (this "Report"), except to the extent that we specifically incorporate such information by

reference. The total shareholder return shown on the graph represents past performance and should not be considered an
indication of future price performance.

Stockholders

As of January 29, 2021, there were three holders of record of our ordinary shares, primarily Cede & Co. (which acts as

nominee shareholder for the Depository Trust Company).

Dividends

We have never declared or paid any dividends on our ordinary shares, and we currently do not plan to declare any such
dividends in the foreseeable future. Because we are a holding company, our ability to pay cash dividends on our ordinary shares

may be limited by restrictions on our ability to obtain sufficient funds through dividends from our subsidiaries, including
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restrictions under the terms of the agreements governing our indebtedness. In that regard, our indirect, wholly-owned
subsidiary, Sensata Technologies B.V. ("STBV"), may be limited in its ability to pay dividends or otherwise make distributions
to its immediate parent company and, ultimately, to us. Refer to Note 14, "Debt," of our audited consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes thereto (our "Financial Statements") included elsewhere in this Report for additional
information related to our dividend restrictions.

Additionally, certain of our subsidiaries may be limited in their ability to pay dividends or make other distributions to the
extent that the shareholders' equity of such subsidiary exceeds the reserves required to be maintained by law or under its articles
of association. Under the laws of England and Wales, we are able to declare dividends, make distributions, or repurchase shares
only out of distributable reserves on our statutory balance sheet. Distributable reserves are a company’s accumulated, realized
profits, so far as not previously utilized by distribution or capitalization, less its accumulated, realized losses, so far as not
previously written off in a reduction or reorganization of capital duly made. Realized reserves are determined in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles at the time the relevant accounts are prepared. We are not permitted to make a
distribution if, at the time, the amount of our net assets is less than the aggregate of our issued and paid-up share capital and
undistributable reserves or to the extent that the distribution will reduce our net assets below such amount. Subject to these
limitations, the payment of cash dividends in the future, if any, will depend upon such factors as earnings levels, capital
requirements, contractual restrictions, our overall financial condition, and any other factors deemed relevant by our
shareholders and Board of Directors.

Under current United Kingdom ("U.K.") tax legislation, any future dividends paid by us will not be subject to
withholding or deduction on account of U.K. tax, irrespective of the tax residence or the individual circumstances of the
recipient shareholder. Shareholders should consult their tax advisors regarding their particular tax situation and the income tax
consequences on any potential dividend income received from us.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

‘Weighted- Total Number of
Average Shares Purchased as Approximate Dollar Value of
Total Number of Price Part of Publicly Shares that May Yet Be Purchased
Shares Purchased Paid per Announced Plan or Under the Plan or Programs
Period (in shares) " Share Programs (in millions)
October 1 through October 31, 2020 — 3 — — 3 302.3
November 1 through November 30, 2020 10,499 § 4371 — 3 302.3
December 1 through December 31, 2020 2,301 $ 50.97 — 3 302.3
Quarter total 12,800 $ 45.02 — 3 302.3

(" The number of ordinary shares presented were withheld upon the vesting of restricted securities to cover payment of

employee withholding tax. These withholdings took place outside of a publicly announced repurchase plan.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

We have derived the selected consolidated statements of operations and other financial data for the years ended
December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018 and the selected consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 from
our Financial Statements. We have derived the selected consolidated statements of operations and other financial data for the
years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 and the selected consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2018, 2017, and
2016 from audited consolidated financial statements not included in this Report.

You should read the following information in conjunction with our Financial Statements and Item 7, "Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," included elsewhere in this Report (the "MD&A").
Our historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected in any future period.

Sensata Technologies Holding plc (Consolidated)

For the year ended December 31,

(In thousands, except per share data) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Statement of operations data: ®
Net revenue $ 3,045,578 $ 3,450,631 $ 3,521,627 $ 3,306,733 $§ 3,202,288
Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of revenue 2,119,044 2,267,433 2,266,863 2,138,898 2,084,159
Research and development 131,429 148,425 147,279 130,127 126,656
Selling, general and administrative 294,725 281,442 305,558 301,896 293,506
Amortization of intangible assets 129,549 142,886 139,326 161,050 201,498
Restructuring and other charges, net © 33,094 53,560 (47,818) 18,975 4,113
Total operating costs and expenses 2,707,841 2,893,746 2,811,208 2,750,946 2,709,932
Operating income 337,737 556,885 710,419 555,787 492,356
Interest expense, net (171,757) (158,554) (153,679) (159,761) (165,818)
Other, net¥ (339) (7,908) (30,365) 6,415 (5,093)
Income before taxes 165,641 390,423 526,375 402,441 321,445
Provision for/(benefit from) income taxes © 1,355 107,709 (72,620) (5,916) 59,011
Net income § 164286 § 282,714 § 598,995 § 408,357 § 262,434
Basic net income per share $ 1.04 $ 1.76  $ 355 % 239 § 1.54
Diluted net income per share $ 1.04 $ 175 $ 353 % 237 $ 1.53
Weighted-average ordinary shares outstanding—basic T7,373 T})% T,WO 1—71,165 1—70,709
Weighted-average ordinary shares outstanding—diluted 158,134 161,968 169,859 172,169 171,460

Other financial data: ®

Net cash provided by/(used in):

Operating activities $ 559,775 $§ 619,562 $§ 620,563 $§ 557,646 $§ 521,525
Investing activities $ (182,092) § (208,777) $ (237,606) § (140,722) § (174,778)
Financing activities § 710,178 $ (366,499) $§ (406,213) $  (15,263) $§ (337,582)
Additions to property, plant and equipment and $ (106,719) $ (161259) $ (159,787) $ (144,584) $ (130217)

capitalized software

As of December 31,
(In thousands) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Balance sheet data: ®

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,861,980 $ 774,119 $§ 729833 § 753,089 $ 351,428
Working capital $ 1,484,815 $ 1,330,906 $ 1,277,211 $ 1,218,796 $ 758,189
Total assets $ 7,844,202 § 6,834,519 $ 6,797,687 $ 6,641,525 § 6,240,976
Total debt, net including finance lease and other financing $ 3.998.883 S 3255613 S 3264941 $ 3270269 $ 3.273.594
obligations T o o = I

Total shareholders’ equity $ 2,705,486 $ 2,573,755 $ 2,608434 $ 2345626 $ 1,942,007
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(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

®

On March 28, 2018, the cross-border merger of Sensata Technologies Holding N.V. ("Sensata N.V.") and Sensata
Technologies Holding plc ("Sensata plc'") was completed, with Sensata plc being the surviving entity (the "Merger"). On
the date of the Merger, Sensata plc became the publicly-traded parent of the subsidiary companies that were previously
controlled by Sensata N.V., with no changes made to the business being conducted by Sensata N.V. prior to the Merger.
Due to the various legal aspects of the Merger, Sensata plc retains the historical data of Sensata N.V., and no recasting or
adjustment is required as a result of the Merger.

We acquired GIGAVAC, LLC ("GIGAVAC") in fiscal year 2018. Pro forma amounts are not shown. We sold the capital
stock of Schrader Bridgeport International, Inc. and August France Holding Company SAS (collectively, the "Valves
Business") in fiscal year 2018. Prior year amounts have not been recast.

Restructuring and other charges, net for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, 2018, 2017, and 2016 consisted of the
following (refer also to Note 5, "Restructuring and Other Charges, Net," of our Financial Statements):

For the year ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
2 2020 Global Restructure Program $ 24458 $ — 3 — 3 — 3 —
ar
Other restructuring charges
Severance costs, net 3,042 29,240 7,566 11,125 813
Facility and other exit costs @ 1,323 808 877 7,850 3,300
Gain on sale of Valves Business ¢ — — (64,423) — —
Other @ 4271 23,512 8,162 — —
Restructuring and other charges, net $ 33,094 § 53,560 $ (47,818) $ 18975 $ 4,113

(1) Refer to Note 5, "Restructuring and Other Charges, Net," of our Financial Statements for additional information
regarding amounts recognized in each of the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018.

(i1) For the year ended December 31, 2017, included $8.4 million of charges related to the closure of our facility in
Minden, Germany, a site we obtained in connection with the acquisition of certain subsidiaries of Custom Sensors &
Technologies Ltd. ("CST") in fiscal year 2015.

(iii) For the year ended December 31, 2017, these amounts included $3.2 million of costs related to the closure of our
facility in Minden, Germany and $3.1 million of costs associated with the consolidation of two other manufacturing
sites in Europe. For the year ended December 31, 2016 these amounts primarily related to the relocation of
manufacturing lines from our facility in the Dominican Republic to a manufacturing facility in Mexico.

Other, net for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, 2018, 2017, and 2016 consisted of the following:
For the year ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Gain/(loss) related to foreign currency exchange rates $ 4071 $ (4577 $ (16,835) § 2423 § (12,471)
Gain/(loss) on commodity forward contracts 10,027 4,888 (8,481) 9,989 7,399
Loss on debt financing — (4,364) (2,350) (2,670) —
Net periodic benefit cost, excluding service cost (9,980) (3,186) (3,585) (3,402) (192)
Other (4,457) (669) 886 75 171
Other, net $ 339) $ (7,908) $ (30,365) $ 6,415 $  (5,093)

(1) Includes net losses and gains on foreign currency remeasurement and foreign currency forward contracts. Refer to
Note 6, "Other, Net," of our Financial Statements for additional information.

In the year ended December 31, 2020, we completed the transfer of intangible property which resulted in a $54.2 million
deferred tax benefit. For the year ended December 31, 2018, this amount included an income tax benefit of $122.1 million
related to the realization of U.S. deferred tax assets previously offset by a valuation allowance. Refer to Note 7, "Income
Taxes," of our Financial Statements for additional information. For the year ended December 31, 2017, this amount
included an income tax benefit of $73.7 million related to the enactment of U.S. tax legislation in the fourth quarter of
2017.

We define working capital as current assets less current liabilities.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis is intended to help the reader understand our business, financial condition, results
of operations, and liquidity and capital resources. You should read the following discussion in conjunction with Item 1,
"Business," Item 6, "Selected Financial Data," and our Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Report.

The statements in this discussion regarding industry outlook, our expectations regarding our future performance,
liquidity and capital resources, and other non-historical statements are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking
statements are subject to numerous risks and uncertainties including, but not limited to, the risks and uncertainties described in
Item 14, "Risk Factors," included elsewhere in this Report. Our actual results may differ materially from those contained in or
implied by any forward-looking statements.

Overview

Sensata Technologies Holding plc, the successor issuer to Sensata N.V. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, collectively
referred to as the "Company," "Sensata," "we," "our," and "us," is a global industrial technology company that develops,
manufactures, and sells sensors, electrical protection products, and other products that are used in mission-critical systems and
applications that create valuable business insights for our customers and end users.

nn

Original equipment manufacturers ("OEMs") are producing products that are safer, cleaner, more efficient, more
electrified, and increasingly more connected. Our sensors are used by our customers to translate a physical parameter, such as
pressure, temperature, position, or location of an object, into electronic signals that our customers’ products and solutions can
act upon. Our electrical protection product portfolio is comprised of various sensors, controllers, receivers, and software, and
include high-voltage contactors and other products embedded within systems to maximize their efficiency and protect them
from excessive heat or current.

Our business strategy involves leveraging certain new and emerging technology trends, which complement our existing
product offerings, to deliver products used in mission-critical systems and applications that create valuable business insights for
our customers and end users. Each of these trends, which we refer to as “megatrends,” is expected to significantly transform the
industries in which we operate. These megatrends are also creating greater secular demand for our products, resulting in growth
that exceeds end-market production growth in many of the markets we serve, a defining characteristic of our company. We refer
to this as “market outgrowth,” which describes the impact of an increasing quantity and value of our products used in customer
systems and applications, and is only loosely correlated to normal unit demand fluctuations in the markets we serve. Refer to
Item 1, "Business," included elsewhere in this Report for additional information related to our business strategy and
megatrends.

Our customers are facing ever increasing mandates, due to regulation and consumer demand, to make their products
cleaner, more efficient, and safer, while providing more comfort-related features. Our sensors are being used in mission-critical
systems and applications that are addressing these demands, including those that help: industrial customers to make more
efficient pumps and boilers; automotive customers to meet the standards of emissions and pollution control legislation; and fleet
managers to proactively monitor the health of their vehicles, conduct proactive maintenance, optimize fleet operations, and
enhance driver safety. We believe regulatory requirements for safer vehicles, higher fuel efficiency, and lower emissions, such
as the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration's Corporate Average Fuel Economy requirements in the U.S., "Euro 6d"
requirements in Europe, "China National 6" requirements in China, and "Bharat Stage VI" requirements in India, as well as
customer demand for operator productivity and convenience, drive the need for advancements in powertrain management,
efficiency, safety, and operator controls. These advancements lead to sensor growth rates that we expect to exceed underlying
demand in many of our key end markets, which we expect will continue to offer us significant growth opportunities.

However, in our automotive business, we believe the medium- to long-term outlook for internal combustion engine
powertrain products will evolve with the advent of more environmentally friendly vehicles that rely more heavily on
Electrification and other adjacent technologies. Refer to the Megatrends section of Item 1, "Business," for additional
information on our Electrification megatrend initiative. Accordingly, we are focusing on expanding our market share on
electrified platforms, including both sensor and electrical protection products. Many of the components and subsystems that we
have historically developed and produced will play a significant role in this expansion, but we will also seek strategic
partnerships and acquisitions to accelerate the growth and transformation of our product portfolio. By entering into such
relationships, we obtain access to new technologies and solutions, which we can leverage with our existing expertise to
optimize and expand our product portfolio. Beyond Electrification, we also recognize the potential market impact of
autonomous vehicles and advanced driver-assistance systems, and are developing sensors to facilitate development of this
market by manufacturers of vehicles (light passenger, heavy on and off-road) and material handling equipment.

32



The technology-driven, highly-customized, and integrated nature of our products requires customers to invest heavily in
certification and qualification to ensure proper functioning of the systems in which our products are embedded. We believe the
capital commitment and time required for this process significantly increases the switching costs for our customers once a
particular sensor has been designed and installed in a system. As a result, our sensors are rarely substituted during a product
lifecycle, which in the case of the traditional automotive market historically lasts five to seven years. We focus on new
applications that will help us secure new business, drive long-term growth, and provide an opportunity to define a leading
application technology in collaboration with our customers.

Our strategies of leveraging core technology platforms and focusing on high-volume applications enable us to provide
our customers with highly-customized products at a relatively low cost, as compared to the costs of the systems in which our
products are embedded. We have achieved our current cost position through a continuous process of migration and
transformation to best-cost manufacturing locations, global best-cost sourcing, product design improvements, and ongoing
productivity-enhancing initiatives.

COVID-19

The coronavirus ("COVID-19") pandemic has caused widespread disruptions to our Company, employees, customers,
suppliers, and communities since the first quarter of 2020. We recognized the global impact of the COVID-19 pandemic early,
and took a wide range of actions across our organization, designed to benefit the health and safety of employees, while also
enabling us to respond to customer needs and enhance our financial flexibility during the pandemic. We are continuing to work
with local, state, and federal governmental health agencies in many countries, implementing measures to help protect
employees and minimize the spread of COVID-19 in our communities.

In the third and fourth quarters of 2020, the global economy continued to rebound following a period of commercial
lockdowns and quarantines instituted by governments around the world in response to the spread of COVID-19 earlier in the
year. Our response to that rebound has enabled our revenue to grow sequentially in the second half of fiscal year 2020, as we
continue to deliver strong market outgrowth. For fiscal year 2020, we delivered 880 basis points of market outgrowth in our
heavy vehicle and off-road ("HVOR") business and 690 basis points of market outgrowth in our automotive business. We
continue to monitor all of our end markets and customers to ensure that our resources are balanced against forecasts and
prioritized against critical growth opportunities.

Due in part to large-scale shutdowns early in 2020 caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, the automotive industry supply
chain is currently facing a global shortage of semiconductors, the technology used to make microchips, resulting in paused
production on certain vehicles and increased costs to procure microchips. We believe this shortage will have an adverse impact
on our operating costs in fiscal year 2021. If the impacts of this shortage are more severe than we expect, it could result in
further deterioration of our results, potentially for a longer period than currently anticipated.

New Business Wins

During fiscal year 2020, we closed $465 million in new business wins ("NBOs"), including $180 million in
Electrification wins, higher than our average over the past five years. We define NBOs as incremental revenue to our current
base of business that is expected to be recognized on average in the fifth year after entry into the agreement, when the program
typically reaches its normal volume. We have demonstrated progress against our megatrend initiatives, such as Electrification,
and intend to continue these efforts to expand our markets and provide strong growth and differentiation for the future. We
continue to believe investments in these megatrends, including technology collaborations and partnerships with third parties to
expand our technological capabilities, will further our end market diversification, increase our long-term growth rate and
provide important competitive advantages as these trends transform our world. In addition, we believe that the overall market
environment may provide meaningful opportunities to further strengthen our portfolio through strategically important, value-
creating acquisitions.

Financial Flexibility

We have taken multiple steps to enhance our financial flexibility. In the second quarter, we implemented various cost
reduction activities, including temporary salary reductions and furloughs, resulting in savings in the second quarter of
approximately $21.8 million, including the impact of government subsidies. These salary reductions and furloughs did not
continue in the third or fourth quarters. However, we have continued working to align our long-term operating costs with future
expected demand levels, maintaining lower levels of discretionary spending and keeping production in certain facilities at a
level necessary to be in line with end market demand. In addition, we reduced our capital expenditures for the year and are
carefully managing our working capital. Also in the second quarter, we initiated the Q2 2020 Global Restructure Program,
discussed in more detail below.
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We believe that we are in a strong financial position today, having generated $559.8 million of operating cash flow in
fiscal year 2020. Additionally, in the third quarter of 2020, we took advantage of historically low interest rates in issuing $750.0
million aggregate principal amount of 3.75% senior notes due 2031 (the "3.75% Senior Notes") under an indenture dated as of
August 17, 2020. In addition, on February 3, 2021, we announced that we intended to redeem in full the outstanding balance on
our $750.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6.25% senior notes due 2026 (the "6.25% Senior Notes") in March 2021.
Refer to Note 14, “Debt,” of our Financial Statements for additional information on this planned redemption. In taking these
actions, we are extending the maturity of our debt profile and lowering our cost of capital.

02 2020 Global Restructure Program

On June 30, 2020, in response to the potential long-term impact of the global financial and health crisis caused by the
COVID-19 pandemic on our business, we committed to a plan to reorganize our business (the "Q2 2020 Global Restructure
Program"), which consists of voluntary and involuntary reductions-in-force and certain site closures in order to align our cost
structure to the demand levels that we anticipated in the coming quarters. This program is expected to impact approximately
880 positions. We have taken a large portion of the actions contemplated under the Q2 2020 Global Restructure Program, with
the majority expected to be completed on or before June 30, 2021.

Over the life of the Q2 2020 Global Restructure Program, we expect to incur restructuring charges of between $31.0
million and $33.7 million related to reductions-in-force and between $8.0 million and $10.0 million related to site closures. We
expect to settle these charges with cash on hand.

In fiscal year 2020, we recognized $24.5 million of severance charges related to the Q2 2020 Global Restructure
Program. As of December 31, 2020, our severance liability related to the Q2 2020 Global Restructure Program was $10.8
million. Refer to Note 5, "Restructuring and Other Charges, Net," of our Financial Statements, for additional information on the
Q2 2020 Global Restructure Program.

We continue to realize savings related to the Q2 2020 Global Restructure Program and from ongoing cost reduction
activities and spend controls. Such savings represented approximately $13 million in fiscal year 2020. We expect that the
actions taken as a result of the Q2 2020 Global Restructure Program will result in annualized savings of personnel- and
facilities-related costs of approximately $43 million by 2021.

Selected Segment Information

We operate in, and report financial information for, two reportable segments: Performance Sensing and Sensing
Solutions.

Set forth below is selected information for each of these segments for the periods presented. Amounts and percentages in
the tables below have been calculated based on unrounded numbers. Accordingly, certain amounts may not appear to
recalculate due to the effect of rounding.

The following table presents net revenue by segment for the identified periods:

For the year ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
Percent of Percent of Percent of
(Dollars in millions) Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total
Net revenue:
Performance Sensing $ 22238 73.0% $ 2,546.0 738 % $ 2,627.7 74.6 %
Sensing Solutions 821.8 27.0 904.6 26.2 894.0 25.4
Total net revenue $  3,045.6 100.0 % § 3,450.6 100.0 % $ 3,521.6 100.0 %

34



The following table presents segment operating income in U.S. dollars ("USD") and as a percentage of segment net
revenue for the identified periods (prior period information has been recast to reflect revised presentation as discussed in Note

20, "Segment Reporting," of our Financial Statements):

For the year ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
Percent of Percent of Percent of
Segment Segment Segment

(Dollars in millions) Amount Net Revenue Amount Net Revenue Amount Net Revenue
Segment operating income:

Performance Sensing $ 532.5 239% § 670.5 263 % $ 728.3 27.7 %

Sensing Solutions 241.2 29.4 % 294.0 32.5 % 295.0 33.0 %

Total segment operating income $ 773.7 $ 964.4 $ 11,0232

For a reconciliation of total segment operating income to consolidated operating income, refer to Note 20, "Segment

Reporting," of our Financial Statements.

Selected Geographic Information

We are a global business with significant operations around the world and a diverse revenue mix by geography, customer,
and end market. The following table presents (as a percentage of total) property, plant and equipment, net ("PP&E"), and net

revenue by geographic region for the identified periods:

PP&E, net as of December 31,

Net revenue for the year ended December 31,

2020 2019 2020 2019 2018
Americas 33.1 % 34.8 % 393 % 42.3 % 42.0 %
Europe 24.4 % 23.2 % 26.8 % 28.1 % 29.2 %
Asia and rest of world 42.5 % 42.0 % 33.9 % 29.6 % 28.8 %

Refer to Note 20, "Segment Reporting," of our Financial Statements for additional information related to our PP&E, net
by selected geographic area as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and net revenue by selected geographic area for the years ended

December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018.

Net Revenue by End Market

Our net revenue for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018 was derived from the following end markets
(amounts are calculated based on unrounded numbers, and may not appear to recalculate):

(Percentage of total)

Automotive

HVOR

Industrial

Heating, ventilation and air conditioning ("HVAC")
Aerospace

Other

For the year ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
57.5 % 58.8 % 60.4 %
16.7 % 16.2 % 15.6 %
11.0 % 10.2 % 9.6 %
6.2 % 5.8 % 59 %
45 % 5.1 % 4.7 %
4.1 % 39% 3.8 %

We are a significant supplier to multiple OEMs within many of these end markets, thereby reducing customer

concentration risk.

Factors Affecting Our Operating Results

The following discussion describes components of the consolidated statements of operations as well as factors that impact
those components. Refer to Note 2, "Significant Accounting Policies," of our Financial Statements, and Critical Accounting
Policies and Estimates included elsewhere in this MD&A for additional information on the accounting policies and estimates

made related to these components.

Net revenue

We generate revenue primarily from the sale of tangible products. Because we derive a significant portion of our revenue
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from sales into the automotive end market, conditions in the automotive industry can have a significant impact on the amount of
revenue that we recognize. However, outside of the automotive industry, we sell our products to end-users in a wide range of
industries, end markets, and geographic regions. As a result, the drivers of demand for these products vary considerably and are
influenced by the conditions in these industries, end markets, or geographic regions.

Our overall net revenue is impacted by various factors, which we characterize as either "organic" or "inorganic." Organic
factors are reflective of our ongoing operations. Inorganic factors are either not reflective of our historical business or related to
situations for which we have little to no control (e.g. changes in foreign currency exchange rates).

Our net revenue may be impacted by the following organic factors:
» fluctuations in overall economic activity within the geographic regions in which we operate;

* underlying growth in one or more of our core end markets, either worldwide or in particular geographies in which
we operate;

» the number of our products used within existing applications, or the development of new applications requiring these
products, due to regulations or other factors;

* the "mix" of products sold, including the proportion of new or upgraded products and their pricing relative to
existing products;

»  changes in product sales prices (including quantity discounts, rebates, and cash discounts for prompt payment);
» changes in the level of competition faced by our products, including the launch of new products by competitors; and
»  our ability to successfully develop, launch, and sell new products and applications.
Our net revenue may be impacted by the following inorganic factors:
» fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates; and
* acquisitions and divestitures.

While the factors described above may impact net revenue in each of our reportable segments, the impact of these factors
on our reportable segments can differ. For more information about revenue risks relating to our business, refer to Item 1A,
"Risk Factors," included elsewhere in this Report.

Cost of revenue

We manufacture the majority of our products and subcontract only a limited number of products to third parties. As such,
our cost of revenue consists principally of the following:

*  Production Materials Costs. We purchase much of the materials used in production on a global best-cost basis, but
we are still impacted by global and local market conditions, including fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates. A portion of our production materials contains certain commodities, resins, and rare earth metals, and the cost
of these materials may vary with underlying pricing. However, we enter into forward contracts to economically
hedge a portion of our exposure to the potential change in prices associated with certain of these commodities. The
terms of these contracts fix the price at a future date for various notional amounts associated with these
commodities. Gains and losses recognized on these derivatives are recorded in other, net and are not included in cost
of revenue. Refer to Note 6, "Other, Net," of our Financial Statements for additional information.

*  Employee Costs. Employee costs include wages and benefits for employees involved in our manufacturing
operations and certain engineering activities, including variable incentive compensation. A significant portion of
these costs can fluctuate on an aggregate basis in direct correlation with changes in production volumes. As a
percentage of net revenue, these costs may decline as a result of economies of scale associated with higher
production volumes, and conversely, may increase with lower production volumes. These costs also fluctuate based
on local market conditions. We rely on contract workers for direct labor in certain geographies. As of December 31,
2020, we had approximately 2,500 direct labor contract workers on a worldwide basis.

»  Sustaining Engineering Activity Costs. These costs relate to modifications of existing products for use by new and
existing customers in familiar applications.
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Other. Our remaining cost of revenue primarily consists of:

» gains and losses on certain foreign currency forward contracts that are designated as cash flow hedges;
*  material yields;

e costs to import raw materials, such as tariffs;

e depreciation of fixed assets used in the manufacturing process;

e freight costs;

*  warchousing expenses;

*  maintenance and repair expenses;

*  operating supplies; and

*  other general manufacturing expenses, such as expenses for energy consumption and operating lease expense.

Changes in cost of revenue as a percentage of net revenue have historically been impacted by a number of factors,

including:

changes in the price of raw materials, including the impact of changes in costs to import such raw materials, such as
tariffs;

price reductions provided to our customers;

implementation of cost improvement measures aimed at increasing productivity, including reduction of fixed
production costs, refinements in inventory management, design and process driven changes, and the coordination of
procurement within each subsidiary and at the business level;

product lifecycles, as we typically incur higher cost of revenue associated with new product development (related to
excess manufacturing capacity and higher production costs during the initial stages of product launches) and during
the phase-out of discontinued products;

changes in production volumes — production costs are capitalized in inventory based on normal production volumes,
as revenue increases, the fixed portion of these costs does not;

transfer of production to our lower-cost manufacturing facilities;

changes in depreciation expense, including those arising from the adjustment of PP&E to fair value associated with
acquisitions;

fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates;
changes in product mix;
changes in logistics costs;

acquisitions and divestitures — acquired and divested businesses may generate higher or lower cost of revenue as a
percentage of net revenue than our core business; and

the increase in the carrying value of inventory that is adjusted to fair value as a result of the application of purchase
accounting associated with acquisitions.

Research and development expense

We develop products that address increasingly complex engineering and operating performance requirements to help our
customers solve their most difficult challenges in the automotive, HVOR, industrial, and aerospace industries. We believe that
continued focused investment in research and development ("R&D") is critical to our future growth and maintaining our
leadership positions in the markets we serve. Our R&D efforts are directly related to timely development of new and enhanced
products that are central to our business strategy. We continuously develop our technologies to meet an evolving set of
customer requirements and new product introductions. We conduct such activities in areas that we believe will increase our
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long-term revenue growth. Our development expense is typically associated with engineering core technology platforms to
specific applications and engineering major upgrades that improve the functionality or reduce the cost of existing products. In
addition, we continually consider new technologies where we may have expertise for potential investment or acquisition.

An increasing portion of our R&D activities are being directed towards technologies and megatrends that we believe have
the potential for significant future growth, but relate to products that are not currently within our core business or include new
features and capabilities for existing products. Expenses related to these activities are less likely to result in increased near-term
revenue than our more mainstream development activities.

R&D expense consists of costs related to product design, development, and process engineering. Costs related to
modifications of existing products for use by new and existing customers in familiar applications are presented in cost of
revenue and are not included in R&D expense. The level of R&D expense in any period is related to the number of products in
development, the stage of the development process, the complexity of the underlying technology, the potential scale of the
product upon successful commercialization, and the level of our exploratory research.

Selling, general and administrative expense

Selling, general and administrative ("SG&A") expense consists of all expenditures incurred in connection with the sale
and marketing of our products, as well as administrative overhead costs, including:

+  salary and benefit costs for sales and marketing personnel and administrative staff;
»  share-based incentive compensation expense;
»  charges related to the use and maintenance of administrative offices, including depreciation expense;

»  other administrative costs, including expenses relating to information systems, human resources, and legal and
accounting services;

»  other selling and marketing related costs, such as expenses incurred in connection with travel and communications;
and

* transaction costs associated with acquisitions.

Changes in SG&A expense as a percentage of net revenue have historically been impacted by a number of factors,
including:

+ changes in sales volume, as higher volumes enable us to spread the fixed portion of our selling, marketing, and
administrative expense over higher revenue (e.g. expenses relating to our sales and marketing personnel can
fluctuate due to prolonged trends in sales volume, while expenses relating to administrative personnel generally do
not increase or decrease directly with changes in sales volume);

»  price reductions provided to our customers;

»  changes in the mix of products we sell, as some products may require more customer support and sales effort than
others;

» new product launches in existing and new markets, as these launches typically involve a more intense sales and
marketing activity before they are integrated into customer applications and systems;

* changes in our customer base, as new customers may require different levels of sales and marketing attention;
» fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates; and

* acquisitions and divestitures - acquired and divested businesses may require different levels of SG&A expense as a
percentage of net revenue than our core business.

Depreciation expense

Depreciation expense includes depreciation of PP&E, which includes assets held under finance lease, and amortization of
leasehold improvements. Depreciation expense is included in either cost of revenue or SG&A expense depending on the use of
the asset as a manufacturing or administrative asset. Depreciation expense will vary according to the age of existing PP&E and
the level of capital expenditures.
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Amortization expense

We have recognized a significant amount of definite-lived intangible assets. Acquisition-related definite-lived intangible
assets are amortized on an economic-benefit basis according to the useful lives of the assets, or on a straight-line basis if a
pattern of economic benefits cannot be reliably determined. The amount of amortization expense related to definite-lived
intangible assets depends on the amount and timing of definite-lived intangible assets acquired and where previously acquired
definite-lived intangible assets are in their estimated life-cycle. In general, the economic benefit of a definite-lived intangible
asset is concentrated towards the beginning of its useful life.

Restructuring and other charges, net

Restructuring and other charges, net consists of severance, outplacement, other separation benefits, and facility and other
exit costs. These charges may be incurred as part of an announced restructuring plan, or may be individual charges recognized
related to acquired businesses or the termination of a limited number of employees that do not represent the initiation of a larger
restructuring plan. Restructuring and other charges, net also includes the gain, net of transaction costs, from the sale of
businesses, and other operating income or expense that is not presented elsewhere in operating income.

Amounts recognized in restructuring and other charges, net will vary according to the extent of our restructuring
programs and other income or expense items not presented elsewhere in operating income.

Interest expense, net

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, we had gross outstanding indebtedness of $4,036.6 million and $3,291.8 million,
respectively. This indebtedness consists of a secured credit facility and senior unsecured notes. Refer to Note 14, "Debt," of our
Financial Statements for additional information.

The credit agreement governing our secured credit facility (as amended, the "Credit Agreement") provides for senior
secured credit facilities (the "Senior Secured Credit Facilities") consisting of a term loan facility (the "Term Loan"), the $420.0
million revolving credit facility (the "Revolving Credit Facility"), and incremental availability (the "Accordion") under which
additional secured credit facilities could be issued under certain circumstances.

Our respective senior unsecured notes (the "Senior Notes") accrue interest at fixed rates. However, the Term Loan and the
Revolving Credit Facility accrue interest at variable interest rates, which drives some of the variability in interest expense, net.
Refer to Item 7A, "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk," included elsewhere in this Report for more
information regarding our exposure to potential changes in variable interest rates.

Interest income, which is netted against interest expense on the consolidated statements of operations, relates to interest
earned on our cash and cash equivalent balances, and varies according to the balances in, and the interest rates provided by,
these investments.

Other, net

Other, net primarily includes gains and losses associated with the remeasurement of non-USD denominated monetary
assets and liabilities into USD, changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments not designated as cash flow hedges,
debt financing transactions, and net periodic benefit cost, excluding service cost.

Amounts recognized in other, net vary according to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, changes in the forward
prices for the foreign currencies and commodities that we hedge, the number and magnitude of debt financing transactions we
undertake, and the change in funded status of our pension and other post-retirement benefit plans.

Refer to Note 6, "Other, Net," of our Financial Statements for additional information related to the components of other,
net. Refer to Item 7A, "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk," included elsewhere in this Report for
additional information related to our exposure to potential changes in foreign currency exchange rates and commodity prices.
Refer to Note 14, "Debt," of our Financial Statements for additional information related to our debt financing transactions.

Provision for/(benefit from) income taxes

We are subject to income tax in the various jurisdictions in which we operate. The provision for/(benefit from) income
taxes consists of:

*  current tax expense, which relates primarily to our profitable operations in non-U.S. tax jurisdictions and
withholding taxes related to interest, royalties, and repatriation of foreign earnings; and
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» deferred tax expense (or benefit), which represents adjustments in book-to-tax basis differences primarily related to
the step-up in fair value of fixed and intangible assets, including goodwill, acquired in connection with business
combination transactions, the utilization of net operating losses, changes in tax rates, and changes in our assessment
of the realizability of our deferred tax assets.

Our current tax expense is favorably impacted by the amortization of definite-lived intangible assets and other tax
benefits derived from our operating and capital structure, including tax incentives in both the U.K. and China as well as
favorable tax status in Mexico. In addition, our tax structure takes advantage of participation exemption regimes that permit the
receipt of intercompany dividends without incurring taxable income in those jurisdictions.

While the extent of our future tax liability is uncertain, the impact of purchase accounting for past and future acquisitions,
changes to debt and equity capitalization of our subsidiaries, and the realignment of the functions performed and risks assumed
by our various subsidiaries are among the factors that will determine the future book and taxable income of each of our
subsidiaries and of Sensata as a whole.

Our effective tax rate will generally not equal the U.S. statutory tax rate due to various factors, the most significant of
which are described below. As these factors fluctuate from year to year, our effective tax rate will change. The factors include,
but are not limited to, the following:

»  establishing or releasing a portion of the valuation allowance related to our gross deferred tax assets;

« foreign tax rate differential - we operate in locations outside the U.S., including Bermuda, Bulgaria, China,
Malaysia, the Netherlands, South Korea, and the U.K., that historically have had statutory tax rates different than the
U.S. statutory tax rate. This can result in a foreign tax rate differential that may reflect a tax benefit or detriment.
This foreign tax rate differential can change from year to year based upon the jurisdictional mix of earnings and
changes in current and future enacted tax rates, tax holidays, and favorable tax regimes available to certain of our
foreign subsidiaries;

» changes in tax laws, including emerging Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development guidelines and
European Commission challenges to sovereign European Union member states;

* losses incurred in certain jurisdictions, which cannot be currently benefited, as it is not more likely than not that the
associated deferred tax asset will be realized in the foreseeable future;

+ foreign currency exchange gains and losses;

» asaresult of income tax audit settlements, final assessments, or lapse of applicable statutes of limitation, we may
recognize an income tax expense or benefit including the reversal of previously accrued interest and penalties; and

*  in certain jurisdictions, we recognize withholding and other taxes on intercompany payments, including dividends.
Seasonality

Refer to Item 1, "Business," included elsewhere in this Report for discussion of our assessment of seasonality related to
our business.

Inflation

With the exception of the effects of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, which are discussed elsewhere in this
MD&A if material, we do not believe that inflation has had a material effect on our financial condition or results of operations
in recent years.

Legal Proceedings

Refer to Item 3, "Legal Proceedings," included elsewhere in this Report for discussion of legal proceedings related to our
business.
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Results of Operations

Our discussion and analysis of results of operations are based upon our Financial Statements. The Financial Statements
have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"). The preparation of the
Financial Statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the amounts reported therein. We base our
estimates on historical experience and assumptions believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, and we re-evaluate such
estimates on an ongoing basis. Actual results could differ from our estimates under different assumptions or conditions. Our
significant accounting policies and estimates are more fully described in Note 2, "Significant Accounting Policies," of our
Financial Statements, and Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates included elsewhere in this MD&A.

The table below presents our historical results of operations in millions of dollars and as a percentage of net revenue. We
have derived these results of operations from our Financial Statements. Amounts and percentages in the table below have been
calculated based on unrounded numbers. Accordingly, certain amounts may not appear to recalculate due to the effect of
rounding.

For the year ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
Percent of Percent of Percent of
Amount Net Revenue Amount Net Revenue Amount Net Revenue
Net revenue:
Performance Sensing $ 22238 73.0% $ 2,546.0 73.8% $ 2,627.7 74.6%
Sensing Solutions 821.8 27.0 904.6 26.2 894.0 254
Total net revenue 3,045.6 100.0 % 3,450.6 100.0 % 3,521.6 100.0%
Operating costs and expenses 2,707.8 88.9 2,893.7 83.9 2,811.2 79.8
Operating income 337.7 11.1 556.9 16.1 710.4 20.2
Interest expense, net (171.8) (5.6) (158.6) (4.6) (153.7) 44
Other, net 0.3) 0.0 (7.9) 0.2) (30.4) 0.9)
Income before taxes 165.6 54 390.4 11.3 526.4 14.9
Provision for/(benefit from) income taxes 1.4 0.0 107.7 3.1 (72.6) 2.1)
Net income $ 164.3 54% $ 282.7 82% $ 599.0 17.0 %

Net revenue - Overall

Net revenue declined 11.7% in fiscal year 2020 largely due to end-market contraction caused by the COVID-19
pandemic. Excluding an increase of 0.2% attributed to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, net revenue in fiscal year
2020 declined 11.9% on an organic basis. This represents a market outgrowth of 600 basis points. Organic revenue growth (or
decline), presented throughout this MD&A, is a financial measure not presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Refer to the
section entitled Non-GAAP Financial Measures below for additional information related to our use of organic revenue growth
(or decline).

Net revenue declined 2.0% in fiscal year 2019 primarily due to a somewhat weaker automotive end market. Excluding a
decline of 0.2% related to acquisitions and divestitures and a decline of 0.7% related to changes in foreign currency exchange
rates, net revenue in fiscal year 2019 declined 1.1% on an organic basis.

Net Revenue - Performance Sensing
Fiscal year 2020 vs. fiscal year 2019

Performance Sensing net revenue declined 12.7% in fiscal year 2020, driven primarily by impacts from the COVID-19
pandemic. Excluding an increase of 0.1% attributed to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, Performance Sensing net
revenue declined 12.8% on an organic basis. The overall net revenue decline in fiscal year 2020 was reduced in the second half
of the year as OEM customers ramped production within their facilities through the half in an effort to replace production lost
during shut-downs earlier in the year. The Performance Sensing results in fiscal year 2020 represent market outgrowth of 770
basis points. In addition, price reductions of 1.5%, primarily to automotive customers, contributed to the Performance Sensing
organic revenue decline.

Net revenue in our automotive business declined 13.6% in fiscal year 2020, or 13.9% on an organic basis. These results
represented market outgrowth of 690 basis points compared to the combination of an automotive market that was down 18.5%
and the impact of OEM customers working down inventory. This market outgrowth continues to be led by new product
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launches in emissions, electrification, and safety-related applications and systems. A high level of automotive production in the

fourth quarter resulted in customers using more inventory on hand to fill orders, negatively impacting fiscal year 2020 revenue.

However, as our customers restock inventory in 2021, we expect to recover much of that decline. Global automotive production
is expected to grow in fiscal year 2021, as the industry seeks to address low inventory levels at the end of 2020. In addition, we

expect market outgrowth in our automotive business to be in the range of 400 to 600 basis points for fiscal year 2021.

Net revenue in our HVOR business declined 9.2% in fiscal year 2020, on a reported and an organic basis. These results
represented market outgrowth of 880 basis points compared to an HVOR market that was down 18.0%. Our China on-road
truck business continued to post better than expected growth as a result of the accelerated adoption of NS6 emissions
regulations. We expect market outgrowth in our HVOR business to be in the range of 600 to 800 basis points for fiscal year
2021.

Fiscal year 2019 vs. fiscal year 2018

Performance Sensing net revenue declined 3.1% in fiscal year 2019. Excluding a decline of 1.9% related to acquisitions
and divestitures and a decline of 0.7% related to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, Performance Sensing net revenue
declined 0.5% on an organic basis. In addition, price reductions of 1.6%, primarily to automotive customers, contributed to the
Performance Sensing organic revenue decline.

Net revenue in our automotive business declined 4.3% in fiscal year 2019, or 0.9% on an organic basis. These results
represented market outgrowth compared to an automotive market that was down 5.6%. All of our major geographic markets
contributed to this market outgrowth, but most notably China.

Net revenue in our HVOR business grew 1.6% in fiscal year 2019, or 0.9% on an organic basis. These results represented
market outgrowth compared to an HVOR market that was down 5.5%. This market outgrowth was primarily related to our
business in China as well as in the agriculture and on-road truck markets.

Net Revenue - Sensing Solutions
Fiscal year 2020 vs. fiscal year 2019

Sensing Solutions net revenue declined 9.2% in fiscal year 2020 on a reported and an organic basis. This decrease was
the result of year over year declines in the industrial, appliance and HVAC, and aerospace end markets. The global industrial
and appliance and HVAC end markets began recovering in the fourth quarter of 2020, which, in addition to supply chain
restocking, reflected strong growth in HVAC and 5G applications. The decline in the aerospace industry has continued
throughout the year, reflecting reduced OEM production and significantly lower air traffic. New product launches in the fourth
quarter, primarily in the defense market, partially offset this decline.

Fiscal year 2019 vs. fiscal year 2018

Sensing Solutions net revenue increased 1.2% in fiscal year 2019. Excluding an increase of 4.6% related to acquisitions
and divestitures and a decline of 0.7% related to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, Sensing Solutions net revenue
declined 2.7% on an organic basis. The organic revenue decline was primarily attributable to weakness in the industrial markets
we serve. This market weakness is consistent with trends in certain indicators of demand, such as global manufacturing
Purchasing Managers' Index ("PMI") data, which is signaling continued demand contraction, consistent with slowing customer
production and reductions in inventory. Our industrial growth in China is particularly weak as exports out of China have further
slowed as a result of tariffs and global trade actions.
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Operating costs and expenses

Operating costs and expenses for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018 are presented, in millions of
dollars and as a percentage of revenue, in the following table. Amounts and percentages in the table below have been calculated
based on unrounded numbers. Accordingly, certain amounts may not appear to recalculate due to the effect of rounding.

For the year ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
Percent of Percent of Percent of
Amount Net Revenue Amount Net Revenue Amount Net Revenue
Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of revenue $ 2,119.0 69.6% $ 22674 65.7% $ 2,266.9 64.4 %
Research and development 131.4 43 148.4 4.3 147.3 42
Selling, general and administrative 294.7 9.7 281.4 8.2 305.6 8.7
Amortization of intangible assets 129.5 43 142.9 4.1 139.3 4.0
Restructuring and other charges, net 33.1 1.1 53.6 1.6 (47.8) (1.4)
Total operating costs and expenses $ 2,707.8 889 % $ 2,893.7 839% $ 28112 79.8 %

Cost of revenue

Cost of revenue as a percentage of net revenue increased in fiscal year 2020 primarily as a result of (1) productivity
headwinds from lower volume, the resulting lower than normal capacity, and increased costs related to the COVID-19
pandemic, (2) a $29.2 million loss related to a judgment against us in intellectual property litigation brought against Schrader
by Wasica Finance GmbH ("Wasica") in the first quarter of 2020 (settled in the third quarter 2020), and (3) higher
compensation to retain and incentivize critical employee talent, partially offset by (1) the impact of ongoing savings resulting
from cost reduction activities taken in fiscal years 2019 and 2020, (2) the favorable effect of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates, and (3) savings from temporary cost reductions in the second quarter of 2020 (including salary reductions and
furloughs). Refer to Note 15, "Commitments and Contingencies," of our Financial Statements for additional information
regarding the intellectual property litigation with Wasica.

We expect that the actions taken as part of the Q2 2020 Global Restructure Program will result in improvements of our
cost of revenue as a percentage of revenue in future quarters. Refer to the Q2 2020 Global Restructure Program section earlier
in this MD&A for a more detailed discussion of expected savings under the Q2 2020 Global Restructure Program. However, we
believe that the impact of a global microchip shortage that the entire industry is currently experiencing will adversely impact
our operating costs in fiscal year 2021.

Cost of revenue as a percentage of net revenue increased in fiscal year 2019 primarily as a result of (1) organic revenue
decline, (2) negative mix due to new product launches, (3) the impact of acquisitions and divestitures, and (4) increased tariff
costs, partially offset by (1) the favorable effect of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and (2) lower variable
compensation.

Research and development expense

R&D expense decreased in fiscal year 2020 primarily as a result of the impact of ongoing savings resulting from cost
reduction activities taken in fiscal years 2019 and 2020, somewhat offset by increased R&D expense related to our megatrend
initiatives. R&D expense related to our megatrend initiatives was $26.1 million in fiscal year 2020, an increase of $6.8 million
from fiscal year 2019. We currently expect approximately $50 million to $55 million in total megatrend-related spend in 2021,
the majority of which is expected to be in R&D.

R&D expense did not materially change in fiscal year 2019 compared to fiscal year 2018 as increased design and
development effort to support new design wins and fund megatrends was offset by the favorable effect of changes in foreign
currency exchange rates, primarily the Euro and British Pound Sterling.

Selling, general and administrative expense

SG&A expense increased in fiscal year 2020 primarily as a result of (1) higher compensation to retain and incentivize
critical employee talent, (2) increased costs related to enhancements and improvements to our global operating processes to
increase productivity, and (3) incremental SG&A related to acquired businesses, partially offset by (1) the impact of ongoing
savings resulting from cost reduction activities taken in fiscal years 2019 and 2020 and (2) savings from temporary cost
reductions in the second quarter of 2020 (including salary reductions and furloughs).

43



SG&A expense decreased in fiscal year 2019 primarily due to (1) lower variable compensation, (2) lower selling costs,
(3) the divestiture of the Valves Business, (4) the favorable effect of changes in foreign currency exchange rates (primarily the
Euro, Chinese Renminbi, and British Pound Sterling), and (5) lower costs related to our redomicile in the prior year, partially
offset by additional SG&A expense related to GIGAVAC.

Amortization of intangible assets

Amortization expense decreased in fiscal year 2020 primarily as a result of the effect of the economic-benefit method of
amortization. We expect amortization expense to be approximately $117.5 million in fiscal year 2021. Refer to Note 11,
"Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, Net," of our Financial Statements for additional information regarding definite-lived
intangible assets and the related amortization.

Amortization expense increased in fiscal year 2019 primarily due to the intangible assets acquired with GIGAVAC,
partially offset by the effect of the economic-benefit method of amortization.

Restructuring and other charges, net

Restructuring and other charges, net for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018 consisted of the following
(amounts have been calculated based on unrounded numbers, accordingly, certain amounts may not appear to recalculate due to
the effect of rounding):

For the year ended December 31,

(In millions) 2020 2019 2018
Q2 2020 Global Restructure Program $ 245 $ — —
Other restructuring charges
Severance costs, net @ 3.0 29.2 7.6
Facility and other exit costs 1.3 0.8 0.9
Gain on sale of Valves Business — — (64.4)
Other ) 43 235 8.2
Restructuring and other charges, net $ 331 $ 536 $ (47.8)

(M Refer to Q2 2020 Global Restructure Program section elsewhere in this MD&A for additional discussion related to the
Q2 2020 Global Restructure Program.

For each of the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018, these charges include termination benefits provided in
connection with workforce reductions of manufacturing, engineering, and administrative positions, including the
elimination of certain positions related to site consolidations, net of reversals. For the year ended December 31, 2020,
these charges related to termination benefits arising from the shutdown and relocation of operating sites in Northern
Ireland and Belgium. For the year ended December 31, 2019, these charges included approximately $12.7 million of
benefits provided under a voluntary retirement incentive program offered to a limited number of eligible employees in the
U.S., and $6.5 million of termination benefits provided under a one-time benefit arrangement related to the shutdown and
relocation of an operating site in Germany.

(2)

@ 1In the year ended December 31, 2018, we completed the sale of the Valves Business. The gain on this sale was recorded
in restructuring and other charges, net.

@ Represents charges that are not included in one of the other classifications. In the year ended December 31, 2020, we
settled intellectual property litigation brought against Schrader by Wasica and released $11.7 million of the related
liability. This release largely offset a charge of $12.1 million resulting from a prejudgment interest-related award granted
by the court on behalf of Wasica in the three months ended June 30, 2020. Refer to Note 15, "Commitments and
Contingencies," of our Financial Statements for additional information related to this matter. In the year ended
December 31, 2019, we recognized a $17.8 million loss related to the termination of a supply agreement in connection
with the Metal Seal Precision, Ltd. ("Metal Seal") litigation. In the year ended December 31, 2018, we incurred $5.9
million of incremental direct costs in order to transact the sale of the Valves Business. For each of the years ended
December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018, we recorded expense related to the deferred compensation arrangement that we
entered into in connection with the acquisition of GIGAVAC in the year ended December 31, 2018.
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Operating income

In fiscal year 2020, operating income decreased $219.1 million or 39.4%, to $337.7 million (11.1% of net revenue)
compared to $556.9 million (16.1% of net revenue) in fiscal year 2019. This decrease was primarily driven by:

* the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, most significantly lower revenues, productivity headwinds from our
manufacturing facilities running at lower than normal capacity, and increased COVID-19 related costs;

»  charges related to the intellectual property litigation brought against Schrader by Wasica, which was settled in the
third quarter, including $29.2 million recognized in the first quarter of 2020;

*  $24.5 million in severance charges recognized in fiscal year 2020 related to the Q2 2020 Global Restructure
Program; and

*  higher compensation costs to retain and incentivize critical employee talent.
These drivers of reduced operating income were partially offset by:

* the non-recurrence of certain restructuring and other charges from fiscal year 2019 as discussed in Note 5,
"Restructuring and Other Charges, Net," of our Financial Statements, including $17.8 million loss related to the
termination of a supply agreement in connection with the Metal Seal litigation and charges related to benefits
provided under a voluntary retirement incentive program;

*  cost savings of approximately $21.8 million realized in the second quarter of 2020 resulting from temporary salary
reductions, furloughs, and government subsidies;

» the impact of ongoing savings resulting from cost reduction activities taken in fiscal years 2019 and 2020;
» the favorable effect of changes in foreign currency exchange rates; and
» lower intangible amortization expense due to the impacts of the economic-benefit method of amortization.

We expect that the actions taken as part of the Q2 2020 Global Restructure Program will result in savings that will be
favorable to operating income in future quarters. Refer to the 02 2020 Global Restructure Program section earlier in this
MD&A for a more detailed discussion of expected savings under the Q2 2020 Global Restructure Program. However, we
believe that the impact of a global microchip shortage that the entire automotive industry is currently experiencing will
adversely impact out operating costs in fiscal year 2021.

In fiscal year 2019, operating income decreased $153.5 million or 21.6%, to $556.9 million (16.1% of net revenue)
compared to $710.4 million (20.2% of net revenue) in fiscal year 2018. This decrease was primarily due to (1) the divestiture of
the Valves Business in the third quarter of 2018 (including the gain on sale), (2) net productivity headwinds partly due to the
scaling up of new product launches, (3) $17.8 million loss related to the termination of a supply agreement in connection with
the Metal Seal litigation, (4) higher severance charges, (5) the impact of increased tariffs, and (6) lower volume.

These drivers of reduced operating income were partially offset by (1) lower variable compensation, (2) lower selling
expenses, (3) the favorable effect of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, and (4) the impact of the acquisition of
GIGAVAC.

Interest expense, net

Interest expense, net increased in fiscal year 2020 primarily due to (1) a full year of interest expense related to the $450.0
million aggregate principal amount of 4.375% senior notes due 2030 (the "4.375% Senior Notes"), which were issued in fiscal
year 2019, (2) a partial year of interest expense related to the 3.75% Senior Notes, which was issued in 2020, (3) interest
incurred on outstanding balances of the Revolving Credit Facility in fiscal year 2020, and (4) lower cash interest income due to
declining interest rates. These increases were partially offset by lower interest expense on the term loan, which was partially
repaid in fiscal year 2019 after issuance of the 4.375% Senior Notes. On April 1, 2020, in order to enhance our financial
flexibility given the general uncertainty associated with the COVID-19 pandemic, we withdrew $400.0 million from our
Revolving Credit Facility. On August 17, 2020, we took advantage of historically low interest rates in issuing the 3.75% Senior
Notes. Given improving market conditions and strengthening financial markets, we decided to use a portion of the proceeds to
repay $400.0 million of outstanding borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility.
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On February 3, 2021, we announced that we intended to redeem in full the outstanding balance on the 6.25% Senior
Notes in March 2021. The 6.25% Senior Notes represent approximately $46.9 million of interest expense annually. We will
redeem the notes at a premium of 103.125% of the aggregate principal amount of the notes outstanding, or approximately $23.4
million. Accordingly, while we expect to see a reduction of interest expense in fiscal year 2021 as a result of this redemption,
the reduction will be significantly larger in fiscal year 2022.

Interest expense, net increased in fiscal year 2019 primarily due to an increase in interest expense related to higher
variable interest rates as well as the impact of the refinancing of a portion of our Term Loan (variable rate debt) through the
issuance of the 4.375% Senior Notes (fixed rate debt). The 4.375% Senior Notes accrued interest at a higher rate than the
average rate of the Term Loan in fiscal year 2019.

Other, net

Other, net for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018 consisted of the following (amounts have been
calculated based on unrounded numbers, accordingly, certain amounts may not appear to recalculate due to the effect of
rounding):

For the year ended December 31,

(In millions) 2020 2019 2018
Currency remeasurement gain/(loss) on net monetary assets ) $ 10.8 $ 6.8) $ (18.9)
(Loss)/gain on foreign currency forward contracts (6.8) 2.2 2.1
Gain/(loss) on commodity forward contracts 10.0 4.9 (8.5)
Loss on debt financing ® — 4.4) 2.4)
Net periodic benefit cost, excluding service cost (10.0) 3.2) (3.6)
Other (4.5) (0.7) 0.9
Other, net $ 0.3) $ 79) $ (30.4)

1)
(2)

Relates to the remeasurement of non-USD denominated monetary assets and liabilities into USD.

Relates to changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that are not designated as hedges. Refer to Note 19,
"Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities," of our Financial Statements for additional information related to gains
and losses related to our commodity and foreign currency exchange forward contracts. Refer to Item 7A, "Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk," included elsewhere in this Report for an analysis of the sensitivity of other,
net to changes in foreign currency exchange rates and commodity prices.

& Refer to Note 14, "Debt," of our Financial Statements for additional information related to our debt financing transactions.
Provision for/(benefit from) income taxes

The components of provision for/(benefit from) income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018 are
described in more detail in the table below (amounts have been calculated based on unrounded numbers, accordingly, certain
amounts may not appear to recalculate due to the effect of rounding):

For the year ended December 31,

(In millions) 2020 2019 2018

Tax computed at statutory rate of 21% $ 348 $ 820 § 110.5

Intangible property transfers ) (54.2) — —

Foreign tax rate differential ) (22.0) (19.1) (41.2)
Valuation allowances ¥ 8.9 19.6 (123.4)
Withholding taxes not creditable 12.2 9.5 8.7

Change in tax laws or rates 11.2 5.1 (22.3)
Research and development incentives ® (7.4) (8.4) (19.5)
Reserve for tax exposure 0.2) 20.1 10.8

Other © 18.0 (1.1) 3.7

Provision for/(benefit from) income taxes $ 14 3 107.7  $ (72.6)

(" Represents the product of the applicable statutory tax rate and income before taxes, as reported in the consolidated

statements of operations.
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@ In the fourth quarter of 2020, we completed the transfer of intangible property which resulted in a net $54.2 million

deferred tax benefit.

©®  we operate in locations outside the U.S., including Bermuda, Bulgaria, China, Malaysia, the Netherlands, South Korea,

and the U.K., that historically have had statutory tax rates different than the U.S. statutory tax rate. This can result in a
foreign tax rate differential that may reflect a tax benefit or detriment. This foreign tax rate differential can change from
year to year based upon the jurisdictional mix of earnings and changes in current and future enacted tax rates. Certain of
our subsidiaries are currently eligible, or have been eligible, for tax exemptions or reduced tax rates in their respective
jurisdictions.

@ During the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018, we established/(released) a portion of our valuation allowance

and recognized a deferred tax expense/(benefit). The valuation allowance as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $202.1
million and $146.8 million, respectively. A significant portion of our valuation allowance is against interest carryforwards
due to our assessment of our inability to utilize these carryforwards based on our forecasts of future taxable income. The
remaining valuation allowance primarily relates to foreign tax credit capital loss carryforwards, goodwill tax basis, and net
operating losses in jurisdictions outside the U.S. It is more likely than not that these attributes will not be utilized in the
foreseeable future. However, any future release of all or a portion of this valuation allowance resulting from a change in
this assessment will impact our future provision for/(benefit from) income taxes.

©) Certain income of our U.K. subsidiaries is eligible for lower tax rates under the "patent box" regime, resulting in certain of

our intellectual property income being taxed at a rate lower than the U.K. statutory tax rate. In China, we benefit from the
R&D super deduction regime. In fiscal year 2018, we substantially completed an assessment of our ability to claim an
R&D credit in the U.S. As a result of this assessment, we recognized a tax benefit of $10.0 million. Prior to fiscal year
2018, the deferred tax asset related to these R&D credits would have been offset by the valuation allowance.

©®  Refer to Note 7, "Income Taxes," of our Financial Statements for additional information related to other components of our

rate reconciliation.

We do not believe that there are any known trends related to the reconciling items noted above that are reasonably likely
to result in our liquidity increasing or decreasing in any material way.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

This section provides additional information regarding certain non-GAAP financial measures, including organic revenue
growth (or decline), adjusted operating income, adjusted operating margin, adjusted net income, adjusted earnings per share
("EPS"), free cash flow, net leverage ratio, and adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization
("EBITDA"), which are used by our management, Board of Directors, and investors. We use these non-GAAP financial
measures internally to make operating and strategic decisions, including the preparation of our annual operating plan,
evaluation of our overall business performance, and as a factor in determining compensation for certain employees.

The use of our non-GAAP financial measures have limitations. They should be considered as supplemental in nature and
are not intended to be considered in isolation from, or as an alternative to, reported net revenue growth (or decline), operating
income, operating margin, net income, diluted EPS, operating cash flows, segment operating margin, total debt, finance lease,
and other financing obligations, or EBITDA, respectively, calculated in accordance with U.S. GAAP. In addition, our measures
of organic revenue growth (or decline), adjusted operating income, adjusted operating margin, adjusted net income, adjusted
EPS, free cash flow, net leverage ratio, and adjusted EBITDA may not be the same as, or comparable to, similar non-GAAP
financial measures presented by other companies.

Organic revenue growth (or decline)

Organic revenue growth (or decline) is defined as the reported percentage change in net revenue, calculated in accordance
with U.S. GAAP, excluding the period-over-period impact of foreign currency exchange rate differences as well as the net
impact of material acquisitions and divestitures for the 12-month period following the respective transaction date(s).

We believe that organic revenue growth (or decline) provides investors with helpful information with respect to our
operating performance, and we use organic revenue growth (or decline) to evaluate our ongoing operations as well as for
internal planning and forecasting purposes. We believe that organic revenue growth (or decline) provides useful information in
evaluating the results of our business because it excludes items that we believe are not indicative of ongoing performance or
that we believe impact comparability with the prior-year period.
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Adjusted operating income, adjusted operating margin, adjusted net income, and adjusted EPS

We define adjusted operating income as operating income determined in accordance with U.S. GAAP, excluding certain
non-GAAP adjustments which are described below. Adjusted operating margin is calculated by dividing adjusted operating
income by net revenue calculated in accordance with U.S. GAAP. We define adjusted net income as follows: net income
determined in accordance with U.S. GAAP, excluding certain non-GAAP adjustments which are described in Non-GAAP
Adjustments below. Adjusted EPS is calculated by dividing adjusted net income by the number of diluted weighted-average
ordinary shares outstanding in the period.

Management uses adjusted operating income, adjusted operating margin, adjusted net income, and adjusted EPS as
measures of operating performance, for planning purposes (including the preparation of our annual operating budget), to
allocate resources to enhance the financial performance of our business, to evaluate the effectiveness of our business strategies,
in communications with our Board of Directors and investors concerning our financial performance, and as factors in
determining compensation for certain employees. We believe investors and securities analysts also use these non-GAAP
financial measures in their evaluation of our performance and the performance of other similar companies. These non-GAAP
financial measures are not measures of liquidity.

Free cash flow

Free cash flow is defined as net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities less additions to PP&E and capitalized
software. We believe free cash flow is useful to management and investors as a measure of cash generated by business
operations that will be used to repay scheduled debt maturities and can be used to, among other things, fund acquisitions,
repurchase ordinary shares, and (or) accelerate the repayment of debt obligations.

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA represents net income, determined in accordance with U.S. GAAP, excluding interest expense, net,
provision for/(benefit from) income taxes, depreciation expense, amortization of intangible assets, and the following non-
GAAP adjustments, if applicable: (1) restructuring related and other, (2) financing and transaction related, (3) deferred gain or
loss on commodities and other derivative instruments, and (4) step-up inventory amortization. Refer to Non-GAAP Adjustments
below for additional discussion of these adjustments.

Net leverage ratio

Net leverage ratio represents net debt (total debt, finance lease and other financing obligations less cash and cash
equivalents) divided by last twelve months ("LTM") adjusted EBITDA. We believe that the net leverage ratio is a useful
measure to management and investors in understanding trends in our overall financial condition.

Non-GAAP adjustments

Many of our non-GAAP adjustments relate to a series of strategic initiatives developed by our management aimed at
better positioning us for future revenue growth and an improved cost structure. These initiatives have been modified from time
to time to reflect changes in overall market conditions and the competitive environment facing our business. These initiatives
include, among other items, acquisitions, divestitures, restructurings of certain business, supply chain, or corporate activities,
and various financing transactions. We describe these adjustments in more detail below.

* Restructuring related and other: includes charges, net related to certain restructuring and other exit activities as well as
other costs (or income) that we believe are either unique or unusual to the identified reporting period, and that we
believe impact comparisons to prior period operating results. Such costs include charges related to optimization of our
manufacturing processes to increase productivity. This type of activity occurs periodically, however each action is
unique, discrete, and driven by various facts and circumstances. Such amounts are excluded from internal financial
statements and analyses that management uses in connection with financial planning, and in its review and assessment
of our operating and financial performance, including the performance of our segments. Restructuring related and
other does not, however, include charges related to the integration of acquired businesses, including such charges that
are recognized as restructuring and other charges, net in the consolidated statements of operations. This adjustment is
net of current tax impacts.

* Financing and other transaction costs: includes losses or gains related to debt financing transactions, losses or gains
related to the divestiture of a business, losses or gains related to the termination of a long-term unfavorable supply
agreement, and costs incurred, including for legal, accounting, and other professional services, that are directly related
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to an acquisition, divestiture, or equity financing transaction. There was no current tax effect related to this adjustment
in any period presented.

Deferred loss or gain on derivative instruments: includes unrealized losses or gains on derivative instruments that do
not qualify for hedge accounting as well as the impact of commodity prices on our raw material costs relative to the
strike price on our commodity forward contracts. There was no current tax effect related to this adjustment in any
period presented.

Step-up depreciation and amortization: includes depreciation and amortization expense associated with the step-up in
fair value of assets acquired in connection with a business combination (e.g., PP&E, definite-lived intangible assets,
and inventory). The current tax effect of step-up depreciation and amortization was not material, individually or in the
aggregate, in any period presented.

Deferred taxes and other tax related: includes adjustments for book-to-tax basis differences due primarily to the step-
up in fair value of fixed and intangible assets and goodwill, the utilization of net operating losses, and adjustments to
our U.S. valuation allowance in connection with certain acquisitions and U.S. tax law changes. Other tax related items
include certain adjustments to unrecognized tax positions and withholding tax on repatriation of foreign earnings.

Amortization of debt issuance costs. There was no current tax effect related to this adjustment in any period presented.

*  Where applicable, the current tax effect of non-GAAP adjustments.

Our definition of adjusted net income excludes the deferred provision for/(benefit from) income taxes and other tax
related items described above. As we treat deferred income taxes as an adjustment to compute adjusted net income, the deferred
income tax effect associated with the reconciling items presented below would not change adjusted net income for any period

presented.

Non-GAAP reconciliations

The following tables provide reconciliations of certain financial measures calculated in accordance with U.S. GAAP to
the related non-GAAP financial measures for the periods presented. Refer to Non-GAAP Adjustments section above for
additional information on these adjustments. Amounts and percentages have been calculated based on unrounded numbers,
accordingly, certain amounts may not appear to recalculate due to the effect of rounding.

For the year ended December 31, 2020

Operating Operating
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts) Income Margin Net Income Diluted EPS
Reported (GAAP) $ 337.7 11.1% § 1643 $ 1.04
Non-GAAP adjustments:
Restructuring related and other © 87.4 2.9 93.8 0.59
Financing and other transaction costs 8.2 0.3 6.4 0.04
Step-up depreciation and amortization 125.7 4.1 125.7 0.79
Deferred loss/(gain) on derivative instruments 3.1 0.1 (7.0) (0.04)
Amortization of debt issuance costs — — 6.9 0.04
Deferred taxes and other tax related — — (40.9) (0.26)
Total adjustments 224.4 7.4 184.9 1.17
Adjusted (non-GAAP) $ 562.1 185 % § 3492 § 2.21
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For the year ended December 31, 2019

Operating Operating
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts) Income Margin Net Income Diluted EPS
Reported (GAAP) $ 556.9 16.1 % $ 282.7 $ 1.75
Non-GAAP adjustments:
Restructuring related and other © 61.9 1.8 62.2 0.38
Financing and other transaction costs 28.9 0.8 349 0.22
Step-up depreciation and amortization 139.6 4.0 139.6 0.86
Deferred gain on derivative instruments (1.6) (0.0) (6.5) (0.04)
Amortization of debt issuance costs — — 7.8 0.05
Deferred taxes and other tax related — — 55.2 0.34
Total adjustments 228.8 6.6 293.2 1.81
Adjusted (non-GAAP) $ 785.7 228 % § 5759 % 3.56
For the year ended December 31, 2018
Operating Operating
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts) Income Margin Net Income Diluted EPS
Reported (GAAP) $ 710.4 202 % $ 599.0 $ 3.53
Non-GAAP adjustments:
Restructuring related and other © 25.4 0.7 28.0 0.17
Financing and other transaction costs © (47.0) (1.3) (40.3) (0.24)
Step-up depreciation and amortization 141.2 4.0 141.2 0.83
Deferred loss on derivative instruments 2.0 0.1 12.5 0.07
Amortization of debt issuance costs — — 7.3 0.04
Deferred taxes and other tax related — — (128.3) (0.76)
Total adjustments 121.5 3.5 20.4 0.12
Adjusted (non-GAAP) $ 832.0 23.6 % $ 6194 § 3.65

(2)

(b)

(©)

Financing and other transaction costs in fiscal year 2018 primarily included a $64.4 million gain on the sale of the Valves
Business and $5.9 million of related transaction costs.

In fiscal year 2020, we completed the transfer of intangible property which resulted in a $54.2 million deferred tax benefit.
In fiscal year 2018, we recognized a deferred tax benefit of $144.1 million, which primarily included a $122.1 million
deferred tax benefit related to the release of a portion of our U.S. valuation allowance as discussed in Note 7, "Income
Taxes," of our Financial Statements.

The following table presents the components of our restructuring related and other non-GAAP adjustment to net income for
fiscal years 2020, 2019, and 2018 (amounts have been calculated based on unrounded numbers, accordingly, certain
amounts may not appear to recalculate due to the effect of rounding):

For the year ended December 31,

(in millions) 2020 2019 2018

Business and corporate repositioning $ 358 § 40.1 $ 8.8
Supply chain repositioning and transition @ 30.8 16.0 15.3
Preacquisition legal matters 31.5 53 2.9
Other — 2.7 1.0
Income tax effect ) 4.2) (1.8) —
Total non-GAAP restructuring related and other $ 93.8 §$ 622 § 28.0

i.  Fiscal year 2020 includes charges incurred under the Q2 2020 Global Restructure Program and charges for other
business and corporate workforce rationalization. Fiscal year 2019 includes benefits provided under a voluntary
retirement incentive program, costs related to the shutdown and relocation of an operating site in Germany, and
charges for other business and corporate workforce rationalization.

ii. Primarily includes costs related to optimization of our manufacturing processes to increase productivity and
rationalize our manufacturing footprint and supply chain workforce rationalization.

iii. Represents charges incurred related to legal matters associated with acquired businesses, for which new information
is brought to light after the measurement period for the business combination is closed, but for which the liability
relates to events or activities that occurred prior to our acquisition of the business. Fiscal year 2020 primarily includes
the settlement of intellectual property litigation brought against Schrader by Wasica.
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iv. We treat deferred taxes as a non-GAAP adjustment. Accordingly, the tax effect of the restructuring related and other
non-GAAP adjustment refers only to the current tax effect. With respect to the year ended December 31, 2018, the
current tax effect was not material, individually or in the aggregate.

v. Total presented is the non-GAAP adjustment to net income. Certain portions of these adjustments are non-operating
and are excluded from the non-GAAP adjustments to operating income.

The following table provides a reconciliation of net cash provided by operating activities in accordance with U.S. GAAP
to free cash flow.

For the year ended December 31,

(in millions) 2020 2019 2018

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 559.8 $ 619.6 $ 620.6
Additions to property, plant and equipment and capitalized software $ (106.7) $ (161.3) $ (159.8)
Free cash flow $ 453.1 § 4583 $ 460.8

The following table provides a reconciliation of net income in accordance with U.S. GAAP to Adjusted EBITDA.

For the year ended December 31,

(in millions) 2020 2019 2018
Net income $ 1643 $ 282.7 $ 599.0
Interest expense, net 171.8 158.6 153.7
Provision for/(benefit from) income taxes 1.4 107.7 (72.6)
Depreciation expense 125.7 115.9 106.0
Amortization of intangible assets 129.5 142.9 139.3
EBITDA 592.6 807.7 925.4
Non-GAAP Adjustments
Restructuring related and other 93.1 64.1 28.0
Financing and other transaction costs 6.4 34.9 (40.3)
Deferred (gain)/loss on derivative instruments (7.0) (6.5) 12.5
Step up inventory amortization — — 0.9
Adjusted EBITDA $ 685.1 $ 900.1 $ 926.5

The following table provides a reconciliation of total debt, finance lease, and other financing obligations in accordance
with U.S. GAAP to net leverage ratio.

For the year ended December 31,

(in millions) 2020 2019 2018
Current portion of long-term debt, finance lease and other financing obligations $ 7572 $ 69 § 14.6
Finance lease and other financing obligations, less current portion 27.9 28.8 30.6
Long-term debt, net 3,213.7 3,219.9 3,219.8
Total debt, finance lease, and other financing obligations 3,998.9 3,255.6 3,264.9
Less: Discount 9.6) (11.8) (15.2)
Less: Deferred financing costs (28.1) (24.5) (23.2)
Total gross indebtedness 4,036.6 3,291.8 3,303.3
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 1,862.0 774.1 729.8
Net Debt $ 2,174.6  $ 2,517.7 $ 2,573.4
Adjusted EBITDA (LTM) $ 685.1 $ 900.1 $ 926.5
Net leverage ratio 3.2 2.8 2.8
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 we held cash and cash equivalents in the following regions:

As of December 31,

(in millions) 2020 2019

United Kingdom $ 253 $ 8.8
United States 17.2 7.0
The Netherlands 1,514.1 522.9
China 185.2 119.3
Other 120.2 116.1
Total $ 1,862.0 $ 774.1

The amount of cash and cash equivalents held in these geographic regions fluctuates throughout the year due to a variety
of factors, such as our use of intercompany loans and dividends and the timing of cash receipts and disbursements in the normal
course of business. Our earnings are not considered to be permanently reinvested in certain jurisdictions in which they were
earned. We recognize a deferred tax liability on these unremitted earnings to the extent the remittance of such earnings cannot
be recovered in a tax free manner.

On February 3, 2021, we announced that we intended to redeem in full the outstanding balance on the 6.25% Senior Notes
in March 2021 at 103.125%. The cash to be used to execute this redemption, or approximately $773.4 million (excluding fees),
will be paid from cash on hand in the Netherlands.

Cash Flows

The table below summarizes our primary sources and uses of cash for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and
2018. We have derived the summarized statements of cash flows from our Financial Statements. Amounts in the table below
have been calculated based on unrounded numbers. Accordingly, certain amounts may not appear to recalculate due to the
effect of rounding.

For the year ended December 31,
(in millions) 2020 2019 2018
Net cash provided by/(used in):

Operating activities:

Net income adjusted for non-cash items $ 4053 $ 6303 $ 687.5

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net 154.5 (10.7) (66.9)
Operating activities 559.8 619.6 620.6
Investing activities (182.1) (208.8) (237.6)
Financing activities 710.2 (366.5) (406.2)
Net change $ 1,087.9 § 443 § (23.3)
Operating Activities

The decrease in cash provided by operating activities in fiscal year 2020 compared to fiscal year 2019 relates primarily to
lower profitability, partially offset by reduced inventory and the timing of supplier payments and customer receipts.

The decrease in cash provided by operating activities in fiscal year 2019 compared to fiscal year 2018 relates primarily to
lower operating profitability and the timing of supplier payments and customer receipts.

Investing Activities

Investing activities include cash flows related to additions to PP&E and capitalized software, the acquisition or divestiture
of a business or assets, and the acquisition or sale of certain debt and equity securities.

The decrease in cash used in investing activities in fiscal year 2020 compared to fiscal year 2019 relates primarily to
lower capital expenditures, partially offset by additional cash paid for acquisitions.

In fiscal year 2019, net cash used in investing activities decreased primarily due to lower cash used in acquisitions, as the
GIGAVAC merger was completed in fiscal year 2018. This was partially offset by the impact of the divestiture of the Valves
Business, for which proceeds were received in fiscal year 2018, cash paid for the acquisition of assets from Metal Seal, and
cash used to acquire debt and equity securities.
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In fiscal year 2021, we anticipate additions to PP&E and capitalized software of approximately $160.0 million to $170.0
million, which we expect to be funded with cash flows from operations.

Financing Activities

In fiscal year 2020 cash provided by financing activities was $710.2 million compared to cash used in financing activities
of $366.5 million in fiscal year 2019. This change was primarily driven by issuance of the 3.75% Senior Notes and lower
volume of share repurchases.

On February 3, 2021, we announced we announced that we intended to redeem in full the outstanding balance on the
6.25% Senior Notes in March 2021 at 103.125%. The cash to be used to execute this redemption, or approximately $773.4
million (excluding fees), will be presented in cash used in financing activities in the first quarter of 2021.

In fiscal year 2019, net cash used in financing activities decreased primarily due to a lower volume of ordinary share
repurchases.

Indebtedness and Liquidity

The following table details our gross outstanding indebtedness as of December 31, 2020, and the associated interest
expense for the year then ended:

Interest Expense, net

Balance as of for the year ended
(in millions) December 31, 2020 December 31, 2020
Term Loan $ 456.1 $ 11.0
4.875% Senior Notes 500.0 24.4
5.625% Senior Notes 400.0 22.5
5.0% Senior Notes 700.0 35.0
6.25% Senior Notes'" 750.0 46.9
4.375% Senior Notes 450.0 19.7
3.75% Senior Notes 750.0 10.5
Revolving Credit Facility — 2.1
Finance lease and other financing obligations 30.5 2.6
Total gross outstanding indebtedness $ 4,036.6
Other interest expense, net 2.9)
Interest expense, net $ 171.8

" On February 3, 2021, we announced that we intended to redeem in full the outstanding balance on the 6.25% Senior Notes
in March 2021. As a result, these notes have been classified as current on our consolidated balance sheets as of December
31, 2020.

@ Other interest expense, net includes interest income, amortization of debt issuance costs, and interest costs capitalized in
accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Subtopic
835-20, Capitalization of Interest.

Debt Instruments
Refer to Note 14, "Debt," of our Financial Statements for information related to the terms of our debt instruments.
Capital Resources

Our sources of liquidity include cash on hand, cash flows from operations, and available capacity under the Revolving
Credit Facility. In addition, the Senior Secured Credit Facilities provide for the Accordion, under which additional secured debt
may be issued or the capacity of the Revolving Credit Facility may be increased. Availability under the Accordion varies each
period based on our attainment of certain financial metrics as set forth in the terms of the Credit Agreement and the indentures
under which our Senior Notes were issued (the "Senior Notes Indentures"). As of December 31, 2020, availability under the
Accordion was approximately $0.6 billion.

We believe, based on our current level of operations as reflected in our results of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2020, and taking into consideration the restrictions and covenants included in the Credit Agreement and Senior
Notes Indentures discussed below and in Note 14, "Debt," of our Financial Statements, and the redemption of the 6.25% Senior
Notes as discussed below, that these sources of liquidity will be sufficient to fund our operations, capital expenditures, ordinary

53



share repurchases (if and when resumed), and debt service for at least the next twelve months. However, we cannot make
assurances that our business will generate sufficient cash flows from operations or that future borrowings will be available to us
in an amount sufficient to enable us to pay our indebtedness or to fund our other liquidity needs. Further, our highly-leveraged
nature may limit our ability to procure additional financing in the future.

On April 1, 2020, in order to enhance our financial flexibility given the general uncertainty associated with the
COVID-19 pandemic, we withdrew $400.0 million from the Revolving Credit Facility. On August 17, 2020, we used a portion
of the proceeds from the issuance and sale of the 3.75% Senior Notes to repay the balance outstanding on the Revolving Credit
Facility. As of December 31, 2020, we had $416.1 million available under the Revolving Credit Facility, net of $3.9 million of
obligations related to outstanding letters of credit issued thereunder. Outstanding letters of credit are issued primarily for the
benefit of certain operating activities. As of December 31, 2020, no amounts had been drawn against these outstanding letters of
credit. On February 3, 2021, we announced that we intended to redeem in full the $750.0 million aggregate principal amount
outstanding on our 6.25% Senior Notes due 2026 in March 2021. This redemption will be paid with cash on hand.

The Credit Agreement provides that, if our senior secured net leverage ratio exceeds a specified level, we are required to
use a portion of our excess cash flow, as defined in the Credit Agreement, generated by operating, investing, or financing
activities to prepay some or all of the outstanding borrowings under the Senior Secured Credit Facilities. The Credit Agreement
also requires mandatory prepayments of the outstanding borrowings under the Senior Secured Credit Facilities upon certain
asset dispositions and casualty events, in each case subject to certain reinvestment rights, and upon the incurrence of certain
indebtedness (excluding any permitted indebtedness). These provisions were not triggered during the year ended December 31,
2020.

All obligations under the Senior Secured Credit Facilities are unconditionally guaranteed by certain of our subsidiaries
(the "Guarantors"). The collateral for such borrowings under the Senior Secured Credit Facilities consists of substantially all
present and future property and assets of our indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary, Sensata Technologies B.V. ("STBV") and the
Guarantors.

Our ability to raise additional financing, and our borrowing costs, may be impacted by short- and long-term debt ratings
assigned by independent rating agencies, which are based, in significant part, on our performance as measured by certain credit
metrics such as interest coverage and leverage ratios. As of January 29, 2021, Moody’s Investors Service’s corporate credit
rating for STBV was Ba2 with a stable outlook, and Standard & Poor’s corporate credit rating for STBV was BB+ with a
negative outlook. The Standard & Poor's outlook represents a decline from their outlook of "stable" as of December 31, 2019.
The change in outlook reflects the uncertainties in the markets caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. Any future downgrades to
STBV's credit ratings may increase our future borrowing costs, but will not reduce availability under the Credit Agreement.

The Credit Agreement and the Senior Notes Indentures contain restrictions and covenants (described in more detail in
Note 14, "Debt," of our Financial Statements) that limit the ability of STBV and its subsidiaries to, among other things, incur
subsequent indebtedness, sell assets, pay dividends, and make other restricted payments. These restrictions and covenants,
which are subject to important exceptions and qualifications set forth in the Credit Agreement and Senior Notes Indentures,
were taken into consideration in establishing our share repurchase programs, and are evaluated periodically with respect to
future potential funding. We do not believe that these restrictions and covenants will prevent us from funding share repurchases
under our share repurchase programs with available cash and cash flows from operations, should we decide to do so. As of
December 31, 2020, we believe that we were in compliance with all the covenants and default provisions under the Credit
Agreement and the Senior Notes Indentures.

Share repurchase program

From time to time, our Board of Directors has authorized various share repurchase programs, which may be modified or
terminated by our Board of Directors at any time. Under these programs, we may repurchase ordinary shares at such times and
in amounts to be determined by our management, based on market conditions, legal requirements, and other corporate
considerations, on the open market or in privately negotiated transactions, provided that such transactions were completed
pursuant to an agreement and with a third party approved by our shareholders at the annual general meeting. In July 2019, our
Board of Directors authorized our current $500.0 million share repurchase program (the "July 2019 Program"). On April 2,
2020, we announced a temporary suspension of the July 2019 Program, which will continue to remain on hold until market
conditions show greater improvement and stability. As of December 31, 2020, approximately $302.3 million remained
available under the July 2019 Program.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, we repurchased approximately 0.9 million ordinary shares at a weighted-
average price of $39.17 per share under the July 2019 Program.
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During the year ended December 31, 2019, we repurchased ordinary shares under the July 2019 Program and a $250.0
million share repurchase program authorized by our Board of Directors in October 2018 (the "October 2018 Program"). We
repurchased approximately 7.2 million ordinary shares at a weighted-average price of $48.87 per share under these programs.
The October 2018 Program was terminated upon commencement of the July 2019 Program.

During the year ended December 31, 2018, we repurchased approximately 7.6 million ordinary shares at a weighted-
average price of $52.75 per share under a $400.0 million share repurchase program authorized by our Board of Directors in
May 2018.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The table below reflects our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2020. On February 3, 2021, we announced that
we intended to redeem in full the outstanding balance on the 6.25% Senior Notes in March 2021. As a result of this
announcement, the 6.25% Senior Notes have been classified within current liabilities on our consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2020. The table below has been recast to reflect this classification. Amounts we pay in future periods may vary
from those reflected in the table. Amounts in the table below have been calculated based on unrounded numbers. Accordingly,
certain amounts may not appear to recalculate due to the effect of rounding.

Payments Due by Period

Less than One to Three Three to Five More than
(In millions) Total One Year Years Years Five Years
Debt obligations principal” $ 4,006.1 $ 7546 $ 5093 $ 1,1093 $ 1,632.9
Debt obligations interest® 919.3 187.8 2759 205.2 250.4
Finance lease obligations principal® 30.3 2.1 3.1 3.8 213
Finance lease obligations interest™ 19.2 2.5 4.6 4.0 8.2
Other financing obligations principal® 0.2 0.2 — —
Operating lease obligations” 70.0 14.6 21.0 12.6 21.8
Non-cancelable purchase obligations®® 63.2 41.4 21.4 0.3 0.2
Total contractual obligations”® $ 5,083 $  1,003.2 $ 8353 $ 1,3352 $ 1,934.8

" With the exception of the 6.25% Senior Notes, as discussed above, represents the contractually required principal

payments, in accordance with the required payment schedule, on our debt obligations in existence as of December 31,
2020. The redemption of the $750.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6.25% Senior Notes is reflected as an outflow in
fiscal year 2021.

Represents the contractually required interest payments, in accordance with the required payment schedule, on our debt
obligations in existence as of December 31, 2020. Cash flows associated with the next interest payment to be made on our
variable rate debt subsequent to December 31, 2020 were calculated using the interest rates in effect as of the latest interest
rate reset date prior to December 31, 2020, plus the applicable spread. Fiscal year 2021 outflow reflects cash outflow of
$26.0 million related to interest on the 6.25% Senior Notes through March 5, 2021 and cash outflow of $23.4 million
related to the 3.125% premium owed to the lenders as a result of the early redemption. This schedule has also been adjusted
to reflect the annualized full year cash interest savings of approximately $46.9 million per year through fiscal year 2025
and $23.6 million in fiscal year 2026 as a result of early redemption of the 6.25% Senior Notes.

(2)

@ Represents the contractually required payments, in accordance with the required payment schedule, under our finance lease

obligations in existence as of December 31, 2020. No assumptions were made with respect to renewing these leases beyond
their current terms.

@ Represents the contractually required payments, in accordance with the required payment schedule, under our financing

obligations in existence as of December 31, 2020. No assumptions were made with respect to renewing these financing
arrangements beyond their current terms.

) Represents the contractually required payments, in accordance with the required payment schedule, under our operating

lease obligations in existence as of December 31, 2020. No assumptions were made with respect to renewing these leases
beyond their current terms.

© Represents the contractually required payments under our various purchase obligations in existence as of December 31,

2020. No assumptions were made with respect to renewing the purchase obligations at the expiration date of their initial
terms.

(" Contractual obligations denominated in a foreign currency were calculated utilizing the USD to local currency exchange

rates in effect as of December 31, 2020.
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@ This table does not include the contractual obligations associated with our pension and other post-retirement benefit plans.

As of December 31, 2020, we had recognized a net benefit liability of $51.5 million, representing the net unfunded benefit
obligations of the defined benefit and retiree healthcare plans. Refer to Note 13, "Pension and Other Post-Retirement
Benefits," of our Financial Statements for additional information related to our pension and other post-retirement benefits,
including expected benefit payments for the next 10 years. This table also does not include $24.7 million of unrecognized
tax benefits as of December 31, 2020, as we are unable to make reasonably reliable estimates of when cash settlement, if
any, will occur with a tax authority, as the timing and the ultimate resolution of the examination is uncertain. Refer to Note
7, "Income Taxes," of our Financial Statements for additional information related to our unrecognized tax benefits.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

As discussed in Note 2, "Significant Accounting Policies," of our Financial Statements, which more fully describes our
significant accounting policies, the preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires us
to exercise judgment in the process of applying our accounting policies. It also requires that we make estimates and
assumptions about future events that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying
notes. The accounting policies and estimates that we believe are most critical to the portrayal of our financial condition and
results of operations are listed below. We believe these policies require the most difficult, subjective, and complex judgments in
estimating the effect of inherent uncertainties.

Revenue Recognition

The discussion below details the most significant judgments and estimates we make regarding recognition of revenue in
accordance with FASB ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 606,
we recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which we expect to be entitled in exchange for those goods using a five step model. The most critical judgments and estimates
we make in the implementation of this model relate to identifying the contract with the customer and determination of the
transaction price associated with the performance obligation(s) in the contract, specifically related to variable consideration.

While many of the agreements with our customers specify certain terms and conditions that apply to any transaction
between the parties, many of which are in effect for a defined term, the vast majority of these agreements do not result in
contracts (as defined in FASB ASC Topic 606) because they do not create enforceable rights and obligations on the parties.
Specifically, (1) the parties are not committed to perform any obligations in accordance with the specified terms and conditions
until a customer purchase order is received and accepted by us and (2) there is a unilateral right of each party to terminate the
agreement at any time without compensating the other party. For this reason, the vast majority of our contracts (as defined in
FASB ASC Topic 606) are customer purchase orders. If this assessment were to change, it could result in a material change to
the amount of net revenue recognized in a period.

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
promised goods or services to a customer. In determining the transaction price related to a contract, we determine whether the
amount promised in a contract includes a variable amount (variable consideration). Variable consideration may be specified in
the customer purchase order, in another agreement that identifies terms and conditions of the transaction, or based on our
customary practices. We have identified certain types of variable consideration that may be included in the transaction price
related to our contracts, including sales returns (which generally include a right of return for defective or non-conforming
product) and trade discounts (including retrospective volume discounts and early payment incentives). Such variable
consideration has not historically been material. However, should our judgments and estimates regarding variable consideration
change, it could result in a material change to the amount of net revenue recognized in a period.

Goodwill, Intangible Assets, and Long-Lived Assets

Businesses acquired are recognized at their fair value on the date of acquisition, with the excess of the purchase price
over the fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed recognized as goodwill. Intangible assets acquired may
include either definite-lived or indefinite-lived intangible assets, or both. In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 350, Intangibles
—Goodwill and Other, goodwill and intangible assets determined to have an indefinite useful life are not amortized. Instead
these assets are evaluated for impairment on an annual basis, and whenever events or business conditions change that could
indicate that the asset is impaired.

Goodwill

Our judgments regarding the existence of indicators of goodwill impairment are based on several factors, including the
performance of the end markets served by our customers, as well as the actual financial performance of our reporting units and
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their respective financial forecasts over the long-term. We evaluate goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for
impairment in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, unless events occur which trigger the need for an earlier impairment
review.

Identification of reporting units. Our reporting units have been identified based on the definitions and guidance provided
in FASB ASC Topic 350. Identification of reporting units includes an analysis of the components that comprise each of our
operating segments, which considers, among other things, the manner in which we operate our business and the availability of
discrete financial information. Components of an operating segment are aggregated to form one reporting unit if the
components have similar economic characteristics. We periodically review these reporting units to ensure that they continue to
reflect the manner in which the business is operated.

Historically, we have identified six reporting units. In the fourth quarter of 2020, in connection with our review of these
reporting units, and consistent with our determination that our Performance Sensing operating segment was now two separate
operating segments, we determined that our Performance Sensing reporting unit was now two separate reporting units,
Automotive and HVOR. Refer to Note 20, “Segment Reporting,” of our Financial Statements for additional information on this
decision. We reassigned assets and liabilities, including goodwill, to these new reporting units as required by FASB ASC Topic
350. This did not result in an impairment of the goodwill of either reporting unit. Accordingly, we now have seven reporting
units, Automotive, HVOR, Electrical Protection, Industrial Sensing, Aerospace, Power Management, and Interconnection.

Assignment of assets, liabilities, and goodwill to reporting units. Some assets and liabilities relate to the operations of
multiple reporting units. We allocate these assets and liabilities to the reporting units based on methods that we believe are
reasonable and supportable. We apply that allocation method on a consistent basis from year to year. Other assets and liabilities,
such as debt, cash and cash equivalents, and PP&E associated with our corporate offices, are viewed as being corporate in
nature. Accordingly, we do not assign these assets and liabilities to our reporting units.

In the event we reorganize our business, we reassign the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities among the affected
reporting units using a reasonable and supportable methodology. As businesses are acquired, we assign assets acquired
(including goodwill) and liabilities assumed to a new or existing reporting unit as of the date of the acquisition. In the event a
disposal group meets the definition of a business, goodwill is allocated to the disposal group based on the relative fair value of
the disposal group to the retained portion of the related reporting unit.

Evaluation of goodwill for impairment. We have the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether a
quantitative analysis must be performed. The objective of a qualitative analysis is to assess whether it is more likely than not
that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value. We make this assessment based on macroeconomic
conditions, industry and market considerations, cost factors, overall financial performance, and other relevant factors as
applicable. If we elect not to use this option, or if we determine that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting
unit is less than its carrying value, then we prepare a discounted cash flow analysis to determine whether the carrying value of
the reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value. If the carrying value of a reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value, we
recognize an impairment of goodwill for the amount of this excess, in accordance with the guidance in FASB Accounting
Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2017-04, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350), Simplifying the Test for Goodwill
Impairment, which we adopted as of January 1, 2020.

We evaluated the goodwill of each reporting unit for impairment as of October 1, 2020 using a combination of the
quantitative and qualitative methods. As a result of this evaluation we determined that none of our reporting units were
impaired. For reporting units that were evaluated using the quantitative method, we estimated the fair values of our reporting
units using the discounted cash flow method. For this method, we prepared detailed annual projections of future cash flows for
the reporting unit for the subsequent five fiscal years (the "Discrete Projection Period"). We estimated the value of the cash
flows beyond the fifth fiscal year (the "Terminal Year") by applying a multiple to the projected Terminal Year EBITDA. The
cash flows from the Discrete Projection Period and the Terminal Year were discounted at an estimated weighted-average cost of
capital ("WACC") appropriate for each reporting unit. The estimated WACC was derived, in part, from comparable companies
appropriate to each reporting unit. We believe that our procedures for estimating discounted future cash flows, including the
Terminal Year valuation, were reasonable and consistent with accepted valuation practices.

The preparation of forecasts of revenue growth and profitability for use in the long-range forecasts, the selection of the
discount rates, and the estimation of the multiples used in valuing the Terminal Year involve significant judgments. Changes to
these assumptions could affect the estimated fair value of one or more of our reporting units and could result in a goodwill
impairment charge in a future period.
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Types of events that could result in a goodwill impairment. As noted above, the assumptions used in the quantitative
calculation of fair value of our reporting units, including the long-range forecasts, the selection of the discount rates, and the
estimation of the multiples or long-term growth rates used in valuing the Terminal Year involve significant judgments. Changes
to these assumptions could affect the estimated fair values of our reporting units calculated in prior years and could result in a
goodwill impairment charge in a future period. We believe that certain factors, such as a future recession, any material adverse
conditions in the automotive industry and other industries in which we operate, and other factors identified in Item 1A, "Risk
Factors," included elsewhere in this Report could cause us to revise our long-term projections and could reduce the multiples
used to determine Terminal Year value. Such revisions could result in a goodwill impairment charge in the future.

We consider a combination of quantitative and qualitative factors to determine whether a reporting unit is at risk of failing
Step 1 of the goodwill impairment test, including: the timing of our most recent quantitative impairment tests and the relative
amount by which a reporting unit’s fair value exceeded its then carrying value, the inputs and assumptions underlying our
valuation models and the sensitivity of our fair value measurements to those inputs and assumptions, the impact that adverse
economic or market conditions may have on the degree of uncertainty inherent in our long-term operating forecasts, and
changes in the carrying value of a reporting unit’s net assets from the time of our most recent goodwill impairment test. Based
on the results of this analysis, we do not consider any of our reporting units to be at risk of failing Step 1 of the goodwill
impairment test.

Evaluation of other intangible assets for impairment

Indefinite-lived intangible assets. Similar to goodwill, we perform an annual impairment review of our indefinite-lived
intangible assets in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, unless events occur that trigger the need for an earlier impairment
review. We have the option to first assess qualitative factors in determining whether it is more likely than not that an indefinite-
lived intangible asset is impaired. If we elect not to use this option, or we determine that it is more likely than not that the asset
is impaired, we perform a quantitative impairment analysis in which we estimate the fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible
asset and compare that amount to its carrying value. In performing this analysis, we estimate the fair value by using the relief-
from-royalty method, in which we make assumptions about future conditions impacting the fair value of our indefinite-lived
intangible assets, including projected growth rates, cost of capital, effective tax rates, and royalty rates. Impairment, if any, is
based on the excess of the carrying value over the fair value of these assets.

We evaluated our indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment as of October 1, 2020 (using the quantitative method)
and determined that the estimated fair values of these assets exceeded their carrying values at that date. Should certain
assumptions used in the development of the fair values of our indefinite-lived intangible assets change, we may be required to
recognize an impairment charge in the future.

Definite-lived intangible assets. Reviews are regularly performed to determine whether facts or circumstances exist that
indicate that the carrying values of our definite-lived intangible assets to be held and used are impaired. If we determine that
such facts or circumstances exist, we estimate the recoverability of these assets by comparing the projected undiscounted net
cash flows associated with these assets to their respective carrying values. If the sum of the projected undiscounted net cash
flows falls below the carrying value of an asset, the impairment charge is measured as the excess of the carrying value over the
fair value of that asset. We determine fair value by using the appropriate income approach valuation methodology depending on
the nature of the definite-lived intangible asset.

Evaluation of long-lived assets for impairment

We periodically re-evaluate the carrying values and estimated useful lives of long-lived assets whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values of these assets may not be recoverable. We use estimates of
undiscounted cash flows from long-lived assets to determine whether the carrying values of such assets are recoverable over the
assets’ remaining useful lives. These estimates include assumptions about our future performance and the performance of the
end markets we serve. If an asset is determined to be impaired, the impairment is the amount by which its carrying value
exceeds its fair value. These evaluations are performed at a level where discrete cash flows may be attributed to either an
individual asset or a group of assets.

Income Taxes

As part of the process of preparing our financial statements, we are required to estimate our provision for (or benefit
from) income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. This involves estimating our actual current tax exposure,
including assessing the risks associated with tax audits, together with assessing temporary differences resulting from the
different treatment of items for tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
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Management judgment is required in determining various elements of our provision for (or benefit from) income taxes,
including the amount of tax benefits on uncertain tax positions, and deferred tax assets that should be recognized.

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, we record uncertain tax positions on the basis of a two-step
process. First, we determine whether it is more likely than not that the tax positions will be sustained based on the technical
merits of the position. Second, for those tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, we recognize
the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement with the relevant
tax authority. Significant judgment is required in evaluating whether our tax positions meet this two-step process. The more-
likely-than-not recognition threshold must be met in each reporting period to support continued recognition of any tax benefits
claimed, both in the current year, as well as any year which remains open for review by the relevant tax authority at the balance
sheet date. Penalties and interest related to uncertain tax positions may be classified as either income taxes or another expense
line item in the consolidated statements of operations. We classify interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions within
the provision for/(benefit from) income taxes line of the consolidated statements of operations.

We recognize deferred tax assets to the extent that we believe these assets are more likely than not to be realized. In
measuring our deferred tax assets, we consider all available evidence, both positive and negative, including future reversals of
existing taxable temporary differences, projected future taxable income, tax-planning strategies, and results of recent operations
in various jurisdictions, to determine whether, based on the weight of that evidence, a valuation allowance is needed for all or
some portion of the deferred tax assets. Significant judgment is required in considering the relative impact of these items along
with the weight that should be given to each category, commensurate with the extent to which it can be objectively verified. The
more negative evidence that exists, the more positive evidence is necessary, and the more difficult it is to support a conclusion
that a valuation allowance is not needed. Additionally, we utilize the "more likely than not" criteria established in FASB ASC
Topic 740 to determine whether the future tax benefit from the deferred tax assets should be recognized.

Ultimately, the ability to realize our deferred tax assets is based on our assessment of future taxable income, which is
based on estimated future results. In the event that actual results differ from these estimates, or we adjust our estimates in the
future, we may need to adjust our valuation allowance assessment, which could materially impact our consolidated financial
position and results of operations.

Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits

We sponsor various pension and other post-retirement benefit plans covering our current and former employees in several
countries.

The funded status of pension and other post-retirement benefit plans is measured as the difference between the fair value
of plan assets and the benefit obligation at the measurement date. Changes in the funded status of a pension or other post-
retirement benefit plan are recognized in the year in which they occur by adjusting the recognized (net) liability or asset with an
offsetting adjustment to either net income or other comprehensive income.

Our most difficult and subjective judgments and estimates relate to the valuation of our benefit obligations. Benefit
obligations represent the actuarial present value of all benefits attributed by the pension formula as of the measurement date to
employee service rendered before that date, and can be categorized as projected benefit obligations or accumulated benefit
obligations. The value of projected benefit obligations take into consideration various actuarial assumptions including future
compensation levels and the probability of payment between the measurement date and the expected date of payment.
Accumulated benefit obligations differ from projected benefit obligations only in that they include no assumptions about future
compensation levels.

The most significant assumptions used to determine a plan's funded status and net periodic benefit cost relate to discount
rate, expected return on plan assets, and rate of increase in healthcare costs. These assumptions are reviewed annually. Refer to
Note 13, "Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits," of our Financial Statements for additional information related to the
values determined for each of these assumptions in the last three fiscal years.

The discount rate reflects the current rate at which the pension and other post-retirement liabilities could be effectively
settled, considering the timing of expected payments for plan participants. It is used to discount the estimated future obligations
of the plans to the present value of the liability reflected in the financial statements. In estimating this rate in countries that have
a market of high-quality fixed-income investments, we consider rates of return on these investments included in various bond
indices, adjusted to eliminate the effects of call provisions and differences in the timing and amounts of cash outflows related to
the bonds. In other countries where a market of high-quality fixed-income investments does not exist, we estimate the discount
rate using government bond yields or long-term inflation rates.
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The expected return on plan assets reflects the average rate of earnings expected on the funds invested to provide for the
benefits included in the projected benefit obligation. To determine the expected return on plan assets, we consider the historical
returns earned by similarly invested assets, the rates of return expected on plan assets in the future, and our investment strategy
and asset mix with respect to the plans’ funds.

The rate of increase of healthcare costs directly impacts the estimate of our future obligations in connection with our post-
retirement medical benefits. Our estimate of healthcare cost trends is based on historical increases in healthcare costs under
similarly designed plans, the level of increase in healthcare costs expected in the future, and the design features of the
underlying plan.

Other assumptions used include employee demographic factors such as compensation rate increases, retirement patterns,
employee turnover rates, and mortality rates. Our review of demographic assumptions includes analyzing historical patterns
and/or referencing industry standard tables, combined with our expectations around future compensation and staffing strategies.
The difference between these assumptions and our actual experience results in the recognition of an actuarial gain or loss.

Future changes to assumptions, or differences between actual and expected outcomes, can significantly affect our future
net periodic benefit cost, projected benefit obligations, and accumulated other comprehensive loss.

Share-Based Compensation

FASB ASC Topic 718, Compensation—Stock Compensation, requires that a company measure at fair value any new or
modified share-based compensation arrangements with employees, such as stock options and restricted securities, and recognize
as compensation expense that fair value over the requisite service period.

We estimate the fair value of stock options on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model.
Key assumptions used in this model are (1) the fair value of the underlying ordinary shares, (2) the time period for which we
expect the stock options will be outstanding (the expected term), (3) the expected volatility of the price of our ordinary shares,
(4) the risk-free interest rate, and (5) the expected dividend yield. Expected term and expected volatility are the judgments that
we believe are the most critical and subjective in estimating fair value (and related share-based compensation expense) of our
stock option awards.

The expected term is determined based upon our own historical average term of exercised and outstanding stock options.
We consider our own historical volatility, as well as our implied volatility, in estimating expected volatility for stock options.
Implied volatility provides a forward-looking indication and may offer insight into expected volatility.

Other assumptions used include risk-free interest rate and expected dividend yield. The risk-free interest rate is based on
the yield for a U.S. Treasury security having a maturity similar to the expected term of the related stock option grant. This
assumption is dependent on the assumed expected term. The dividend yield of 0% is based on our history of having never
declared or paid any dividends on our ordinary shares as well as our current intention not to declare dividends in the foreseeable
future. Refer to Item 5, "Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities," included elsewhere in this Report for additional information related to limitations on our ability to pay dividends.

Certain of our restricted securities include performance conditions that require us to estimate the probable outcome of the
performance condition. This assessment is based on management's judgment using internally developed forecasts and is
assessed at each reporting period. Compensation expense is recognized if it is probable that the performance condition will be
achieved.

We elect to recognize share-based compensation expense net of estimated forfeitures as permitted by FASB ASC Topic
718, and therefore only recognize compensation expense for those awards expected to vest over the requisite service period.
The forfeiture rate is based on our estimate of forfeitures by plan participants after consideration of historical forfeiture rates.
Compensation expense recognized for each award ultimately reflects the number of units that actually vest.

Material changes to any of these assumptions may have a significant effect on our valuation of stock options, and,
ultimately, the share-based compensation expense recognized in the consolidated statements of operations.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

From time to time, we execute contracts that require us to indemnify the other parties to the contracts. These
indemnification obligations generally arise in two contexts. First, in connection with certain transactions, such as the divestiture
of a business or the issuance of debt or equity securities, the agreement typically contains standard provisions requiring us to
indemnify the purchaser against breaches by us of representations and warranties contained in the agreement. These indemnities
are generally subject to time and liability limitations. Second, we enter into agreements in the ordinary course of business, such
as customer contracts, that might contain indemnification provisions relating to product quality, intellectual property
infringement, governmental regulations and employment related matters, and other typical indemnities. In certain cases,
indemnification obligations arise by law.

We believe that our indemnification obligations are consistent with other companies in the markets in which we compete.
Performance under any of these indemnification obligations would generally be triggered by a breach of the terms of the
contract or by a third-party claim. Historically, we have experienced only immaterial and irregular losses associated with these
indemnifications. Consequently, any future liabilities brought about by these indemnifications cannot reasonably be estimated
or accrued.

Refer to Note 15, "Commitments and Contingencies," of our Financial Statements for additional information related to
our off-balance sheet arrangements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Recently issued accounting standards adopted in the current period:

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-04, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350), Simplifying the Test
for Goodwill Impairment in order to simplify the subsequent measurement of goodwill. This guidance changes the method by
which an impairment of goodwill is calculated. Under the previous guidance, goodwill impairment was calculated in two steps.
In Step 1, an entity would assess whether an impairment had occurred, either qualitatively or by comparing the estimated fair
values of our reporting units to their respective carrying values, including goodwill. If the results of Step 1 indicated an
impairment had occurred, Step 2 would be performed, in which the implied value of goodwill of the reporting unit would be
calculated and an impairment would be recognized for the difference between the implied value of goodwill and the recorded
amount of goodwill. Under FASB ASU No. 2017-04, while Step 1 of this process has not changed, Step 2 as described above
has been eliminated, and impairment charges are recorded for the amount by which the carrying value of the reporting unit
exceeds its estimated fair value. FASB ASU No. 2017-04 was effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests in
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. We adopted FASB ASU No. 2017-04 as of January 1, 2020. This adoption did
not have an impact on our financial statements as none of our reporting units were determined to have carrying values in excess
of fair values during the year ended December 31, 2020.

Recently issued accounting standards to be adopted in a future period:

There are no recently issued accounting standards to be adopted in future periods that are expected to have a material
impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to changes in foreign currency exchange rates because we transact in a variety of foreign currencies. We
are also exposed to changes in the prices of certain commodities (primarily metals) that we use in production. Changes in these
foreign currency exchange rates and commodity prices may have an impact on future cash flows and earnings. We monitor our
exposure to these risks, and may employ derivative financial instruments to limit the volatility to earnings and cash flows
generated by these exposures. We employ derivative contracts that may or may not be designated for hedge accounting
treatment under FASB ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, which can result in volatility to earnings depending upon
fluctuations in the underlying markets.

By using derivative instruments, we are subject to credit and market risk. The fair market values of these derivative
instruments are based upon valuation models whose inputs are derived using market observable inputs, including foreign
currency exchange and commodity spot and forward rates, and reflect the asset and liability positions as of the end of each
reporting period. When the fair value of a derivative contract is positive, the counterparty is liable to us, thus creating a
receivable risk for us. We are exposed to counterparty credit (or repayment) risk in the event of non-performance by
counterparties to our derivative agreements. We attempt to minimize this risk by entering into transactions with major financial
institutions of investment grade credit rating.
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Interest Rate Risk

As discussed further in Note 14, "Debt," of our Financial Statements, the Credit Agreement provides for the Senior
Secured Credit Facilities consisting of the Term Loan, the Revolving Credit Facility, and incremental availability under which
additional secured credit facilities could be issued under certain circumstances.

The Term Loan accrues interest at a variable rate that is currently based on LIBOR, plus an interest rate margin, in
accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreement.

Sensitivity Analysis

As of December 31, 2020, we had an outstanding balance on the Term Loan (excluding debt discount and deferred
financing costs) of $456.1 million. The applicable interest rate associated with the Term Loan at December 31, 2020 was
1.90%. An increase of 100 basis points in this rate would result in additional interest expense of $4.4 million in fiscal year
2021. An additional 100 basis point increase in this rate would result in incremental interest expense of $8.7 million in fiscal
year 2021.

As of December 31, 2019, we had an outstanding balance on the Term Loan (excluding debt discount and deferred
financing costs) of $460.7 million. The applicable interest rate associated with the Term Loan at December 31, 2019 was
3.59%. An increase of 100 basis points in this rate would have resulted in additional interest expense of $4.7 million in fiscal
year 2020. An additional 100 basis point increase in this rate would have resulted in incremental interest expense of $4.7
million in fiscal year 2020.

Foreign Currency Risk

Consistent with our risk management objective and strategy to reduce exposure to variability in cash flows, and for non-
trading purposes, we enter into foreign currency exchange rate derivatives that qualify as cash flow hedges, and that are
intended to offset the effect of exchange rate fluctuations on forecasted sales and certain manufacturing costs. We also enter
into foreign currency forward contracts that are not designated for hedge accounting purposes. Refer to Note 19, "Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities," of our Financial Statements for additional information related to the foreign currency
forward contracts outstanding as of December 31, 2020.

Sensitivity Analysis

The tables below present our foreign currency forward contracts as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and the estimated
impact to future pre-tax earnings as a result of a 10% strengthening/weakening in the foreign currency exchange rate:

(Decrease)/Increase to Future Pre-tax Earnings Due to:

10% Strengthening of the Value 10% Weakening of the Value of
Net (Liability)/Asset Balance as of the Foreign Currency Relative  the Foreign Currency Relative to

(In millions) of December 31, 2020 to the U.S. Dollar the U.S. Dollar
Euro $ (213) $ 419) $ 41.9
Chinese Renminbi $ 22) $ (16.5) $ 16.5
Japanese Yen $ 00 $ 09 § (0.9)
Korean Won $ (1.0) $ (1.5) $ 1.5
Malaysian Ringgit $ 00 $ 05 §$ (0.5)
Mexican Peso $ 123 $ 159 $ (15.9)
British Pound Sterling $ 37 $ 75 $ (7.5)
(Decrease)/Increase to Future Pre-tax Earnings Due to:
10% Strengthening of the Value 10% Weakening of the Value of
Net Asset/(Liability) Balance as  of the Foreign Currency Relative  the Foreign Currency Relative to
(In millions) of December 31, 2019 to the U.S. Dollar the U.S. Dollar
Euro $ 126 $ 412) $ 41.2
Chinese Renminbi $ 0.7) $ (10.7) $ 10.7
Japanese Yen $ 00 $ 05 §$ (0.5)
Korean Won $ 03 $ 2.1 3 2.1
Malaysian Ringgit $ 0.0 $ 05 § (0.5)
Mexican Peso $ 85 § 155 % (15.5)
British Pound Sterling $ 08 § 6.7 $ (6.7)
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Commodity Risk

We are exposed to the potential change in prices associated with certain commodities used in the manufacturing of our
products. We offset a portion of this exposure by entering into forward contracts that fix the price at a future date for various
notional amounts associated with these commodities. These forward contracts are not designated as accounting hedges. Refer to
Note 19, "Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities," of our Financial Statements for additional information related to the
commodity forward contracts outstanding as of December 31, 2020.

Sensitivity Analysis

The tables below present our commodity forward contracts as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and the estimated impact

to pre-tax earnings associated with a 10% increase/(decrease) in the related forward price for each commodity:

(In millions, except per unit amounts)
Silver

Gold

Nickel

Aluminum

Copper

Platinum

Palladium

(In millions, except per unit amounts)
Silver

Gold

Nickel

Aluminum

Copper

Platinum

Palladium

Increase/(Decrease) to Pre-tax Earnings Due to

Net Asset/(Liability) Average Forward Price
Balance as of Per Unit as of 10% Increase 10% Decrease

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2020 in the Forward Price in the Forward Price
$ 44 % 2647 3 20 3 (2.0)
$ 12 3 1,901.03 $ 14 3 (1.4)
$ 02 $ 758 $ 0.1 $ (0.1)
$ 0.1 $ 091 § 02 $ 0.2)
$ 1.2 3 352§ 06 $ (0.6)
$ 1.1 $ 1,064.51 $ 08 $ (0.8)
$ 04 $ 2,423.24 $ 02 $ 0.2)

Net Asset/(Liability) Average Forward Price Increase/(Decrease) to Pre-tax Earnings Due to

Balance as of Per Unit as of 10% Increase 10% Decrease

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2019 in the Forward Price in the Forward Price
$ 12 8 18.15 § 16 $ (1.6)
$ .13 1,539.13  $ 1.2 3 (1.2)
$ 00 $ 641 $ 0.1 $ (0.1)
$ 0.2) $ 084 § 03 $ (0.3)
$ 0.0) $ 281 $ 0.7 $ 0.7)
$ 06 $ 986.68 $ 07 $ 0.7)
$ 04 $ 1,873.95 $ 02 3 0.2)
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
1. Financial Statements

The following audited consolidated financial statements of Sensata Technologies Holding plc are included in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 65
Consolidated Balance Sheets 67
Consolidated Statements of Operations 68
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 69
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 70
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity 71
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 72
2. Financial Statement Schedules

The following schedules are included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Schedule I — Condensed Financial Information of the Registrant 120

Schedule IT — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 125

Schedules other than those listed above have been omitted since the required information is not present, or not present in
amounts sufficient to require submission of the schedule, or because the information required is included in the audited
consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of
Sensata Technologies Holding plc

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sensata Technologies Holding plc (the Company) as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in shareholders’ equity for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes and
financial statement schedules listed in the Index at Item 15(a) (collectively referred to as the "consolidated financial
statements"). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2020, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020, based on criteria established in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(2013 framework) and our report dated February 12, 2021 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to
error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that
were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that
are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective or complex judgments. The
communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as
a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit
matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.

Valuation of goodwill

Description of the As of December 31, 2020, the Company’s goodwill balance was $3.1 billion. The Company’s goodwill

Matter is initially assigned to its reporting units as of the acquisition date. As discussed in Note 2 of the
consolidated financial statements, goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting unit level. The
Company evaluated goodwill for impairment as of October 1, 2020. The Company used a combination
of the quantitative and qualitative methods to assess their reporting units for impairment.
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How We Addressed
the Matter in Our
Audit

Auditing management’s goodwill impairment analysis for the reporting units for which the quantitative
method was utilized was complex and judgmental due to the estimation required in determining the fair
value of the reporting units. In particular, the fair value estimates included significant assumptions such
as the long-range forecasts, the selection of the discount rates, and the estimation of the multiples or
long-term growth rates used in valuing the terminal year which are affected by expectations about
future market or economic conditions.

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of controls
over the Company’s quantitative goodwill impairment review process. For example, we tested
controls over management’s review of the data used in their valuation models and reviewed significant
assumptions discussed above used in determining the reporting unit fair values.

To test the estimated fair value of the Company’s reporting units, with the assistance of our valuation
professionals, our audit procedures included, among others, assessing fair value methodologies and
testing the significant assumptions discussed above. We compared the significant assumptions used by
management to current industry and economic trends, the Company’s historical trends with
consideration given to changes in the Company’s business, customer base or product mix and other
relevant factors. We assessed the historical accuracy of management’s estimates and performed
sensitivity analyses of significant assumptions to evaluate the changes in the fair value of the reporting
units that would result from changes in the assumptions. We also evaluated the reconciliation of the
estimated aggregate fair value of the reporting units to the Company’s market capitalization.

Income taxes — uncertain tax positions

Description of the
Matter

How We Addressed
the Matter in Our
Audit

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

As discussed in Note 7, at December 31, 2020, the Company had approximately $201.4 million of
unrecognized tax benefits associated with uncertain tax positions. Uncertainty in a tax position may
arise as tax laws are subject to interpretation. The Company uses significant judgment in (1)
determining whether a tax position’s technical merits are more-likely-than-not to be sustained and (2)
measuring the amount of tax benefit that qualifies for recognition.

Auditing the recognition and measurement of tax positions related to uncertain tax positions involved
significant auditor judgment and use of tax professionals with specialized skills and knowledge
because both the recognition and measurement of the tax positions are complex, highly judgmental and
based on interpretations of tax laws and legal rulings.

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of controls
over the Company’s process to identify and record the reserve for uncertain tax positions. For
example, we tested controls over management’s evaluation of the technical merits of tax positions and
identification of uncertain tax positions and the controls to measure the benefit of those tax positions,
including management’s review of the inputs and calculations of unrecognized tax benefits resulting
from uncertain tax positions.

To test the amounts recorded as uncertain tax positions we involved our tax professionals to evaluate
the technical merits of the Company’s income tax positions. Our procedures included, among others,
evaluating income tax technical analysis or other third party advice obtained by the company and
inspecting correspondence, assessments and settlements from the relevant tax authorities. We also
applied our knowledge and experience with the application of federal, foreign and state income tax
laws to evaluate the Company’s accounting for those tax positions. We analyzed the Company’s
assumptions and data used to determine the amount of tax benefit to recognize and tested the accuracy
of the calculations. We also evaluated the Company’s income tax disclosures included in Note 7 in
relation to these matters.

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2005.

Boston, Massachusetts
February 12, 2021
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SENSATA TECHNOLOGIES HOLDING PLC

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $19,033 and $15,129 as of December 31, 2020 and

2019, respectively
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, net
Deferred income tax assets
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt, finance lease and other financing obligations
Accounts payable
Income taxes payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities
Pension and other post-retirement benefit obligations
Finance lease and other financing obligations, less current portion
Long-term debt, net
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)
Shareholders’ equity:

Ordinary shares, €0.01 nominal value per share, 177,069 shares authorized and 173,266 and

172,561 shares issued as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively

Treasury shares, at cost, 15,631 and 14,733 shares as of December 31, 2020 and 2019,

respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

As of December 31,

2020 2019
$ 1,861,980 $ 774,119
576,647 557,874
451,005 506,678
90,340 126,981
2,979,972 1,965,652
803,825 830,998
3,111,349 3,093,598
691,549 770,904
84,785 21,150
172,722 152,217
$ 7844202 $§ 6,834,519
$ 757,205 $ 6,918
393,907 376,968
19,215 35,234
324,830 215,626
1,495,157 634,746
259,857 251,033
48,002 36,100
27,931 28,810
3,213,747 3,219,885
94,022 90,190
5,138,716 4,260,764
2,220 2212
(784,596) (749,421)
1,759,668 1,725,091
1,777,729 1,616,357
(49,535) (20,484)
2,705,486 2,573,755
$ 7844202 $ 6,834,519

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SENSATA TECHNOLOGIES HOLDING PLC

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

For the year ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018

Net revenue $ 3,045,578 § 3,450,631 $ 3,521,627
Operating costs and expenses:

Cost of revenue 2,119,044 2,267,433 2,266,863

Research and development 131,429 148,425 147,279

Selling, general and administrative 294,725 281,442 305,558

Amortization of intangible assets 129,549 142,886 139,326

Restructuring and other charges, net 33,094 53,560 (47,818)
Total operating costs and expenses 2,707,841 2,893,746 2,811,208
Operating income 337,737 556,885 710,419
Interest expense, net (171,757) (158,554) (153,679)
Other, net (339) (7,908) (30,365)
Income before taxes 165,641 390,423 526,375
Provision for/(benefit from) income taxes 1,355 107,709 (72,620)
Net income $ 164,286 $ 282,714  $ 598,995
Basic net income per share $ 1.04 $ 176 $ 3.55
Diluted net income per share $ 1.04 3 1.75 $ 3.53

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SENSATA TECHNOLOGIES HOLDING PLC

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(In thousands)

For the year ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
Net income $ 164,286 $ 282,714  $ 598,995
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, net of tax:
Cash flow hedges (23,279) 7,362 37,363
Defined benefit and retiree healthcare plans (5,772) (1,668) (377)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income (29,051) 5,694 36,986
Comprehensive income $ 135,235  $ 288,408 $ 635,981

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SENSATA TECHNOLOGIES HOLDING PLC

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

Amortization of debt issuance costs
Gain on sale of business
Share-based compensation

Loss on debt financing
Amortization of intangible assets
Deferred income taxes

Unrealized loss on derivative instruments and other

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of the effects of acquisitions and divestitures:

Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Income taxes payable
Other
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisitions, net of cash received
Additions to property, plant and equipment and capitalized software
Investment in debt and equity securities
Proceeds from sale of business, net of cash sold
Other
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and issuance of ordinary shares
Payment of employee restricted stock tax withholdings
Proceeds from borrowings on debt
Payments on debt
Payments to repurchase ordinary shares
Payments of debt and equity issuance costs
Other
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
Supplemental cash flow items:
Cash paid for interest

Cash paid for income taxes

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018

$ 164,286  $ 282,714 $ 598,995
125,680 115,862 106,014

6,854 7,804 7,317
_ _ (64,423)

19,125 18,757 23,825

_ 4,364 2,350

129,549 142,886 139,326
(44,900) 27,623 (144,068)

4,709 30,292 18,176
(16,668) 26,605 (34,877)
58,390 (10,924) (55,445)
36,431 10,073 (11,891)

90,479 (34,563) 48,371
(16,019) 2,308 (353)
1,859 (4,239) (12,754)

559,775 619,562 620,563
(64,432) (32,465) (228,307)
(106,719) (161,259) (159,787)
(22,963) (9,950) —

- — 149,777

12,022 (5,103) 711
(182,092) (208,777) (237,606)

15,457 15,150 6,093
(2,911) (6,990) (3,674)

1,150,000 450,000 —
(408,914) (464,605) (15,653)
(35,175) (350,004) (399,417)
(8,279) (10,050) (9,931)

— — 16,369
710,178 (366,499) (406,213)
1,087,861 44,286 (23,256)
774,119 729,833 753,089

$ 1,861,980 $ 774,119 $ 729,833
$ 164,494 $ 169,543 $ 163,478
$ 65,823 $ 61,031 $ 72,924



Balance as of December 31, 2017
Surrender of shares for tax withholding
Stock options exercised

Vesting of restricted securities

Retirement of ordinary shares due to
Merger

Repurchase of ordinary shares
Other retirements of ordinary shares
Share-based compensation

Net income

Other comprehensive income
Balance as of December 31, 2018
Surrender of shares for tax withholding
Stock options exercised

Vesting of restricted securities
Repurchase of ordinary shares
Retirement of ordinary shares
Share-based compensation

Net income

Other comprehensive income
Balance as of December 31, 2019
Surrender of shares for tax withholding
Stock options exercised

Vesting of restricted securities
Repurchase of ordinary shares
Retirement of ordinary shares
Share-based compensation

Net income

Other comprehensive loss

Balance as of December 31, 2020

SENSATA TECHNOLOGIES HOLDING PLC
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

(In thousands)

Accumulated
Ordinary Shares Treasury Shares Additional Other Total
Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’
Number Amount Number Amount Capital Earnings Loss Equity

178,437 2,289 (7,076) $ (288,478) § 1,663,367 $ 1,031,612 $ (63,164) $ 2,345,626
— — (71) (3,674) — — — (3,674)

114 1 58 2,250 3,998 (156) — 6,093
257 3 — — 3) — —
(7,018) (89) 7,018 286,228 = (286,139) = ==
— — (7,571) (399.,417) — — — (399.417)

(71) (1) 71 3,674 = (3,673) = ==

— — — — 23,825 — — 23,825

== = = = 598,995 = 598,995

— — — — — — 36,986 36,986
171,719 2,203 (7,571) (399.,417) 1,691,190 1,340,636 (26,178) 2,608,434
— — (149) (6,990) — — — (6,990)

537 6 = 15,144 = = 15,150
454 5 — — 5) — —

= = (7,162) (350,004) = = = (350,004)
(149) 2) 149 6,990 — (6,988) — —
== == == 18,757 = == 18,757

— — — — 282,714 — 282,714

— . = — — 5,694 5,694
172,561 2,212 (14,733) (749,421) 1,725,091 1,616,357 (20,484) 2,573,755
= = (96) (2,911) = = = (2,911)

452 5 — 15,452 — — 15,457
349 4 == = = ) = ==

— — (898) (35,175) — — — (35,175)
(96) (1) 96 2,911 = (2,910) — —

— — — 19,125 — — 19,125

— — - = = 164,286 — 164,286

— — — — — (29,051) (29,051)
173,266 2,220 (15,631) $§ (784,596) $ 1,759,668 $ 1,777,729 § (49,535) $ 2,705,486

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SENSATA TECHNOLOGIES HOLDING PLC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Business Description and Basis of Presentation
Description of Business

The accompanying audited consolidated financial statements reflect the financial position, results of operations,
comprehensive income, cash flows, and changes in shareholders' equity of Sensata Technologies Holding plc ("Sensata plc"), a
public limited company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales, and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, collectively
referred to as the "Company," "Sensata," "we," "our," and "us."

Prior to March 28, 2018, our parent company issuer was Sensata Technologies Holding N.V. ("Sensata N.V."), which
was incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands. On March 28, 2018, Sensata plc completed a cross-border merger (the
"Merger") with Sensata N.V., which changed the location of our incorporation from the Netherlands to England and Wales, but
did not change the business being conducted by us or our subsidiaries.

We are a global industrial technology company that develops, manufactures, and sells sensors, electrical protection
products, and other products that are used in mission-critical systems and applications that create valuable business insights for
our customers and end users. Our sensors are used by our customers to translate a physical parameter, such as pressure,
temperature, position, or location of an object, into electronic signals that our customers’ products and solutions can act upon.
These actionable insights lead to products that are safer, cleaner, more efficient, more electrified, and increasingly more
connected. Our electrical protection product portfolio is comprised of various sensors, controllers, receivers, and software, and
includes high-voltage contactors and other products embedded within systems to maximize their efficiency and protect them
from excessive heat or current.

Sensata plc conducts its operations through subsidiary companies that operate business and product development centers
primarily in Belgium, Bulgaria, China, Denmark, France, India, Japan, the Netherlands, South Korea, the United Kingdom (the
"U.K."), and the United States (the "U.S."); and manufacturing operations primarily in Bulgaria, China, Malaysia, Mexico, the
UK., and the U.S.

We operate in, and report financial information for, two reportable segments: Performance Sensing and Sensing
Solutions. Refer to Note 20, "Segment Reporting," for additional information related to each of our segments.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying audited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles ("U.S. GAAP") and present separately our financial position, results of operations,
comprehensive income, cash flows, and changes in shareholders’ equity.

All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. All U.S. dollar ("USD") and share amounts presented,
except per share amounts, are stated in thousands, unless otherwise indicated. Certain reclassifications have been made to prior
periods to conform to current period presentation.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires us to exercise our judgment
in the process of applying our accounting policies. It also requires that we make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingencies at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of net revenue and expense during the reporting periods.

Estimates are used when accounting for certain items such as allowance for doubtful accounts and sales returns, inventory
obsolescence, asset impairments (including goodwill and other intangible assets), contingencies, the value of certain equity
awards and the measurement of share-based compensation, the determination of accrued expenses, certain asset valuations,
accounting for income taxes, the useful lives of plant and equipment, measurement of our post-retirement benefit obligations,
and the identification, valuation, and determination of useful lives of identifiable intangible assets acquired in business
combinations. The accounting estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements may change as new
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events occur, as more experience is acquired, as additional information is obtained, and as the operating environment changes.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which we expect to be entitled in exchange for those goods. In order to achieve this, we use the five step model outlined in
Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 606, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. This five step model requires us to identify the contract with the customer, identify the performance
obligation(s) in the contract, determine the transaction price, allocate the transaction price to the performance obligation(s), and
recognize revenue when (or as) we satisfy the performance obligation(s).

The vast majority of our contracts (as defined in FASB ASC Topic 606) are customer purchase orders that require us to
transfer specified quantities of tangible products to our customers. These performance obligations are generally satisfied within
a short period of time. Amounts billed to our customers for shipping and handling after control has transferred are recognized as
revenue and the related costs that we incur are presented in cost of revenue.

In determining the transaction price, we evaluate whether the consideration promised in the contract includes a variable
amount and, if applicable, we include in the transaction price some or all of an amount of variable consideration only to the
extent it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Variable consideration may be explicitly stated
in the contract or implied based on our customary practices. Examples of variable consideration present in our contracts include
rights of return, in the case of a defective or non-conforming product, and trade discounts, including early payment discounts
and retrospective volume discounts. Such variable consideration has not historically been material in relation to our net revenue.

Our contract terms generally require the customer to make payment shortly (that is, less than one year) after the shipment
date. In such instances, we do not consider the effects of a significant financing component in determining the transaction price.
Lastly, we exclude from our determination of the transaction price value-added tax and other similar taxes.

Our performance obligations are satisfied, and revenue is recognized, when control of the product is transferred to the
customer. The transfer of control generally occurs at the point in time the product is shipped from our warehouse or, less often,
at the point in time it is received by the customer, depending on the specific terms of the arrangement. Many of our products are
designed and engineered to meet customer specifications. These activities, and the testing of our products to determine
compliance with those specifications, occur prior to any revenue being recognized. Products are then manufactured and sold to
customers. However, in certain cases, pre-production activities are a performance obligation in a customer purchase order, and
revenue is recognized when the performance obligation is satisfied. Customer arrangements do not involve post-installation or
post-sale testing and acceptance.

Our standard terms of sale provide our customers with a warranty against faulty workmanship and the use of defective
materials, which is not considered a distinct performance obligation in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 606. Depending on
the product, we generally provide such warranties for a period of twelve to eighteen months after the date we ship the product
to our customer or for a period of twelve months after the date the customer resells our product, whichever comes first. Our
liability associated with this warranty is, at our option, to repair the product, replace the product, or provide the customer with a
credit. We do not offer separately priced extended warranty or product maintenance contracts.

We also sell products to customers under negotiated agreements or where we have accepted the customer’s terms of
purchase. In these instances, we may provide additional warranties for longer durations, consistent with differing end market
practices, and where our liability is not limited. In addition, many sales take place in situations where commercial or civil
codes, or other laws, would imply various warranties and restrict limitations on liability.

Refer to Note 3, "Revenue Recognition," for additional information related to the net revenue recognized in the
consolidated statements of operations.

Share-Based Compensation

We measure at fair value any new or modified share-based compensation arrangements with employees, such as stock
options and restricted securities, and recognize as compensation expense that fair value over the requisite service period in
accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718, Compensation—Stock Compensation. Share-based compensation expense is generally
recognized as a component of selling, general and administrative ("SG&A") expense, which is consistent with where the related
employee costs are presented, however, such costs, or a portion thereof, may be capitalized provided certain criteria are met.
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Share-based awards may be subject to either cliff vesting (i.e., the entire award vests on a particular date) or graded
vesting (i.e., portions of the award vest at different points in time). In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718, compensation
expense associated with share-based awards subject to cliff vesting must be recognized on a straight-line basis. For awards
without performance conditions that are subject to graded vesting, companies have the option to recognize compensation
expense either on a straight-line or accelerated basis. We have elected to recognize compensation expense for these awards on a
straight-line basis. However, awards that are subject to both graded vesting and performance conditions must be expensed on an
accelerated basis.

We estimate the fair value of options on the grant date using the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model. Key inputs
and assumptions used in this model are as follows:

. The fair value of the underlying ordinary shares. This is determined as the closing price of our ordinary shares on
the New York Stock Exchange (the "NYSE") on the grant date.

. The expected term. This is determined based upon our own historical average term of exercised and outstanding
options.

. Expected volatility. We consider our own historical volatility as well as our implied volatility in estimating

expected volatility for stock options. Implied volatility provides a forward-looking indication and may offer
insight into expected volatility.

. Risk-free interest rate. The risk-free interest rate is based on the yield for a U.S. Treasury security having a
maturity similar to the expected term of the related option grant.

. Expected dividend yield. The dividend yield of 0% is based on our history of having never declared or paid any
dividends on our ordinary shares as well as our current intention not to declare dividends in the foreseeable future.

Restricted securities are valued using the closing price of our ordinary shares on the NYSE on the grant date. Certain of
our restricted securities include performance conditions that require us to estimate the probable outcome of the performance
condition. Compensation expense is recognized if it is probable that the performance condition will be achieved.

We elect to recognize share-based compensation expense net of estimated forfeitures as permitted by FASB ASC Topic
718. Accordingly, we only recognize compensation expense for those awards expected to vest over the requisite service period.
Compensation expense recognized for each award ultimately reflects the number of units that actually vest.

Refer to Note 4, "Share-Based Payment Plans," for additional information related to share-based compensation.
Financial Instruments

Our material financial instruments include derivative instruments, debt instruments, equity investments, and trade
accounts receivable.

Derivative financial instruments: We account for our derivative financial instruments in accordance with FASB ASC
Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures and FASB ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging. In accordance
with FASB ASC Topic 815, we recognize all derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value. The fair value of our derivative
financial instruments is determined using widely accepted valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow analysis on the
expected cash flows of each instrument. These analyses utilize observable market-based inputs, including foreign currency
exchange rates and commodity forward curves, and reflect the contractual terms of these instruments, including the period to
maturity.

Derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as hedges of the exposure to changes in the fair value of an asset,
liability, or commitment, and that are attributable to a particular risk, such as interest rate risk, are considered fair value hedges.
Derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as hedges of the exposure to variability in expected future cash flows are
considered cash flow hedges. Derivative instruments may also be designated as hedges of the foreign currency exposure of a net
investment in a foreign operation. Currently, all of our derivative instruments that are designated as accounting hedges are cash
flow hedges. We also hold derivative instruments that are not designated as accounting hedges.

The accounting for changes in the fair value of our cash flow hedges depends on whether we have elected to designate the
derivative as a hedging instrument for accounting purposes and whether the hedging relationship has satisfied the criteria
necessary to apply hedge accounting. In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 815, both the effective and ineffective portion of
changes in the fair value of derivatives designated and qualifying as cash flow hedges is recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive loss and is subsequently reclassified into earnings in the period in which the hedged forecasted transaction
affects earnings. Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments that are not designated as accounting hedges are recognized
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immediately in other, net. Refer to Note 16, "Sharcholders' Equity," and Note 19, "Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities," for additional information related to the reclassification of amounts from accumulated other comprehensive loss
into earnings.

We present the cash flows arising from our derivative financial instruments in a manner consistent with the presentation
of cash flows that relate to the underlying hedged items.

We incorporate credit valuation adjustments to appropriately reflect both our own non-performance risk and the
respective counterparty’s non-performance risk in the fair value measurements. In adjusting the fair value of our derivative
contracts for the effect of non-performance risk, we have considered the impact of netting and any applicable credit
enhancements, such as collateral postings, thresholds, mutual puts, and guarantees. We do not offset the fair value amounts
recognized for derivative instruments against fair value amounts recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral or the
obligation to return cash collateral.

We maintain derivative instruments with major financial institutions of investment grade credit rating and monitor the
amount of credit exposure to any one issuer. We believe there are no significant concentrations of risk associated with our
derivative instruments.

Refer to Note 19, "Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities," for additional information related to our derivative
instruments.

Debt Instruments: A premium or discount on a debt instrument is recognized on the balance sheet as an adjustment to the
carrying value of the debt liability. In general, amounts paid to creditors are considered a reduction in the proceeds received
from the issuance of the debt and are accounted for as a component of the premium or discount on the issuance, not as an
issuance cost.

Direct and incremental costs associated with the issuance of debt instruments such as legal fees, printing costs, and
underwriters' fees, among others, paid to parties other than creditors, are also reported and presented as a reduction of debt on
the consolidated balance sheets.

Debt issuance costs and premiums or discounts are amortized over the term of the respective financing arrangement using
the effective interest method. Amortization of these amounts is included as a component of interest expense, net in the
consolidated statements of operations.

In accounting for debt refinancing transactions, we apply the provisions of FASB ASC Subtopic 470-50, Modifications
and Extinguishments. Our evaluation of the accounting under FASB ASC Subtopic 470-50 is done on a creditor by creditor
basis in order to determine if the terms of the debt are substantially different and, as a result, whether to apply modification or
extinguishment accounting. In the event that an individual holder of existing debt did not invest in new debt, we apply
extinguishment accounting. Borrowings associated with individual holders of new debt that are not holders of existing debt are
accounted for as new issuances.

Refer to Note 14, "Debt," for additional information related to our debt instruments and transactions.

Equity Investments: We measure equity investments (other than those accounted for under the equity method, those that
result in consolidation of the investee, and certain other investments) either at fair value, with changes to fair value recognized
in net income, or in certain instances, by use of a measurement alternative prescribed in FASB ASC Topic 321, Investments -
Equity Securities. Under the measurement alternative, such investments are measured at cost, less any impairment, plus or
minus changes resulting from observable price changes in orderly transactions for an identical or similar investment of the same
issuer.

Refer to Note 18, "Fair Value Measures," for additional information related to our measurement of financial instruments,
including equity investments.

Trade accounts receivable: Trade accounts receivable are recognized at invoiced amounts and do not bear interest. Trade
accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for losses on receivables. Concentrations of risk with respect to trade accounts
receivable are generally limited due to the large number of customers in various industries and their dispersion across several
geographic areas. Although we do not foresee that credit risk associated with these receivables will deviate from historical
experience, repayment is dependent upon the financial stability of these individual customers. We estimate an allowance for
credit losses on trade accounts receivable at an amount that represents our estimated expected credit losses over the lifetime of
our receivables. Our contract terms generally require the customer to make payment shortly after (that is, less than one year) the
shipment date. Our largest customer accounted for approximately 7% of our net revenue for the year ended December 31, 2020.
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Allowance for Losses on Receivables

The allowance for losses on receivables is used to present accounts receivable, net at an amount that represents our
estimate of the related transaction price recognized as revenue in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 606. The allowance
represents an estimate of expected credit losses over the lifetime of our receivables, even if the loss is considered remote, and
reflects expected recoveries of amounts previously written-off. We estimate the allowance on the basis of specifically identified
receivables that are evaluated individually for impairment and a statistical analysis of the remaining receivables determined by
reference to past default experience. We consider the need to adjust historical information to reflect the extent to which we
expect current conditions and reasonable forecasts to differ from the conditions that existed for the historical period considered.
Customers are generally not required to provide collateral for purchases. The allowance for losses on receivables also includes
an allowance for sales returns (variable consideration).

Management judgments are used to determine when to charge off uncollectible trade accounts receivable. We base these
judgments on the age of the receivable, credit quality of the customer, current economic conditions, and other factors that may
affect a customer’s ability and intent to pay.

Losses on receivables have not historically been significant.
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Businesses acquired are recognized at their fair value on the date of acquisition, with the excess of the purchase price
over the fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed recognized as goodwill. Intangible assets acquired may
include either definite-lived or indefinite-lived intangible assets, or both.

In accordance with the guidance in FASB ASC Topic 350, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other, goodwill and intangible
assets determined to have an indefinite useful life are not amortized. Instead these assets are evaluated for impairment on an
annual basis and whenever events or business conditions change that could indicate that the asset is impaired. We evaluate
goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, unless events occur
which trigger the need for an earlier impairment review.

Goodwill: Our reporting units have been identified based on the definitions and guidance provided in FASB ASC Topic
350. Identification of reporting units includes an analysis of the components that comprise each of our operating segments,
which considers, among other things, the manner in which we operate our business and the availability of discrete financial
information. Components of an operating segment are aggregated to form one reporting unit if the components have similar
economic characteristics. We periodically review these reporting units to ensure that they continue to reflect the manner in
which the business is operated.

Some assets and liabilities relate to the operations of multiple reporting units. We allocate these assets and liabilities to
the related reporting units based on methods that we believe are reasonable and supportable. We apply that allocation method
on a consistent basis from year to year. Other assets and liabilities, such as debt, cash and cash equivalents, and property, plant
and equipment, net ("PP&E") associated with our corporate offices, are viewed as being corporate in nature. Accordingly, we
do not assign these assets and liabilities to our reporting units.

In the event we reorganize our business, we reassign the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities among the affected
reporting units using a reasonable and supportable methodology. As businesses are acquired, we assign assets acquired
(including goodwill) and liabilities assumed to a new or existing reporting unit as of the date of the acquisition. In the event a
disposal group meets the definition of a business, goodwill is allocated to the disposal group based on the relative fair value of
the disposal group to the retained portion of the related reporting unit.

We have the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether a quantitative analysis must be performed. The
objective of a qualitative analysis is to assess whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than
its carrying value. We make this assessment based on macroeconomic conditions, industry and market considerations, cost
factors, overall financial performance, and other relevant factors as applicable. If we elect not to use this option, or if we
determine that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value, then we prepare a
discounted cash flow analysis to determine whether the carrying value of reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value. If the
carrying value of a reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value, we recognize an impairment of goodwill for the amount of
this excess, in accordance with the guidance in FASB Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2017-04, Intangibles -
Goodwill and Other (Topic 350), Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment, which we adopted as of January 1, 2020.

Indefinite-lived intangible assets: Similar to goodwill, we perform an annual impairment review of our indefinite-lived
intangible assets in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, unless events occur that trigger the need for an earlier impairment
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review. We have the option to first assess qualitative factors in determining whether it is more likely than not that an indefinite-
lived intangible asset is impaired. If we elect not to use this option, or we determine that it is more likely than not that the asset
is impaired, we perform a quantitative impairment analysis in which we estimate the fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible
asset and compare that amount to its carrying value. In this analysis, we estimate the fair value by using the relief-from-royalty
method, in which we make assumptions about future conditions impacting the fair value of our indefinite-lived intangible
assets, including projected growth rates, cost of capital, effective tax rates, and royalty rates. Impairment, if any, is based on the
excess of the carrying value over the fair value of these assets.

Definite-lived intangible assets: Acquisition-related definite-lived intangible assets are amortized on an economic-benefit
basis according to the useful lives of the assets, or on a straight-line basis if a pattern of economic benefits cannot be reliably
determined. Capitalized software and capitalized software licenses are presented on the consolidated balance sheets as
intangible assets. Capitalized software licenses are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lesser of the term of the license or
the estimated useful life of the software. Capitalized software is amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life.

Reviews are regularly performed to determine whether facts or circumstances exist that indicate that the carrying values
of our definite-lived intangible assets are impaired. If we determine that such facts or circumstances exist, we estimate the
recoverability of these assets by comparing the projected undiscounted net cash flows associated with these assets to their
respective carrying values. If the sum of the projected undiscounted net cash flows is less than the carrying value of an asset,
the impairment charge is measured as the excess of the carrying value over the fair value of that asset. We determine fair value
by using the appropriate income approach valuation methodology, depending on the nature of the definite-lived intangible asset.

Refer to Note 11, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, Net," for additional information related to our goodwill and
other intangible assets.

Income Taxes

We estimate our provision for (or benefit from) income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. The
provision for (or benefit from) income taxes includes both our current and deferred tax exposure. Our deferred tax exposure is
measured using the asset and liability method, under which deferred income taxes are recognized to reflect the future tax
consequences of differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts at each balance
sheet date, based on enacted tax laws and statutory tax rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to
reverse or settle. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in statutory tax rates is recognized in the
consolidated statements of operations as an adjustment to income tax expense in the period that includes the enactment date.

In measuring our deferred tax assets, we consider all available evidence, both positive and negative, to determine
whether, based on the weight of that evidence, a valuation allowance is needed for all or some portion of the deferred tax assets.
If it is determined that it is more likely than not that future tax benefits associated with a deferred tax asset will not be realized,
a valuation allowance is provided. As a result, we maintain valuation allowances against the deferred tax assets in jurisdictions
that have incurred losses in recent periods and in which it is more likely than not that such deferred tax assets will not be
utilized in the foreseeable future.

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, we record uncertain tax positions on the basis of a two-step
process. First, we determine whether it is more likely than not that the tax positions will be sustained based on the technical
merits of the position. Second, for those tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, we recognize
the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement with the relevant
tax authority. Significant judgment is required in evaluating whether our tax positions meet this two-step process. The more-
likely-than-not recognition threshold must be met in each reporting period to support continued recognition of any tax benefits
claimed, both in the current year, as well as any year which remains open for review by the relevant tax authority at the balance
sheet date. Penalties and interest related to uncertain tax positions may be classified as either income taxes or another expense
line item in the consolidated statements of operations. We classify interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions within
the provision for/(benefit from) income taxes line of the consolidated statements of operations.

Refer to Note 7, "Income Taxes," for additional information related to our income taxes.
Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits

We sponsor various pension and other post-retirement benefit plans covering our current and former employees in several
countries.

The funded status of pension and other post-retirement benefit plans, recognized on our consolidated balance sheets as an
asset, current liability, or long-term liability, is measured as the difference between the fair value of plan assets and the benefit
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obligation at the measurement date. In general, the measurement date coincides with our fiscal year end, however, certain
significant events, such as (1) plan amendments, (2) business combinations, (3) settlements or curtailments, or (4) plan mergers,
may trigger the need for an interim measurement of both the plan assets and benefit obligations.

Benefit obligations represent the actuarial present value of all benefits attributed by the pension formula as of the
measurement date to employee service rendered before that date. The value of benefit obligations takes into consideration
various financial assumptions, including assumed discount rate and the rate of increase in healthcare costs, and demographic
assumptions, including compensation rate increases, retirement patterns, employee turnover rates, and mortality rates. We
review these assumptions annually.

Our review of demographic assumptions includes analyzing historical patterns and/or referencing industry standard
tables, combined with our expectations around future compensation and staffing strategies. The difference between these
assumptions and our actual experience results in the recognition of an actuarial gain or loss. Actuarial gains and losses are
recorded directly to other comprehensive income or loss. If the total net actuarial gain or loss included in accumulated other
comprehensive loss exceeds a threshold of 10% of the greater of the projected benefit obligation or the market related value of
plan assets, it is subject to amortization and recorded as a component of net periodic benefit cost over the average remaining
service lives of the employees participating in the pension or post-retirement benefit plan.

The discount rate reflects the current rate at which the pension and other post-retirement liabilities could be effectively
settled, considering the timing of expected payments for plan participants. It is used to discount the estimated future obligations
of the plans to the present value of the liability reflected in the financial statements. In estimating this rate in countries that have
a market of high-quality, fixed-income investments, we consider rates of return on these investments included in various bond
indices, adjusted to eliminate the effects of call provisions and differences in the timing and amounts of cash outflows related to
the bonds. In other countries where a market of high-quality, fixed-income investments does not exist, we estimate the discount
rate using government bond yields or long-term inflation rates.

The expected return on plan assets reflects the average rate of earnings expected on the funds invested to provide for the
benefits included in the projected benefit obligation. To determine the expected return on plan assets, we use the fair value of
plan assets and consider the historical returns earned by similarly invested assets, the rates of return expected on plan assets in
the future, and our investment strategy and asset mix with respect to the plans’ funds.

Changes to benefit obligations may also be initiated by a settlement or curtailment. A settlement of a defined benefit
obligation is an irrevocable transaction that relieves us (or the plan) of primary responsibility for the defined benefit obligation
and eliminates significant risks related to the obligation and the assets used to effect the settlement. The settlement of all or
more than a minor portion of the pension obligation constitutes an event that requires recognition of all or part of the net
actuarial gains or losses deferred in accumulated other comprehensive loss. Our policy is to apply settlement accounting to the
extent our year-to date settlements for a given plan exceed the sum of our forecasted full year service cost and interest cost for
that particular plan.

A curtailment is an event that significantly reduces the expected years of service of active employees or eliminates for a
significant number of employees the accrual of defined benefits for some or all of their future service. The curtailment
accounting provisions are applied on a plan-by-plan basis. The total gain or loss resulting from a curtailment is the sum of two
distinct elements: (1) prior service cost write-off and (2) curtailment gain or loss. Our policy is that a curtailment event
represents one for which we expect a 10% (or greater) reduction in future years of service or an elimination of the accrual of
defined benefits for some or all of the future services of 10% (or greater) of the plan's participants.

Contributions made to pension and other post-retirement benefit plans are presented as cash used in operations within the
consolidated statements of cash flows.

We present the service cost component of net periodic benefit cost in the cost of revenue, research and development
"R&D"), and SG&A expense line items, and we present the non—service components of net periodic benefit cost in other, net.
p p p p

Refer to Note 13, "Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits," for additional information related to our pension and
other post-retirement benefit plans.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value. The cost of raw materials, work-in-process,
and finished goods is determined based on a first-in, first-out basis and includes material, labor, and applicable manufacturing
overhead. We conduct quarterly inventory reviews for salability and obsolescence, and inventory considered unlikely to be sold
is adjusted to net realizable value.
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Refer to Note 9, "Inventories," for additional information related to our inventory balances.
Property, Plant and Equipment and Other Capitalized Costs

PP&E is stated at cost, and in the case of plant and equipment, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over its estimated
economic useful life. The depreciable lives of plant and equipment are as follows:

Buildings and improvements 2 — 40 years

Machinery and equipment 2 — 15 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the remaining lease term or the
estimated economic useful lives of the improvements. Amortization of leasehold improvements is included in depreciation
expense.

Assets held under finance leases are recognized at the lower of the present value of the minimum lease payments or the
fair value of the leased asset at the inception of the lease. Depreciation expense associated with finance leases is computed
using the straight-line method over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the assets or the period of the related lease, unless
ownership is transferred by the end of the lease or there is a bargain purchase option, in which case the asset is depreciated,
normally on a straight-line basis, over the useful life that would be assigned if the asset were owned.

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred, whereas major improvements that increase
asset values and extend useful lives are capitalized.

Refer to Note 10, "Property, Plant and Equipment," for additional information related to our PP&E balances.
Leases

We enter into leases agreements for many of our facilities around the world. We occupy leased facilities with initial terms
ranging up to 20 years. Our lease agreements frequently include options to renew for additional periods or to purchase the
leased assets and generally require that we pay taxes, insurance, and maintenance costs.

Depending on the specific terms of the leases, our obligations are in two forms: finance leases and operating leases. For
both forms of leases, we recognize a related lease liability and right-of-use asset on our consolidated balance sheets. Our lease
liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments not yet paid, discounted using our incremental
borrowing rate for a period that is comparable to the remaining lease term. We use our incremental borrowing rate, adjusted for
collateralization, because the discount rate implicit in our leases are generally not readily determinable.

For finance leases, the consolidated statements of operations include separate recognition of interest on the lease liability
and amortization of the right-of-use asset. For operating leases, the consolidated statements of operations include a single lease
cost, calculated so that the cost of the lease is allocated over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Cash flows from operating activities include (1) interest on finance lease liabilities and (2) payments arising from
operating leases. Cash flows from financing activities include repayments of the principal portion of finance lease liabilities.

We also lease certain vehicles and equipment, which generally have a term of one year or less. We have elected to
account for leases with a term of one year or less (short-term leases) using a method similar to the operating lease model under
FASB ASC Topic 840, Leases (i.e. they are not recorded on the consolidated balance sheets) as permitted by FASB ASC Topic
842, Leases.

Refer to Note 17, "Leases," for additional information related to amounts recognized in the consolidated financial
statements related to our leases.

Foreign Currency

We derive a significant portion of our net revenue from markets outside of the U.S. For financial reporting purposes, the
functional currency of all of our subsidiaries is the USD because of the significant influence of the USD on our operations. In
certain instances, we enter into transactions that are denominated in a currency other than the USD. At the date that such
transaction is recognized, each asset, liability, revenue, expense, gain, or loss arising from the transaction is measured and
recorded in USD using the exchange rate in effect at that date. At each balance sheet date, recorded monetary balances
denominated in a currency other than USD are adjusted to USD using the exchange rate at the balance sheet date, with gains or
losses recognized in other, net in the consolidated statements of operations.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, and have original maturities of three months or
less.

Recently issued accounting standards adopted in the current period:

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-04, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350), Simplifying the Test
for Goodwill Impairment in order to simplify the subsequent measurement of goodwill. This guidance changes the method by
which an impairment of goodwill is calculated. Under the previous guidance, goodwill impairment was calculated in two steps.
In Step 1, an entity would assess whether an impairment had occurred, either qualitatively or by comparing the estimated fair
values of our reporting units to their respective carrying values, including goodwill. If the results of Step 1 indicated an
impairment had occurred, Step 2 would be performed, in which the implied value of goodwill of the reporting unit would be
calculated and an impairment would be recognized for the difference between the implied value of goodwill and the recorded
amount of goodwill. Under FASB ASU No. 2017-04, while Step 1 of this process has not changed, Step 2 as described above
has been eliminated, and impairment charges are recorded for the amount by which the carrying value of the reporting unit
exceeds its estimated fair value. FASB ASU No. 2017-04 was effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests in
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. We adopted FASB ASU No. 2017-04 as of January 1, 2020. This adoption did
not have an impact on our financial statements as none of our reporting units were determined to have carrying values in excess
of fair values during the year ended December 31, 2020.

Recently issued accounting standards to be adopted in a future period:

There are no recently issued accounting standards to be adopted in future periods that are expected to have a material
impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

3. Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which we expect to be entitled in exchange for those goods. The vast majority of our revenue is derived from the sale of
tangible products whereby control of the product transfers to the customer at a point in time, we recognize revenue at a point in
time, and the underlying contract is a purchase order that establishes a firm purchase commitment for a short period of time.
Our standard terms of sale provide our customers with a warranty against faulty workmanship and the use of defective
materials. We do not offer separately priced extended warranty or product maintenance contracts. Refer to Note 2, "Significant
Accounting Policies," for additional information.

We have elected to apply certain practical expedients that allow for more limited disclosures than those that would
otherwise be required by FASB ASC Topic 606, including (1) the disclosure of transaction price allocated to the remaining
unsatisfied performance obligations at the end of the period and (2) an explanation of when we expect to recognize the related
revenue.

We believe that our end markets are the categories that best depict how the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors. The following table presents net revenue disaggregated by segment
and end market for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018:

Performance Sensing Sensing Solutions Total

For the year ended December 31, For the year ended December 31, For the year ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018
Net revenue:
Automotive $ 1,715,749 $ 1,986,537 $2,076,834 § 350621 § 42446 $ 49961 $1,751,370 $2,028,983 §2,126,795
HVOR 508,061 559,479 550,817 — — — 508,061 559,479 550,817
Industrial — — — 336,500 351,942 336,617 336,506 351,942 336,617
Appliance and HVAC @ — — — 189,782 201,745 208,482 189,782 201,745 208,482
Aerospace — — — 136,167 176,505 164,294 136,167 176,505 164,294
Other — — — 123,692 131,977 134,622 123,692 131,977 134,622
Net revenue $2,223,810 $2,546,016 $2,627,651 $ 821,768 § 904,615 $ 893,976 $3,045,578 §$ 3,450,631 § 3,521,627

1
)

Heavy vehicle and off-road
Heating, ventilation and air conditioning
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In addition, refer to Note 20, "Segment Reporting," for a presentation of net revenue disaggregated by product category

and geographic region.

Contract Assets and Liabilities

Accounts receivable represent our only contract asset. Contract liabilities, whereby we receive payment from customers

related to our promise to satisfy performance obligations in the future, are not material.

4. Share-Based Payment Plans

We issue share-based compensation awards under the Sensata Technologies Holding plc First Amended and Restated
2010 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2010 Equity Incentive Plan"). The purpose of the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan is to promote
long-term growth and profitability by providing our present and future eligible directors, officers, and employees with
incentives to contribute to, and participate in, our success. There are 10.0 million ordinary shares authorized for grants of
awards under the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, of which 1.8 million were available as of December 31, 2020.

Refer to Note 2, "Significant Accounting Policies," for additional information related to our to share-based compensation

accounting policies.

Share-Based Compensation Awards

We grant option, restricted stock unit ("RSU"), and performance-based restricted stock unit ("PRSU") awards under the
2010 Equity Incentive Plan. For option and RSU awards, vesting is typically subject only to service conditions. For PRSU
awards, vesting is also subject to service conditions, however the number of awarded units that ultimately vest also depends on
the attainment of certain predefined performance criteria. Our awards include continued vesting provisions for retirement
eligible employees. Throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K, RSU and PRSU awards are often referred to collectively as

"restricted securities."

Options

A summary of stock option activity for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018 is presented in the table

below (amounts have been calculated based on unrounded shares):

Weighted-Average
Remaining
Contractual Term
(years)

Aggregate

Intrinsic Value

Weighted-
Number of Average

Options Exercise Price

(thousands) Per Option
Balance as of December 31, 2017 3,606 $ 37.69
Granted 307§ 51.83
Forfeited or expired 39 $ 45.59
Exercised 172) $ 35.31
Balance as of December 31, 2018 3,702 $ 38.89
Granted 382§ 46.92
Forfeited or expired ®3) $ 48.92
Exercised (537) § 28.21
Balance as of December 31, 2019 3464 $ 41.19
Forfeited or expired (155) § 48.30
Exercised (452) $ 34.22
Balance as of December 31, 2020 2,857 $ 41.90
Options vested and exercisable as of December 31, 2020 2,445 $ 40.92
Vested and expected to vest as of December 31, 2020 2,831 $ 41.85
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A summary of the status of our unvested options as of December 31, 2020, and of the changes during the year then
ended, is presented in the table below (amounts have been calculated based on unrounded shares):

Number of Weighted-
Options Average Grant-
(thousands) Date Fair Value
Balance as of December 31, 2019 818 § 14.33
Vested during the year 333) § 13.17
Forfeited during the year (73) $ 14.58
Balance as of December 31, 2020 412 $ 15.22

The fair value of stock options that vested during the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018 was $4.4 million,
$7.8 million, and $5.5 million, respectively.

Option awards granted to employees under the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan generally vest 25% per year over four years
from the grant date. We recognize compensation expense for options on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period,
which is generally the same as the vesting period. The options generally expire ten years from the date of grant.

For options granted prior to April 2019, except as otherwise provided in specific option award agreements, if a participant
ceases to be employed by us, options not yet vested generally expire and are forfeited at the termination date, and options that
are fully vested generally expire 60 days after termination of the participant’s employment. Exclusions to the general policy for
terminated employees include termination for cause (in which case the options expire on the participant’s termination date) and
termination due to death or disability (in which case any unvested options shall immediately vest and expire six months after
the participant’s termination date).

For options granted in or after April 2019, the same terms apply, except that fully vested options expire 90 days after
termination of the participant's employment for any reason other than termination for cause (in which case the options expire on
the participant's termination date), termination due to due to death or disability (in which case the options expire one year after
the participant's termination date), and termination for a qualified retirement (in which case options will continue to vest and
expire ten years from the grant date).

We did not grant any options in the year ended December 31, 2020. The weighted-average grant-date fair value per
option granted during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $13.90 and $15.70, respectively. The fair value of
options was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model. The weighted-average key
assumptions used in estimating the grant-date fair value of options for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 were as
follows:

For the year ended December 31,

2019 2018
Expected dividend yield 0.00 % 0.00 %
Expected volatility 25.00 % 25.00 %
Risk-free interest rate 235 % 2.62 %
Expected term (years) 6.0 6.0
Fair value per share of underlying ordinary shares $ 46.92 $ 51.83

Restricted Securities

We grant RSU awards that cliff vest between one year and three years from the grant date, and we grant PRSU awards
that cliff vest three years after the grant date. For PRSU awards, the number of units that ultimately vest depends on the extent
to which certain performance criteria are met, as described in the table below. For restricted securities granted in or after April
2019, terms include provisions allowing continued or accelerated vesting for a qualified retirement. Beginning in April 2020,
we began granting RSUs that vest ratably over three years, one-third per year beginning on the first anniversary of the grant
date. These RSUs will fully vest on various dates between April 2023 and December 2023.
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A summary of restricted securities granted in the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018 is presented below:

Percentage Range of Units That May Vest

0.0% to 150.0% 0.0% to 172.5%
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average

RSU Awards Grant-Date PRSU Awards Grant-Date PRSU Awards Grant-Date

(Awards in thousands) Granted Fair Value Granted Fair Value Granted Fair Value
2020 806 $ 29.06 — $ — 401 $ 28.22
2019 298 $ 47.73 76 S 46.92 138 $ 46.92
2018 218 $ 51.05 63 $ 51.83 118 $ 51.83

() Represents the percentage range of PRSU award units granted that may vest according to the terms of the awards. The

amounts presented within this table do not reflect our current assessment of the probable outcome of vesting based on the
achievement or expected achievement of performance conditions.

Compensation expense for the year ended December 31, 2020 reflects our estimate of the probable outcome of the
performance conditions associated with the PRSU awards granted in the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018.

A summary of activity related to outstanding restricted securities for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018
is presented in the table below (amounts have been calculated based on unrounded shares):

Restricted Weighted-Average

Securities Grant-Date

(thousands) Fair Value
Balance as of December 31, 2017 1,081 $ 44.43
Granted 399§ 51.40
Forfeited (121) $ 48.28
Vested (240) $ 53.01
Balance as of December 31, 2018 1,119 $ 44.66
Granted " 555§ 46.73
Forfeited (115) $ 47.07
Vested (454) § 39.62
Balance as of December 31, 2019 1,105 $ 47.51
Granted 1,207 $ 28.78
Forfeited (284) $ 37.89
Vested (349) §$ 43.54
Balance as of December 31, 2020 1,679 $ 36.49

" Includes 43 thousand PRSU awards granted due to greater than 100% vesting.

Aggregate intrinsic value information for restricted securities as of December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018 is presented
below:

As of December 31,
2020 2019 2018
Outstanding $ 88,534 §$ 59,526 $ 50,161
Expected to vest $ 58,675 $ 34,717  $ 44,203

The weighted-average remaining periods over which the restrictions will lapse as of December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018
are as follows:

As of December 31,
2020 2019 2018
Outstanding 1.1 1.1 1.2
Expected to vest 1.1 1.0 1.2

The expected to vest restricted securities are calculated based on the application of a forfeiture rate assumption to all
outstanding restricted securities as well as our assessment of the probability of meeting the required performance conditions that
pertain to the PRSU awards.
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Share-Based Compensation Expense

The table below presents non-cash compensation expense related to our equity awards, which is recognized within SG&A
expense in the consolidated statements of operations, during the identified periods:

For the year ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
Stock options $ 2,868 $ 6,552 $ 5,739
Restricted securities 16,257 12,205 18,086
Share-based compensation expense $ 19,125 $ 18,757 $ 23,825

In the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018, we recognized $2.5 million, $3.2 million, and $3.0 million,
respectively, of income tax benefit associated with share-based compensation expense.

The table below presents unrecognized compensation expense at December 31, 2020 for each class of award, and the
remaining expected term for this expense to be recognized:

Unrecognized Expected
Compensation Expense Recognition (years)
Options $ 5,280 1.0
Restricted securities 21,943 1.7
Total unrecognized compensation expense $ 27,223

5. Restructuring and Other Charges, Net

On June 30, 2020, in response to the potential long-term impact of the global financial and health crisis caused by the
coronavirus ("COVID-19") pandemic on our business, we committed to a plan to reorganize our business (the “Q2 2020 Global
Restructure Program”). The Q2 2020 Global Restructure Program, consisting of voluntary and involuntary reductions-in-force
and certain site closures, was commenced in order to align our cost structure to the demand levels that we anticipated in the
coming quarters. We have taken a large portion of the actions contemplated under the Q2 2020 Global Restructure Program,
with the majority expected to be completed on or before June 30, 2021.

The reductions-in-force, which are subject to the laws and regulations of the countries in which the actions are planned,
are expected to impact approximately 880 positions. Over the life of the Q2 2020 Global Restructure Program, we expect to
incur restructuring charges of between $31.0 million and $33.7 million related to reductions-in-force and between $8.0 million
and $10.0 million related to site closures. We expect to settle these charges with cash on hand. We expect these restructuring
charges to impact our business segments and corporate functions as follows:

Reductions-in-Force Site Closures
(Dollars in millions) Positions Minimum Maximum Minimum Maximum
Performance Sensing 180 $ 10.7 $ 11.6 $ 30 $ 4.0
Sensing Solutions 286 8.9 9.6 5.0 6.0
Corporate and other 414 11.4 12.5 — —
Total 880 $ 310§ 337§ 80 $ 10.0

Charges recognized in the year ended December 31, 2020 resulting from the Q2 2020 Global Restructure Program are
presented by segment below. Approximately $0.6 million of these charges relate to site closures in Sensing Solutions.

For the year ended

December 31, 2020
Performance Sensing $ 9,073
Sensing Solutions 6,445
Corporate and other 8,940
Q2 2020 Global Restructure Program, net $ 24,458
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Restructuring and other charges, net for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018 were as follows:

For the year ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
Q2 2020 Global Restructure Program, net $ 24,458 $ — 3 —
Other restructuring charges
Severance costs, net &) 3,042 29,240 7,566
Facility and other exit costs 1,323 808 877
Gain on sale of Valves Business ® — = (64,423)
Other @ 4,271 23,512 8,162
Restructuring and other charges, net $ 33,094 $ 53,560 $ (47,818)

M For each of the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018, these charges include termination benefits provided in

connection with workforce reductions of manufacturing, engineering, and administrative positions, including the
elimination of certain positions related to site consolidations, net of reversals. For the year ended December 31, 2020,
these charges related to termination benefits arising from the shutdown and relocation of operating sites in Northern
Ireland and Belgium. For the year ended December 31, 2019, these charges included approximately $12.7 million of
benefits provided under a voluntary retirement incentive program offered to a limited number of eligible employees in the
U.S., and $6.5 million of termination benefits provided under a one-time benefit arrangement related to the shutdown and
relocation of an operating site in Germany.

@ In the year ended December 31, 2018, we completed the sale of the capital stock of Schrader Bridgeport International, Inc.

and August France Holding Company SAS (collectively, the "Valves Business"). The gain on this sale was recorded in
restructuring and other charges, net.

@) Represents charges that are not included in one of the other classifications. In the year ended December 31, 2020, we

settled intellectual property litigation brought against Schrader by Wasica Finance GmbH ("Wasica") and released

$11.7 million of the related liability. This release largely offset a charge of $12.1 million resulting from a prejudgment
interest-related award granted by the court on behalf of Wasica in the three months ended June 30, 2020. Refer to Note
15, "Commitments and Contingencies," for additional information related to this matter. In the year ended December 31,
2019, we recognized a $17.8 million loss related to the termination of a supply agreement in connection with the Metal
Seal Precision, Ltd. ("Metal Seal") litigation. In the year ended December 31, 2018, we incurred $5.9 million of
incremental direct costs in order to transact the sale of the Valves B